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Results and Financial performances HEBELMERR 2019
Results E
Revenue (HK dollar ‘000) WA (FATT) 2,310,842
Profit attributable to owners of the Company  AN2 Bl#EH A FE(E 5 A

(HK dollar '000) (F%&L) 301,803
Basic earnings per share (HK dollar) BRERZFN(ET) 0.36
Proposed final dividend per share (HK dollar) &3 &R REMKE (GETT) 0.09
Gross profit margin FFI= 28.9%
Net profit margin Tl 2 13.1%
Return on equity (Note 1) ENEEESG ) 25.3%
Return on assets (Note 2) BERRE(KFZE2) 13.0%
Inventory turnover days (Note 3) FEREERE(MTE3) 83
Trade receivable turnover days (Note 4) B 5 WA R ERE (M iF4) 49
Trade payable turnover days (Note 5) B S N RIBERERE(HaE5) 65
Financial position B #E AR R
Net current assets (HK dollar ‘000) mBNEEFE(THEL) 619,628
Current ratio (Note 6) mENEL & (ffFE6) 170.1%
Quick ratio (Note 7) RENLL K (f15E7) 125.2%
Gearing ratio (Note 8) BEABLERMES) 20.3%
Net gearing ratio (Note 9) FEEAELEMNZI) 0%

Notes:

(1)

2)

Return on equity ratio is calculated by dividing profit after tax by total equity and
multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

Return on assets ratio is calculated by dividing profit after tax by total assets and
multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

Bt -

(1)

(2)

(3) Inventory turnover days are calculated based on the average balance of (3)
inventories divided by the cost of sales for the relevant year multiplied by 365
days.

(4) Trade receivable turnover days are calculated based on the average trade (4)
receivables divided by the revenue for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days.

(5) Trade payable turnover days are calculated based on the average trade payables (5)
divided by the cost of sales for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days.

(6) Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities and (6)
multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

(7) Quick ratio is calculated by dividing current assets less inventory by current (7)
liabilities and multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

(8) Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total borrowings by total equity and (8)
multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

(9) Net gearing ratio is calculated by dividing net borrowings (total borrowings (9)

net-off cash and pledged bank deposits) by total equity and multiplying the
resulting value by 100%. Net gearing ratio was zero as net cash of the Company
as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 was HK$786,885,000 and
HK$493, 150,000 respectively.
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Financial Highlights (continued)
MBERE(E)

Five Year Revenue — by business segments

EFERA—ZBEKD

HK$'000
FHT
2,500,000
2,000,000
1,500,000
1,000,000
500,000 — — — — — —
0
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
—EREF —E—tF —E—)N\F —TNF —EoEF
Mold fabrication Plastic components manufacturing Total
RAS8E IR ELE st
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FAT FAT FHET FAT FHExT
Mold fabrication & A BIE 631,396 649,756 692,412 590,786 700,198
Plastic components RN
manufacturing BliE 995,215 1,211,144 1,606,197 1,720,056 [ PEEERrY|

Total FEE 1,626,611 1,860,900 2,298,609 2,310,842m




Regarding to the medium and long-
term deployment, the Board has
formulated its first five-year plan since
the establishment of the Group to
double sales of the injection molding
business within five years. In addition
to maintaining good relationship with
existing customers to obtain a larger
proportion in their purchases, the
Group also stresses the developing of
new customers.

HEPRENEE ST AL KE
FRILARSE — B R FTE - RITBIRIEE
BRIV 5 FHEBENRZE - [RERA
BEF#RRIFAG  FHEANHELH
SN FARFEFhRASBRRER

Li Pui Leung ZH R
Chairman F /&




To All Shareholders

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am pleased
to present the annual report of TK Group (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company” and its subsidiaries together, the “TK Group” or the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Hit by the outbreak of COVID-19 in 2020, countries took
measures such as border blockade and closure, resulting in
dramatical recessions of the real economy activities and sluggish
consumption. The global economy as a whole declined. For
the year ended 31 December 2020, total revenue of the Group
amounted to HK$2,033.4 million (2019: HK$2,310.8 million), down
by 12.0% year-on-year; the profit for the year attributable to the
owners of the Company amounted to HK$209.7 million (2019:
HK$301.8 million), down by 30.5% from last year. As countries
gradually adapt to changes in the epidemic and the new normal
of life, the demand for some consumer electronics products
recovered steadily and showed a V-shaped rebound. As a result,
the Group’s orders were full in the second half of the year; sales
exceeded expectations and returned to the level of the same
period of the previous year. In addition to the improvement of
market conditions, the recovery of sales in the second half of
the year was attributable to the Group's product and customer
diversification strategy. Moreover, the advanced techniques and
superb product quality help the Group develop new customers
even in adversity, and continue to be the preferred supplier of
injection molding solutions for major customers and maintain a
leading position in the industry.

Despite the perilous external economic conditions, the Group
is still able to maintain a sound financial position and good cash
flow. The Company’s policy of distributing dividends of not less
than 30% of its profit to shareholders remains unchanged. The
Board decided to recommend a dividend payout ratio of 39.7%
for the current year, with a final dividend of HK$0.08 per share.
Together with the interim dividend of HK$0.02 per share, the total
dividend payout for the year was HK$0.1 per share, in return for the
unremitting support of shareholders.

BB IRR
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The Group encountered multiple challenges during the year under
review due to the spread of the epidemic. In the first half of 2020,
the disruption of supply chain due to the shutdown of production
in China, the sluggish consumer sentiment and retail performance
due to the massive city closures in many overseas regions, and
the logistics constraints due to border closures caused difficulties
to the Group in supplying goods. Thanks to the Group's diversified
product and customer portfolio, there was still a stable market
demand for consumer electronics and medical products under the
epidemic. Most of the orders from these customers were shifted
to the second half of the year, enabling the Group to resume stable
capacity in the second half of the year and restore its business to
its pre-epidemic level, and to grow steadily in the face of adversity.
Amid the epidemic, the trend of consumer electronics continued
until the end of the year, which is beneficial to the development of
the Group. Our sales orders on hand as of the end of 2020 were
higher than that as of the end of 2019. The Group's strategy of
diversifying into multiple leading customers in each industry has
once again proven to be effective in spreading the risk of a single
customer in the face of adversity, and to be able to withstand
the test of market obsolescence and grasp the opportunity of
prevailing over competitors.

According to the report on global economic outlook released by the
Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development (OECD),
the global GDP dropped by 4.2% in 2020. Although China’s growth
rate was only 1.8%, it is the only major economy that achieved
positive growth in 2020. It is expected that the global economy
will recover rapidly from the recession in 2020. However, at the
beginning of 2021, the global economy is still in a difficult situation
with challenges no less than those of 2020. However, the epidemic
has further promoted the popularization of the Internet, increased
consumer demand for electronic products, and businesses and
brands continue to launch new technology products. In the future,
the scale of the global consumer electronics industry is expected
to maintain growth momentum and continue to drive the Group's
orders.

In February 2021, the Group signed an asset acquisition agreement
with Techco Silicone & Technology Co., Ltd. It is expected
to acquire all its assets, including its design and production
technology, intellectual property rights, scientific and technological
team, production facilities, customer resources, etc. to elevate
the Group’s technology and production capacity in silicone mold
and product solutions and further enrich the Group’s current
product portfolio, thereby entering a broad new market. By
leveraging the Group's rich industry experience and excellent
corporate management capabilities, as well as its extensive
customer network at home and abroad, the Group believes that
the acquisition will create synergies for facilitating its long-term
development and solidifying its position as the world's leading
one-stop supplier of integrated injection molding solutions.
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The Group's plan to set up an overseas injection molding plant in
Vietnam has been carried out, and it is expected to realise mass
production in the fourth quarter of 2021. In view of the geopolitical
factors and for the purpose of diversifying the risks arising from a
single production site, it is the Group’s long-term strategy to set up
plants overseas. At present, some high-end electronic technology
customers have transferred their supply chains to Southeast
Asia. The Group will continue to monitor the market development
and consider establishing its own plants in Vietnam or further
expanding its production capacity as necessary to meet such trend
and support the customers’ development strategies in Southeast
Asia. In addition, due to the increase of new customers and the
significant increase of orders for new products in 2021, the Group
plans to expand production in the existing three domestic plants to
meet the demand of customers.

In 2020, the Political Bureau of the CPC Central Committee put
forward the strategic concept of “developing a new development
pattern of domestic and international dual circulation and mutual
promotion”. President Xi Jinping stressed that “to add impetus
to China’s economic development by prospering the domestic
economy and unblocking the domestic circulation”, and the “dual
circulation” is officially positioned as China’s national development
strategy in the next stage. The Group will adhere to this national
strategy, continue its internal expansion strategy and further boost
its domestic sales. Specifically, it has established cooperative
relationship with leading domestic and foreign enterprises on
newly developed electronic atomization products. Mass production
has commenced in 2021 and it is expected to become one of the
driving forces for growth of the Group this year.

Regarding to the medium and long-term deployment, the Board
has formulated its first five-year plan since the establishment
of the Group to double sales of the injection molding business
within five years. In addition to maintaining good relationship with
existing customers to obtain a larger proportion in their purchases,
the Group also stresses the developing of new customers. The
Group was awarded Industry 4.01i Certificate by Hong Kong
Productivity Council and Fraunhofer IPT in Germany in January
2020, which marks its manufacture advantages in intelligence
and high degree of automation. Besides, the Group also enjoys
good reputation in Silicon Valley and domestic mold market.
The management pays close attention to the trend of high-tech
consumer electronics products and actively develops quality
customers and products. Given the abovementioned, the Group
is well prepared to play in the new competitive landscape and is
optimistic about its long-term development.
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With a corporate culture unanimously recognized and supported
by the public and all staff, every decision and every order of TK
Group are determined upon thorough consideration in terms of
customers, suppliers, staff, natural environment, the society and
TK Group itself to ensure all parties are treated in a fair and equal
manner, as well as profit maximization. Such culture is consistent
with TK Group’s operating concept of “concerted development,
concerted growth"”. In addition, the Group places high emphasis
on integrity, and believes that the “Three Principles”, namely,
“Fairness, Equality and Transparency”, will facilitate our health
development and growth. Under the corporate culture of mutual
trust, all of our staff are able to concentrate on the creation of
corporate value and provision of better services to our customers,
thus protecting interests of the Group and the customers as a
whole.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders, business
partners and customers for their full support and trust. | would also
like to give special thanks to all the executive directors and senior
management of the Company for fighting against the epidemic
with us, as well as all our staff and management team for their
dedication and selfless contributions. The Group’s business is
gradually recovering against the adversity, with optimistic future
development. We will strive to promote the development of the
Group under your trust and support, thereby creating better results
and return for our shareholders and the society.

Li Pui Leung
Chairman
Hongkong, 26 March 2021
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2020 was a challenging year. In the first half of the year, most
of the Group’s major customers postponed their orders due to
the impact of the COVID-19 epidemic, which dragged down
the Group's interim results. In the second half of the year, with
the Chinese government’'s effective anti-epidemic measures,
economic activities’ recovery accelerated and the market
gradually coped with the new normal amid the epidemic despite
the fluctuant epidemic situation overseas, which led to the
resumption of new product development and launch of market
plans by a number of downstream customers. Therefore, the
Group's revenue in the second half of the year rebounded to a
similar level of the corresponding period of last year. For the year
ended 31 December 2020, the Group's total revenue amounted
to HK$2,033.4 million (2019: HK$2,310.8 million), representing a
year-on-year decrease of 12.0%. The segments of medical and
personal health care, automobiles and mobile phones and wearable
devices in the downstream industries still recorded growth during
the year.

Revenue Analyzed by Downstream Industries

Industry
173

Mobile phones and wearable FHLAZERE
devices

Medical and personal health care  Z3f& J& ff A ;£ 12

Automobiles HE

Smart home BHRE

Commercial telecommunications B @K1
equipment

Digital devices YF&E

Household electrical appliances K&

Others Hith

2020F B mk B — 5 - OB E¥F - K
EENFERFPIHNTRELE Ko
BEHEE HEASEPHEERE - RE
THF - PRBAERED RER - &F
EEINRIRE - BINNEBRARE - BT
BERHBREEBETHHEE  SZEATES
FPIREFEMAERELEMISZE - F4%
ETHFRACEREEEFREBLKE -
HZE2020F12A3MHIEFE + AEERKA
#2,033.4E 857 (20194 : 2,310.8E & B
T0)  RETR12.0% c FHERFITEBER
BAERE - RBEMFHERAIFERESIRE
RERNEEBIER

WAR T HFITED
2019 Change
28

HK$ million % HKS$ million %
HEBTL % HEBTL %
694.0 30.0 25.5 3.7
305.8 13.2 125.5 41.0
385.2 16.7 23.9 6.2
358.7 15.5 -155.6 -43.4
327.1 14.2 -227.2 -69.5
452 2.0 -13.3 -29.4
73.4 3.2 -51.4 -70.0
121.4 5.2 -4.8 -4.0
2,310.8 100.0 -277.4 -12.0



Daily operation was impacted by the implementation of the
quarantine and social restrictions by many countries in response to
the epidemic. Particularly in the first half of 2020, the customers
of the Group postponed delivery dates and new orders, resulting in
the higher idle rate of the machines of the Group in this period. The
overall gross profit margin was also impacted by the lower price
of molds delivered during the year due to the intense competition
in the industry and the severe China-United States trade war since
2019. During the year, the gross profit of the Group decreased by
20.2% to HK$532.6 million (2019: HK$667.5 million), while gross
profit margin dropped by 2.7 percentage points to 26.2% (2019:
28.9%).

In the second half of the year, the Group tried its best endeavor
to resume its operational performance to the previous level.
However, due to the impact of the epidemic in the first half of the
year, profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year
recorded HK$209.7 million (2019: HK$301.8 million), representing
a decrease of 30.5% as compared to the last year. Net profit
margin decreased by 2.8 percentage points to 10.3% (2019:
13.1%). Basic earnings per share was HK$0.25 (2019: HK$0.36),
representing a decrease of 30.6% as compared to the last year.

Under the influence of the epidemic, the Group's trade receivable
turnover days increased slightly to 54 days as compared with the
same period of last year, but decreased by 10 days as compared
with 64 days in the interim period. In addition, under the epidemic,
the Group adopted a prudent attitude towards wealth management
to minimize the capital expense, which enabled the Group to
maintain net cash of HK$786.9 million (2019: HK$493.2 million).
The sound financial position enables the Group to flexibly respond
to the uncertainties of the macro environment, while preparing for
the recovery of the global epidemic, and adopting other measures
to promote the growth of the Group in due course. The Group has
a considerable amount of sales orders on hand, as at 31 December
2020, amounting to HK$925.2 million, which represented an
increase of 4.8% as compared with HK$883.2 million as at 31
December 2019.
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Mold Fabrication Business

During the year under review, the revenue of the mold fabrication
segment from external customers amounted to approximately
HK$700.2 million, representing an increase of approximately
18.5% as compared with approximately HK$590.8 million in last
year, and accounting for approximately 34.4% of the Group’s total
revenue.

The Group has production lines for ultra-large standard molds and
high-precision molds. The major products of the Group’s ultra-
large standard molds are automobiles components. The clients
mainly include first-tier component suppliers who manufacture
automobile components for renowned automobile brands in
Europe, such as Mercedes-Benz, BMW and Volkswagen. High-
precision molds production lines mainly produce high-precision
molds with multi-cavity and efficiency, covering the markets of
high-end consumer electronics product such as smart home,
mobile phones and wearable devices, medical and personal
health care. The Group continues to focus on expert-level molding
technology research and is committed to providing customers
with high quality and cost-effective design solutions. In addition
to developing external customers, the Group also cooperates with
the downstream plastic components manufacturing business to
provide more premium one-stop services for the customers.

With increasing competition in the mold fabrication industry and
uncertainties brought about by the trade war between the United
States and China, the Group was inevitably subject to bargaining
pressure from customers and fierce competition from overseas
counterparts, resulting in lower prices. Therefore, the gross profit
margin for the year decreased by 7.8 percentage points to 27.4%
(2019: 35.2%) compared to the last year. However, as the Group
made great efforts to explore new customers and new products
over the past few years, medical and personal health care segment
witnessed an increase in the number of molds delivered during the
year, which led to an increase of approximately HK$108.6 million
in revenue of this segment, or a 165.5% year-on-year increase),
thus driving the growth in the mold business. In the face of
industry competition, the Group continues to improve its process
technology and production efficiency, explore other high value-
added mold categories, and deliver quality molding and design
solutions to customers, so as to improve its gross profit margin
and maintain its absolute advantages in quality and technology in
the industry.
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Plastic Components Manufacturing Business

Revenue from the plastic components manufacturing segment
amounted to approximately HK$1,333.2 million (2019: HK$1,720.0
million), representing a decrease of 22.5% over the last year,
and accounting for approximately 65.6% of the Group's total
revenue. Due to the impact of the COVID-19 epidemic, in the first
half of the year, a number of downstream consumer electronics
customers delayed their product sales and new product release
plans until the second half of the year. Benefiting from the
Group's diversified customer portfolio strategy and the Chinese
government’s effective anti-epidemic measures, the Group's
production was quickly recovered and its revenue decline for
the year was significantly narrowed to 22.5% (first half of 2020:
32.2%) compared to that in the first half of the year.

The mobile phones and wearable devices segment achieved
a year-on-year growth of 3.7% in revenue, which was mainly
attributable to a significant increase in orders due to the popularity
of the new products launched by a brand customer who provided
protective cases for smartphones in line with new smartphones.
The products of a wireless headsets brand customer were
also well received by the public and recorded growth in orders
during the year, despite the impact of the epidemic. However,
a smartphone brand customer reduced its orders for standard
products during the year, which affected the overall growth of this
segment.

Medical and personal health care segment recorded a year-
on-year increase of 7.0% (approximately HK$16.9 million) in
revenue, mainly attributable to the growth in orders from existing
customers. The Group obtained several new customers with large-
scale businesses during the year, including an overseas brand
customer engaging in the medical consumables industry and a
domestic listed company. Besides, several sets of molds were
successfully tailor-made during the year and were expected to be
used in the mass production of plastic components in 2021. After
active cultivation in recent years, medical and personal health
care has become a major business segment of the Group. The
Group will maintain diversified customer portfolio strategy to resist
cyclical risks in different industries and maintain stable operating.
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The smart home segment recorded a year-on-year decrease of
43.4% in revenue, which was mainly attributable to reduction in
orders from major brand customers due to the closure of physical
retail stores in North America resulting from city lockdown
measures during the epidemic. However, leveraging on the
Group's excellent product quality and reputation in the industry,
we succeeded in obtaining another smart home brand customer
in North America during the year. Currently, the Group serves
three industrial giants and has great confidence in the long-term
development of this segment.

The commercial telecommunications equipment segment
recorded a significant year-on-year decrease of 69.5% in revenue,
which was mainly attributable to strategic changes in customer’s
supply chain and decrease in demand for office equipment
due to the epidemic during the year. However, given the close
relationship with customers for years, the Group has received
orders from customers for other product lines, and sales are
anticipated to rebound.

During the year under review, the gross profit margin of plastic
injection business slightly decreased to 25.6% (2019: 26.7 %),
which was mainly attributable to the increased idleness ratio of
machines resulting from the delayed production of several projects
severely affected by the epidemic in the first half of the year.
Along with the gradually resumption of relevant projects and newly
commencement of projects from new customers, the utilization
rate of machines also returned to a steady level of mass production
in the second half of the year, therefore the gross profit margin of
the Group was improved to a healthy level as a whole in 2020.

As at 31 December 2020, sales of the Group are mainly export
sales and our clients are mainly prestigious corporations and
brands in Europe and America. Clients of the Group cover a wide
range of industries, from automobile to household electrical
appliances to mobile phones and wearable devices as well as
medical and personal health care. As a key supplier of molds
and plastics of high-end electronic products, the Group's orders
are widely impacted by the launch time, popularity and life cycle
of products of its downstream industry clients. However, being
engaged in the molds and plastic injection industry for more than
30 years, the Group always sticks to the strategy of client diversity
in order to manage and minimize risks efficiently. Currently, the
Group has been widely recognized as a trustworthy business
partner of various internationally known brands of consumer
goods, including numbers of leading brands in many fast-growing
industries such as smartphones, personal health care and wearable
devices.
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Revenue

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately
HK$2,033.4 million, representing a decrease of approximately
HK$277.4 million or 12.0% when compared with the revenue of
approximately HK$2,310.8 million in 2019.

In 2020, the revenue from external customers of the mold
fabrication segment was approximately HK$700.2 million,
representing an increase of approximately HK$109.4 million or
18.5% when compared with revenue of approximately HK$590.8
million in 2019. The Group's major products of ultra-large standard
molds are automobile components. The Group's clients mainly
include first tier component suppliers who manufacture automobile
components for renowned automobile brands in Europe, such as
Mercedes-Benz, BMW and Volkswagen. In addition, as the Group
has been making great efforts to explore new customers and new
products over the past few years, medical and personal health care
segment has achieved a significant increase in revenue during the
year.

In 2020, the revenue from external customers of the plastic
components manufacturing segment was approximately
HK$1,333.2 million, representing a decrease of approximately
HK$386.8 million or 22.5% when compared with the revenue
of approximately HK$1,720.0 million in 2019. In the first half of
the year, many downstream consumer electronics customers
postponed their product sales and new product launch plans to
the second half of the year due to the impact of the epidemic.
However, benefiting from the Group's strategy of customer
diversification, along with the effective Chinese government'’s
anti-epidemic measures, the Group's production activities were
resumed rapidly, thus the decrease of the revenue for the year
narrowed significantly when compared with that for the first half of
the year.
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Gross Profit

Gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
approximately HK$532.6 million, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$134.9 million or 20.2% as compared with the
gross profit of approximately HK$667.5 million in 2019. Gross
profit margin dropped 2.7 percentage points to 26.2% (2019:
28.9%). Our daily operation was impacted by the implementation
of the quarantine and social restrictions by many countries in
response to the epidemic. Particularly in the first half of 2020, the
customers of the Group postponed delivery dates and new orders,
resulting in a higher idleness ratio of the machines of the Group
in this period. Moreover, the overall gross profit margin was also
impacted by the lower price of molds delivered during the year due
to the intense competition in the industry resulting from the severe
Sino-US trade war since 2019.

The gross profit margin for the mold fabrication segment
decreased from 35.2% in 2019 to 27.4% for the year. Amid the
growing competition in the mold fabrication industry and the
uncertainties brought about by the Sino-US trade war, the Group
was inevitably under the pressure of bargaining from its customers
and the keen competition from the overseas peers, therefore the
gross profit margin decreased as a result of relatively low price.

The gross profit margin for the plastic components manufacturing
segment slightly decreased from 26.7% in 2019 to 25.6% for
the year, which was mainly attributable to the increased idleness
ratio of machines resulting from the delayed production of several
projects due to the serious impact of the epidemic in the first half
of the year. However, along with the commencement of relevant
projects and the projects of new customers, the utilization rate of
machines was improved to a relatively high level in the second half
of the year, leading to only a slight decrease of the overall gross
profit margin of the Group for the year.

Other Income

Other income for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
approximately HK$58.8 million, representing an increase of
approximately HK$8.7 million or 17.3% when compared with
that of approximately HK$50.1 million in 2019, which was mainly
attributable to the increase in government grants income of the
Group for the year.
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Other Losses — Net

Other losses, net for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
approximately HK$30.8 million, representing an increase of
approximately HK$25.0 million when compared to the other losses,
net of approximately HK$5.8 million in 2019. The increase in other
losses was mainly attributable to the exchange loss arising from
the rate revaluation of the Group’'s assets denominated in US
dollar at the end of each month due to the devaluation of US dollar
against RMB during the year. Besides, in order to minimise the
effect of fluctuation of the Euro exchange rate on the Group, the
Group borrowed a Euro-denominated bank loan equivalent to the
amount of the Group’'s existing orders from Europe to hedge the
effects of fluctuations of the exchange rates of Euro on the Group.

Selling Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the selling expenses
were approximately HK$71.1 million (2019: HK$80.7 million) and
the percentage to sales was approximately 3.5% (2019: 3.5%),
representing a decrease of approximately HK$9.6 million or 11.8%
when compared to 2019. The decrease in selling expenses was
mainly attributable to the reduction in sales commission brought by
the decrease in sales due to the impact of the epidemic.

Administrative Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the administrative
expenses were approximately HK$254.7 million (2019: HK$269.6
million) and the percentage to sales was 12.5% (2019: 11.7%),
representing a decrease of approximately HK$14.9 million or 5.5%
when compared to 2019, and the percentage to sales increased
by 0.8 percentage point. The increase in the percentage to sales
was mainly attributable to 1) an increase in one-off anti-epidemic
cost of approximately HK$6.6 million; 2) an increase in provision for
receivables of approximately HK$8.8 million due to the epidemic.
Excluding the impact of the epidemic mentioned above, the
percentage of the administrative expenses to sales for the year
was 11.8%, which was comparable to that of 2019.

Finance Income/(Cost) — Net

Net finance income for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
approximately HK$5.0 million, as compared to the net finance
cost of approximately HK$1.4 million in 2019, which was primarily
due to decrease of 1) approximately HK$8.7 million in interest
expenses on bank borrowing; 2) approximately HK$5.2 million
in interest income; 3) approximately HK$2.9 million in interest
expenses on lease liabilities, during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Share of Net Profit of an Associate Accounted for Using
the Equity Method

For the year ended 31 December 2020, share of net profit
of an associate accounted for using the equity method was
approximately HK$0.7 million, representing an increase of
approximately HK$0.3 million or 75.2% when compared with
approximately HK$0.4 million in 2019.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
approximately HK$30.9 million (2019: HK$58.7 million) and the
effective tax rate was 12.8% (2019: 16.3%). Effective tax rate
decreased by approximately 3.5 percentage points as compared
to 2019, which was mainly attributable to the immediate holding
companies of the PRC subsidiaries, namely TK Mold (Hong Kong)
Limited, TK Plastics (Hong Kong) Limited, TK Plastics (Hui Zhou)
Limited, TK Plastics (Su Zhou) Limited, YD Trading (Hong Kong)
Limited and TK Group International (Hong Kong) Limited, have
obtained Hong Kong tax resident status certificate during the year,
and therefore a lower 5% withholding income tax rate is applied.

Profit for the Year Attributable to Owners of the
Company

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately HK$209.7
million, representing a decrease of approximately HK$92.1 million
or 30.5% from approximately HK$301.8 million in 2019.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The Group maintained a sound financial position during the
year. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had net current
assets of approximately HK$835.3 million (31 December 2019:
HK$619.6 million). The Group had total cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$1,069.1 million (31 December 2019: HK$735.1
million), including cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$920.4 million (31 December 2019: HK$582.9 million) and
restricted cash and deposits of approximately HK$148.7 million (31
December 2019: HK$152.2 million). The current ratio of the Group
as at 31 December 2020 was approximately 182.5% (31 December
2019: 170.1%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

B Lo ()

Total equity of the Group as at 31 December 2020 was
approximately HK$1,394.6 million (31 December 2019: HK$1,191.5
million). The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2020 was
approximately 20.2% (31 December 2019: 20.3%), which was
approximate to that of 2019.

DEBT MATURITY PROFILE

The maturity profile of the Group’s borrowings is set out below:

M2020F 12 A31H » AEBEMEE BT
#9/31,394.6 B8 &AL (2019512 A31 8 :
1,191.6F &%) - 20206128318+ &
ERBLERLA202% (2019412 A318 -
20.3%) - E2019F EE BB EAE -
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2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tz TAT

Within 1 year 1 AR
Between 1 and 2 years 122F R
Between 2 and 5 years 2E5F A

223,800 166,049
48,360 75,911
10,075 =

241,960

An analysis of the Group's key liquidity ratios as at 31 December
2020 is as follows:

7K2020F12A31H ' AEENETERDE S
LERSHTEAT -

2020 2019

Inventory turnover days (Note 1) GEREXE (M) 83
Trade receivable turnover days (Note 2) 8B 5 FEIWGIBEE X8 (f72) 54 49
Trade payable turnover days (Note 3) B SN RIERERE (M E3) 74 65
Current ratio (Note 4) BN R (fYaE4) 182.5% 170.1%
Notes: Kt -
1. Inventory turnover days are calculated based on the average balance of 1. FEREXBIIEEETHESBRAGEFEENH

inventories divided by the cost of sales for the relevant year multiplied by 365

days.

2. Trade receivable turnover days are calculated based on the average trade
receivables divided by the revenue for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days.

3. Trade payable turnover days are calculated based on the average trade payables
divided by cost of sales for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days.

4. Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities and
multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

INVENTORY TURNOVER DAYS

During the year, the Group's inventory turnover days were 105
days, representing an increase of 22 days when compared with
that of 2019, which was primarily attributable to the delay in
orders delivery requested by some customers due to the impact of
epidemic.

TRADE RECEIVABLE TURNOVER DAYS

During the year, the Group's trade receivable turnover days were
54 days, representing an increase of 5 days when compared with
that of 2019, which was primarily due to the impact of epidemic.

TRADE PAYABLE TURNOVER DAYS

During the year, the Group's trade payable turnover days were 74
days, representing an increase of 9 days when compared with that
of 2019, which was primarily due to the impact of epidemic.

CURRENT RATIO

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's current ratio was 182.5%,
representing an increase of 12.4 percentage points when
compared with that of 2019, which was primarily attributable to a
decrease in capital expenditures as a result of prudent cash flow
management approach adopted by the Group under the epidemic,
resulting in an increase in its cash and cash equivalents.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group mainly operated in the PRC and is exposed to foreign
currency risks arising from various currency exposures, mainly with
respect to US dollar, Euro and HK dollar. Exchange rate fluctuations
and market trends have always been a main concern of the Group.
Foreign currency hedging of the Group has been managed by
the Group’s chief financial officer, and overseen by the Group's
chief executive officer. In accordance with the Group’s hedging
needs and the then foreign exchange situation, the Group's chief
financial officer would collect and analyze information regarding
various hedging instruments and determine stop-loss thresholds.
The Group’s chief financial officer would then collect quotations
from various banks as to the financial instrument and present
such quotations to the Group’s chief executive officer, who would
then evaluate and make a decision as to whether to enter into
the relevant hedging agreement. The conversion of RMB into
foreign currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEE R ()

The Group's cash and bank balances were primarily denominated
in US dollar, RMB and HK dollar. Its operating cash inflows and
outflows were primarily denominated in RMB, US dollar, Euro
and HK dollar. The Group is closely monitoring the exchange rate
movements and regularly review its gearing structure so as to
mitigate the expected exchange rate risk.

RMB EXCHANGE RATE RISK

The Group's major revenue is principally denominated in US dollar,
Euro, HK dollar and RMB, and the Group’s major expenses are
principally denominated in RMB. The Group has not entered into
any agreement for RMB hedging purpose.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There was no change in the capital structure of the Company
during the year, and the Company’s capital included ordinary
shares and other reserves.

PLANS FOR MATERIAL CAPITAL INVESTMENTS

The Group will invest in capacity expansion and investment
projects to capitalize the potential growth of the Group’s business
in the coming years in the manner set out in the section headed
“Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. Future
funding source is mainly from internal resources.

STAFF POLICY

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 3,443 full-time employees
(31 December 2019: 4,072) and 636 workers dispatched to us by
third party staffing companies (31 December 2019: 632).

The Group's remuneration policy aims to offer competitive
remuneration packages to recruit, retain and motivate competent
directors and employees. The Group believes the remuneration
packages are reasonable and competitive and in line with market
trends. The Group has put in place a share option scheme and a
share award scheme for its directors and employees in a bid to
provide a competitive package for the Group’s long-term growth
and development. The Group also provides appropriate training and
development programmes for its employees to enhance the staff's
work ability and personal performance.

The Group has implemented training programmes for the
employees to meet different job requirements. The Group believes
that these initiatives have contributed to increasing employees’
productivity.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

As required by PRC regulations, the Group has made contributions
to mandatory social security funds for the benefits of its PRC
employees which provide pension insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, work-related injury insurance, maternity
insurance and housing funds.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has made no
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

PROSPECTS

It is expected that worldwide consumer confidence and spending
appetite will gradually stabilise as a number of new coronavirus
vaccines become available in various countries around the world.
Growing consumer demand will lead to a recovery in demand for
the Group's products from customers, which will in turn drive the
Group's order growth. In fact, the Group's order and production
plans for the first quarter of 2021 sustains the momentum of the
second half of 2020 and the management believes that production
line utilization will be improved significantly in the first half of
2021. In addition, the Group is committed to continuing to expand
its customer base in the Chinese consumer goods market in
order to increase its domestic market share, such as continuing
to actively seek partnerships with more key brands of high-tech
consumer electronics and medical products, adhering to the
strategic direction of developing diversified customers to balance
the risks arising from different segments and market fluctuations.
Over the past two years, the Group has successfully developed the
electronic atomisation component segment and with the excellent
quality of its products, the Group has secured orders from several
well-known international and Chinese customers. As the global
demand for electronic atomisers rises, the Group believes that its
growth prospects in this segment are promising.
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In terms of the layout of overseas production, the Group has
restarted its plan to set up an injection moulding production base
in Vietnam by the end of 2020. The installation of the production
line is expected to be completed in the third quarter of 2021 and
production will commence in the fourth quarter of 2021. This will
extend the Group's regional coverage in line with the relocation
of the supply chain and reducing geopolitical risks in the long
run. In addition, the Group will also expand the capacity of its
three production bases in the headquarter in Guangming District
in Shenzhen, Huizhou and Suzhou, which are expected to be put
into operation gradually from 2021 to support the increase in order
volume and prepare for the long-term order growth demand.

In order to further broaden the product mix and the market size of
plastic injection, the Group signed an asset acquisition agreement
with Techco Silicone & Technology Co., Ltd. in February 2021 for
a consideration of RMB12,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$14,370,000) to acquire all of its assets, including its design
and production technology, intellectual property, technology team,
production facilities and customer resources, so as to expand the
technology and production capacity of the Group in silicone mold
and product solutions and thus strengthen its leading position
in the plastic injection market. Silicone products are widely
used in optics, medical, infant products, automobile, electrical &
electronics, household essentials etc., and possess great potential
in the enormous global market.

The Group believes that the epidemic will stabilize with
the introduction of vaccines. However, given a number of
uncontrollable macro factors such as the possible evolution of
epidemic and geopolitical situation, the Group will remain cautious
and maintain a strict credit and trade receivables turnover policy to
stabilize cash flow and financial position, and prepare for long-term
business development. In 2021, the Group will adhere to the
diversity policy, continue to improve the intelligent automation
level and technological research and development of the existing
production lines in order to maintain its competitiveness and
profitability. The Group will continue to gain a foothold in the ever-
changing market to seek for opportunities and realize a sustainable
growth.
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Mr. Li Pui Leung, aged 61, is the chairman of the Group. Mr.
Li is one of the founders of the Group and was appointed as an
executive director on 28 March 2013. He is also the chairman of
the Board and the chairman of the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Li is responsible for the overall management and
strategic planning of the Group. He has accumulated more than
37 years of professional experience in plastic mold fabrication
and plastic injection molding and also experience in business
management in manufacturing industry. Mr. Li together with
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu, a substantial shareholder and an executive
director of the Company, established Tung Kong Machinery
Moulding FTY in Hong Kong in 1983, and have since expanded
the Group’'s mold fabrication business into the PRC in 1992
and relocated the operations to Shenzhen, the PRC. Mr. Li was
elected the “"Winner of Young Industrialist Awards of Hong
Kong” in 2003 and “Outstanding Person of Shenzhen Machinery
Industry” in 2004, and awarded “Shenzhen Person of the Year”
by Southern Metropolitan Daily in 2013. Mr. Li holds several
social titles, including serving as a committee member and the
convenor of Hong Kong of Shenzhen Chinese People’'s Political
Consultative Conference, the President of Guang Ming General
Chamber of Commerce (Industry and Commerce), a committee
member and honorary president of Hong Kong Young Industrialists
Council Foundation, the Chairman of Kowloon City District Road
Safety Campaign Committee, the vice chairman of Federation
of Hong Kong Shenzhen Association Limited, the vice president
of Shenzhen Overseas Chinese International Association, the
executive director of Shenzhen General Chamber of Commerce,
the vice chairman of charity committee of Shenzhen Guangming
District and the president of Rotary Club, Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong
in 2000. In July 1974, Mr. Li graduated from Yuanzhou Gongshe
Lulan Primary School in Boluo, Guangdong in China, and obtained
a middle school graduation certificate. Mr. Li is also the controlling
shareholder and director of both Eastern Mix Company Limited
(a controlling shareholder of the Company) and Lead Smart
Development Limited (a substantial shareholder of the Company),
and the elder brother of Mr. Lee Leung Yiu.
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Mr. Yung Kin Cheung, Michael, aged 59, is an executive
director and the chief executive officer of the Group. He is also
a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr.
Yung has over 30 years of experience in plastic mold fabrication
and plastic injection molding. He was appointed as an executive
director of the Group on 28 March 2013. Mr. Yung is responsible
for formulation and implementation of the business plans of the
Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yung acted as a buyer in
National Semiconductor Hong Kong Ltd. from May 1985 to August
1987. He was promoted to Component Engineer in May 1987.
From August 1987 to February 1989, Mr. Yung served at AST
Research (Far East) Ltd. as a procurement engineer. Mr. Yung
joined the Group in 1989 as the general manager and was primarily
responsible for operation management for the molding business.
He has been serving as the managing director of the Group since
2000, and is mainly responsible for business development and
the daily operations of the Group’s business. Mr. Yung graduated
from the Department of Industrial Engineering of the University of
Hong Kong with a bachelor’'s degree in Engineering in November
1983. He also graduated from the Centre of Buddhist Studies of
the Faculty of Social Sciences of the University of Hong Kong
with a Master’'s Degree in Buddhist Studies in November 2008.
Mr. Yung is also the shareholder and the director of Eastern Mix
Company Limited (a controlling shareholder of the Company),
and the controlling shareholder and the director of Cheer Union
Development Ltd. (a substantial shareholder of the Company).

Mr. Lee Leung Yiu, aged 60, is an executive director of the Group.
He is one of the founders of the Group and was appointed as an
executive director of the Group on 28 March 2013. Mr. Lee has
approximately 37 years of experience in plastic mold fabrication
and plastic injection molding. Mr. Lee alongside Mr. Li Pui Leung
(a controlling shareholder, the Chairman and an executive director
of the Company) established Tung Kong Machinery Moulding
FTY in 1983. He has been serving as the manager whose major
responsibility is the procurement for the Group. From August 2009
to October 2010, Mr. Lee completed the EMBA training classes
of Graduate School of Tsinghua University, China, and obtained a
certificate of completion. In June 2013, Mr. Lee obtained a degree
of master of business administration from the University of Wales,
the United Kingdom. Mr. Lee is also the shareholder and the
director of Eastern Mix Company Limited (a controlling shareholder
of the Company), the controlling shareholder and the director of
Normal Times International Limited (a substantial shareholder of
the Company), and the younger brother of Mr. Li Pui Leung.
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Mr. Cheung Fong Wa, aged 58, was appointed as an executive
director and the chief financial officer of the Group on 27
November 2013. Mr. Cheung joined the Group in July 2002, as
a corporate financial controller and was mainly responsible for
the finance, taxation, audit and investment of the Group. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Cheung had served at Deloitte Ross
Tohmatsu (currently known as “Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu”) and
served as a financial controller for a FORTUNE 500 manufacturing
company, as well as those manufacturing companies listed in
Hong Kong and the U.S.. He has accumulated over 30 years of
experience in the field of auditing, accounting and corporate
finance. Mr. Cheung graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic (the
predecessor of Hong Kong Polytechnic University) department
of accounting in November 1987. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since January 1996
and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since September 1990.

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy, GBS BBS JP, aged 68, was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company on 27
November 2013. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, and a member of each of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company.

Dr. Chung obtained a PhD in Engineering from the University of
Warwick, the United Kingdom in May 2010. In September 2012 he
achieved a PhD of Business Administration from City University
of Macau. He was re-appointed as an Industrial Professor by the
University of Warwick, the United Kingdom in December 2020.
He was awarded a doctorate degree of business administration
honoris causa by the University of Macau in November 2019,
an honorary doctorate degree of science by the University
of Warwick, the United Kingdom in July 2019, an honorary
doctorate degree of business administration by the Lingnan
University in November 2015, an honorary doctorate degree of
business administration by the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in December 2007 and an honorary doctorate degree of the
University of Newcastle, Australia in July 2006 respectively. He
was awarded by the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
Government (“HKSAR Government"”) the Gold Bauhinia Star (GBS)
Medal on 30 June 2017, the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) Medal on 1
July 2011, and was appointed as Justice of Peace on 1 July 2005.
Dr. Chung was granted the Hong Kong Young Industrialists Award
in 1997, and was further awarded the Industrialist of the Year in
November 2014.
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Dr. Chung is highly dedicated to the advancement of Hong Kong
industry. He was the Chairman of the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries from July 2011 to July 2013 and has been serving as
the Honorary President of the Federation since 5 July 2013. In
addition, Dr. Chung has served on various HKSAR Government
advisory committees, as well as an active member of many social
committees and associations. Dr. Chung was appointed as the
Chairman of the Vocational Training Council from January 2018
until December 2019. He is also the Founder and Chairman of
Bright Future Charitable Foundation.

Dr. Chung is a co-founder and currently a non-executive director
of Techtronic Industries Company Limited (stock code: 669),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange. He has also been an
independent non-executive director of Fujikon Industrial Holdings
Limited (stock code: 927), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, since 1 April 2014; and an independent non-executive
director of Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (stock code: 345),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange, since 24 June 2017.

Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung, aged 40, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company on 20
December 2019. She is also a member of the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the
Company.

Ms. Leung has practiced as a Barrister in Hong Kong for nearly 14
years. Ms. Leung obtained her PCLL from the University of Hong
Kong in 2005. She was called to the Bar in Hong Kong in 2006.

The practice scope of Ms. Leung covers all types of civil litigation,
including contractual disputes, commercial disputes, personal
injury and death litigation, and matrimonial litigation. From 2007
to 2012, Ms. Leung has been a part-time Lecturer of Company
Law for the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountant
(HKICPA) Practising Certificate Law Examination and a part-time
Lecturer of Corporate and Business Law for the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Ms. Leung is also a contributing
editor of Archbold Hong Kong and Company Law in Hong Kong
— Insolvency. She is currently serving as a board member of the
Hong Kong Dance Company.
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Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, aged 68, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 27
November 2013. He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee, a
member of both the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Tsang is a former partner of
PricewaterhouseCoopers in Hong Kong and China who has over
30 years of experience in auditing and providing support for initial
public offerings and acquisition transactions. Mr. Tsang received
a bachelor’'s degree in business administration from Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of
the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants.

Currently, Mr. Tsang is an independent non-executive director
of the following companies listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange: China Merchants China Direct Investments
Limited (stock code: 133), Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group
Ltd. (stock code: 460), CA Cultural Technology Group Limited
(formerly known as China Animation Characters Company Limited)
(stock code: 1566) and Shirble Department Store Holdings
(China) Limited (effective 30 March 2021) (stock code: 312).
He has been an independent director of HUYA Inc. effective
18 May 2020 (a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange,
stock code: HUYA). Mr. Tsang was an independent non-executive
director of Ping An Securities Group (Holdings) Limited (listed
on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 231) from February 2016 to
March 2020.

Mr. Yue Yiu Chung, aged 54, joined the Group in July 2014
as corporate financial controller, and is responsible for the
management of finance, customs declaration and shipping,
information technology, human resources, administration, and
environment, health and safety (“EHS") of the Group. Prior to
joining the Group, he worked for a company listed in the U.S. and
was responsible for the entire Asia Pacific region finance affair.
He has approximately 29 years of experience in auditing and
finance. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in accountancy from City
University of Hong Kong. He has also been a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since August 2000.
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Mr. Lu Gong Shan, aged 41, is the general manager of the mold
fabrication segment of the Group. Mr. Lu joined the Group in May
2002, and was appointed as the deputy general manager of the
Group in January 2009, who is responsible for the development
of the mold fabrication business, project management and the
management of affairs in respect of technology, quality and
sourcing management. In October 2013, Mr. Lu was appointed as
the general manager of the standard mold business units of the
Group, and the responsibility is for the overall management of the
standard mold business units. Mr. Lu graduated from Zhengzhou
University of Light Industry in July 2000 with a diploma of high
molecular material machining specialised in mold design and
manufacturing. In May 2013, Mr. Lu obtained a degree of master of
Business Administration in Executive Management from the Royal
Roads University.

Mr. Yim Cham Sum, aged 55, joined the Group and was
appointed as the Operations Director of the plastic components
manufacturing division of the Group in December 2017, whose
responsibility is for the operation management of the plastic
components manufacturing division. He was appointed as the
general manager of the plastic components manufacturing division
of the Group in January 2019 and responsible for the overall
management of the plastic components manufacturing division.
Mr. Yim obtained the Degree of Master of Business Administration
(MBA) from the University of Strathclyde in the U.K. in July 2002.
He had worked in the manufacturing operation management for
over ten years and has worked of Nypro Plastics & Metal Products
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.

Mr. Lok See Yuen Samuel, aged 44, is the chief marketing
director of the plastic components manufacturing division of the
Group. Mr. Lok joined the Group in August 2009 and was appointed
as the chief marketing director of the plastic components
manufacturing division of the Group. He was mainly responsible
for sales and marketing affairs of the plastics components
manufacturing division. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lok had
approximately eight years of experience in Plastics industry. Mr.
Lok previously served as the application development manager
of GE Plastics Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Lok graduated from The
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology with a bachelor’s
degree in mechanical engineering in November 1998.

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa, aged 58, is the company secretary of the
Company. Please refer to “Directors and Senior Management
— Executive Directors — Mr. Cheung Fong Wa" for further
information.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company believes that good corporate governance practices
are very important for maintaining and promoting investors’
confidence and for the sustainable growth of the Group. The Board
sets appropriate policies and implements corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of the Group's
business. The Board is committed to strengthening the Group's
corporate governance practices and ensuring transparency and
accountability of the Company’s operations.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “"CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”). The Company regularly reviews its corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has complied with
all the code provisions as set out in the CG Code during the year
ended 31 December 2020. Key corporate governance principles
and practices of the Company are summarized below.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding directors’ dealing in the Company's securities.

Having made specific enquiry of the directors, all the directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE WRITTEN GUIDELINES
FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY THE
RELEVANT EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”), governing securities transactions by employees
(including directors or employees of a subsidiary or holding
company of the Company) who are likely to possess inside
information of the Company and/or its securities. No incident
of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the
employees was noted by the Company.

In case when the Company is aware of any restricted period for
dealings in the Company’s securities, the Company will notify its
directors and relevant employees in advance.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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THE BOARD
Board Composition

The Board currently comprises 7 members, consisting of 4
executive directors and 3 independent non-executive directors.

Executive directors

Mr. Li Pui Leung (Chairman)

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa

Independent non-executive directors
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy

Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time
pursuant to the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive
directors are expressly identified in all corporate communications
pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The biographical details of the directors of the Company are set
out under section in this
annual report. Save as Mr. Li Pui Leung and Mr. Lee Leung Yiu
are brothers, none of the members of the Board is related to one

another.

“Directors and Senior Management”

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between
the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer
to ensure a balance of power and authority. The positions of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are currently held by Mr.
Li Pui Leung and Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael respectively.
Their respective responsibilities are clearly defined and set out in
writing.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the overall
management and strategic planning of the Group and the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate
governance practices, whereas the Chief Executive Officer
focuses on the day-to-day management of the Group’s business
and implementing objectives, policies, strategies and business
plan of the Group approved and delegated by the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board has at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of
having three independent non-executive directors (representing at
least one-third of the Board) with at least one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The independent non-executive directors bring a wide
spectrum of business and financial expertise, experience and
independent judgment to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. They are invited to serve on the Board Committees
of the Company. Through active participation at Board and
Board Committees meetings, taking the lead in managing
issues involving potential conflict of interests, all independent
non-executive directors have made various contributions to the
effective direction of the Company and provided adequate checks
and balances to safeguard the interests of both the Group and the
shareholders.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive directors of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive directors to be
independent in light of the independence guidelines set out in the
said Listing Rules.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All directors of the Company are appointed for a specific term,
subject to renewal upon expiry of the existing term. Each executive
director is engaged on a service agreement for a term of 3 years,
which may be terminated by either party by not less than 3
months’ written notice. Each of the independent non-executive
directors of the Company is appointed for a term of 3 years.

The procedure and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of directors are laid down in the Company's Articles
of Association (the "Articles”). The Nomination Committee
is responsible for reviewing Board composition, monitoring
the appointment of directors and assessing the independent
non-executive directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
rEERME(E)

According to the Articles, one-third of the directors for the time
being (if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at
each annual general meeting provided that every director shall be
subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once
every three years. In addition, any new director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy in the Board shall hold office only until
the first general meeting after appointment, and any new director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the Board shall hold office
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company.
The retiring directors are eligible for re-election by the shareholders
at the respective general meetings.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES
AND CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and
performance. The Board is also responsible for implementing
policies in relation to financial matters, which include risk
management and internal controls and compliance, if applicable.
In addition, the Board reviews the financial performance of the
Group, approves investment proposals, nomination of directors
to the Board and appointment of key management personnel.
These functions are carried out either directly by the Board or
through Board committees such as Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee.

All directors are aware of their collective and individual
responsibilities to the shareholders of the Company, the duties
to act honestly and in good faith, in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations and in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times and to avoid conflicts of interests.

All directors have timely access to all relevant information as well
as the advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior
management, with a view to ensuring compliance with Board
procedures and all applicable laws and regulations. Any director
may request for independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company's expenses, upon reasonable
request made to the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Delegation of corporate governance duties

The Board has delegated to the Audit Committee the responsibility
for performing corporate governance functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee has reviewed
and monitored the Company's corporate governance policies and
practices, the training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the compliance with the Model Code and the Employees Written
Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

Delegation of management functions

The Board gives clear directions as to the powers delegated to the
management for the management and administration functions of
the Group, in particular, with respect to the circumstances where
management should report back and obtain prior approval from the
Board before making decisions or entering into any commitments
on behalf of the Group. Matters which are specifically reserved to
the full Board for decision are those involving a conflict of interest
of a substantial shareholder or a director, material acquisitions
and disposal of assets, corporate or financial restructuring, share
issuance and distribution of dividend, and approval of financial
results and corporate strategies. The Board will review those
issues on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to
the needs of the Group.

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed director shall receive induction on the first
occasion of his/her appointment to ensure he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
he/she is fully aware of director’s responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The existing
directors are continually updated on changes and developments
to the Group's business and on the latest developments in
the laws, rules and regulations relating to directors’ duties and
responsibilities. Directors’ training is an ongoing process. All
directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at
the Company’s expenses. Directors are requested to provide their
training records to the Company for records.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
rEERME(E)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the directors have

HZE2020F12A31BItFE - EE—HET

complied with the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on EERTRZFRIEFEA6.5(K « L8
participation in continuous professional training as follows: THREBEEEET
Mode of participation
2HEER
Name of director a b c d
EEpE
Executive directors: HITEE :
Mr. Li Pui Leung MR A 7 v/ v/ v/
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael SEAXE v 4 4 4
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu $E‘Jﬁ¥5‘ﬁ$ v v v v
Mr. Cheung Fong Wa REELA v v v v
Independent non-executive directors: BUIHITESF -
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy /uzizﬁi v v/ v 7
Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung RN T v v v/ v
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong IS E v v/ v/ v/

a: Directors attended a training session conducted by the Company relating to

directors’ duties and responsibilities under Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,

the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and regulations.

b:  Directors received regular briefings and updates from the Company Secretary/

the Company’s management on the Group's business, operations and corporate

governance matters.

Directors attended seminars/forums, which are relevant to their duties and
responsibilities, organised by professional firms/institutions.

Directors read technical bulletins, periodicals and other publications on subjects
relevant to the Group and on their responsibilities and obligations under the

Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORDS

The attendance records of each director at the Board and Board
committees meetings and the general meeting of the Company
held during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out below:

TEERRE(E)

EEHERE
REENEHZE2020FE12 A31 B ILEERNETT
MARRERehEETe L8R URK
RASZ HEDHEIOT :

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HE/ RN

Annual

Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination General

Name of director Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting

KR

BEfE EE® ERZEEE  HMEEE  REZREE BEAE

Executive directors: HITEE

Mr. Li Pui Leung R AL 5/5 NATER N/ATRER /1 17

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael SBRMEE 5/5 N/ATEF 22 N/ATEF 171

Mr. Lee Leung Yiu TRIBEE 5/5 N/ATER N/ARER N/ATER 11

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa REELE 5/5 N/ARE N/ATE R N/ATE A 11
Independent non-executive directors: BUFHTEE -

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy EETEL 5/ 33 202 17 11

Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung @i+ b/5 33 2/2 M 1

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong BEF L 5/5 313 212 171 171

In addition, the Chairman of the Board held a meeting with the
independent non-executive directors without the presence of the
other directors during the year under review.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board established three committees, namely, the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company's affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with defined written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The terms of
reference of the Board committees are posted on the Company's
website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are available to
shareholders upon request. All the Board committees should
report to the Board on their decisions or recommendations made.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises 4 members,
namely, Mr. Li Pui Leung (Chairman), Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy,
Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung and Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, the
majority of which are independent non-executive directors.

The Nomination Committee is responsible to review the structure,
size and composition (including skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board at least once in any financial year and to make
recommendation on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

To ensure changes to the Board composition can be managed
without undue disruption, the Company has adopted a Director
Nomination Policy. The Policy includes a formal, considered
and transparent procedure for selection, appointment and
reappointment of Directors, as well as plans in place for orderly
succession (if necessary), including periodical review of such
plans.

During the identification of suitable individuals, to ensure the
effective carrying out of the responsibilities by the Board, the
Nomination Committee will consider criteria set out as below,
including but not limited to:

e the integrity, experience, skills and professional knowledge;

e a balance of skills, experience and diversity appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business;

e adequate amount of time and effort devoted to the Company;

e contribution to the diversity of the Board;

e participating in Board meetings to bring an independent
judgment on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standards of
conducts;

e taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

REZES

REZEERENALKE - AR EE(E
B) EEFEL REABLIREERSL
g BB RED BBILIFAITES -

REAZEERAENETAYVBRFEZ D —
REFGMRE - MR NAK (BHEEE - A
&R E)  WHREARESARARE
EEWMBEESEHNEBRIEZS -

REREESHERABNES TS HRTE
ENTE ARFERMNEFREABRR
BILIA  KEEEBELAZAENEEH
B RERBFZERFRARFHNES#
ERE(MERE) » LWER BT UL RS -

RYEARFERREALR  REE=S
RRARETHRE  REZEEE2EUT
ETHRE BREATER :

o WE - &R RERFERME

. AEARAEBERZES  ERES
B0 T

o TIRATHMEFHERBWUERERARSE
7%

s REEFEKEZITIL
e 2HEEETEH  HRE HE- X

/fﬁ .
BBE AR ZTEZERETE]
FRIAEH B HIE

o REABANZERIEBEFERGER



e bringing a range of business and financial experience to
the Board, giving the Board and any Committees on which
he or she serves the benefit of his or her skills, expertise,
varied backgrounds and qualifications and diversity through
attendance and participation in the Board/Committee
meetings; and

e scrutinising the Company's performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance.

The Committee identifies suitable individual qualified to become
Board members and makes recommendation to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment of a new Director
(to be an additional Director or fill a casual vacancy as and when
it arises) or any re-appointment of Directors. External recruitment
professionals might be engaged to carry out selection process
when necessary.

The Company believes that diversity underpins the successful
operation on an effective Board and embraces diversity as a
means of attaining its strategic objectives. According to the
diversity policy of the Board adopted by the Company, the
Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing the policy,
developing and reviewing measurable objectives (including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service)
for implementing the policy, and monitoring the progress on
achieving the measurable objectives set to ensure the continued
effectiveness of the Board. To ensure the effectiveness of this
Policy, the Nomination Committee will, as appropriate, review the
Nomination Policy, discuss any revisions that may be required and
recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration and
approval. The Company believes that greater diversity of directors
is good for corporate governance and is committed to attract and
retain candidate(s) for Board with a combination of competencies
from the widest possible pool of available talents; and to increase
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in maintaining
the Company's competitive advantage.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Nomination
Committee has held 1 meeting (the attendance records of
each Committee member are set out in above section headed
“Directors’ Attendance Records”) and performed the following
major works:

— Review of the policy for the nomination of directors;

— Review of the structure, size and composition of the Board to
ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements for the business of the Group;

— Recommendation of the re-election of the retiring directors
standing for re-election at the 2020 annual general meeting;
and

— Assessment of the independence of all the Company’s
independent non-executive directors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises 4 members,
namely, Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy (Chairman), Mr. Yung Kin Cheung
Michael, Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung and Mr. Tsang Wah
Kwong, the majority of which are independent non-executive
directors.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year. The
primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure and reviewing and approving remuneration
proposals of all directors and the senior management. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible for establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no director or any of his associates
will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which
remuneration will be determined by reference to the performance
of the individual and the Company as well as market practice and
conditions.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Remuneration
Committee has held 2 meetings (the attendance records of
each Committee member are set out in above section headed
“Directors’ Attendance Records”) and performed the following
major works:

— Review of the remuneration policy and structure of the Group;

— Assessment of the performance of executive directors;

— Review of the remuneration package of directors and senior
management; and

— Consideration of the bonus payable to directors and senior
management for the year 2019 and the proposed salary
increment for the year 2020.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual
remuneration of the members of the senior management, including
those members of senior management who are also executive
directors, by band for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out
below:

Remuneration band (HK$)
AR B (GBoT)

2,000,001-2,500,000
2,500,001-3,000,000
3,000,001-3,500,000
3,500,001-4,000,000
4,000,001-4,500,000
4,500,001-5,000,000

Details of the remuneration of each director of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in Note 36 to the
financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee currently comprises 3 members, namely,
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong (Chairman), Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy and
Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung. All of them are independent non-
executive directors.
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The responsibilities of the Audit Committee are:

— To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual matters raised by the external
auditor before submission to the Board.

— To review the relationship with external auditor by reference
to the work performed by the auditor, their fees and terms of
engagement and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor.

— To review and supervise the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company's financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems and internal audit plan.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee
has held 3 meetings (the attendance records of each Committee
member are set out in above section headed “Directors’
Attendance Records”) and performed the following major works:

— Review and discussion of the annual audited financial
statements, results announcement and report for the year
ended 31 December 2019, the related accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and the relevant audit
findings, the report from the management on the Company's
review of the risk management and internal control systems,
and recommendation of the re-appointment of the external
auditor;

— Review of the Group's continuing connected transactions and
the compliance of the non-competition undertaking provided
by the Company’s controlling shareholders;

— Review of and monitoring the Company's corporate
governance policies and practices, the training and
continuous professional development of directors and
senior management, the Company's policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code and the Employees Written
Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report;

— Review and discussion of the interim financial statements,
results announcement and report for the six months ended 30
June 2020, and the related accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group;
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

— Review of the annual audit plan of PricewaterhouseCoopers,
including the nature and scope of the audit, the fee payable to
them, their reporting obligations and their work plan; and

— Review of the effectiveness and performance of the
Company's financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems and internal audit plan.

The external auditor attended all the above meetings to discuss
with the Audit Committee members on issues arising from the
audit and financial reporting matters.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the appointment of external auditor.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is Mr. Cheung Fong Wa, who fulfils
the qualification requirements laid down in the Listing Rules.
Biographical details of Mr. Cheung are set out under “Directors and
Senior Management” section in this annual report. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, Mr. Cheung has taken not less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the Company’s financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out in the Independent
Auditor's Report on pages 104 to 110.

The fees paid/payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s
auditor, in respect of audit and non-audit services for the year

ended 31 December 2020 are analysed below:

Type of services provided by the external auditor
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Fees paid/payable

gt ENER
HK$°'000
FTH T
Audit services — audit fee for the ZE R — & E2020%F12831H
year ended 31 December 2020 IEFERZEER 2,607
Non-audit services — interim review fee for the IERZERTE —E = 202046 A30H
six months ended 30 June 2020 LEARE A M EAERE R 435
Total: 4t 3,042
RIEE (FRR) BRAR —ZE_TFF
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
rEERME(E)

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation
of the financial statements for each financial year, which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the
Group and of the results and cash flows of the Group for that year
and in compliance with relevant law and disclosure provisions
of the Listing Rules. In preparing the financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2020, the directors have selected
appropriate accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable,
and have prepared disclosure of the financial position of the Group
with reasonable accuracy at any time.

The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board believes that sound risk management and internal
control systems are essential to the achievement of the strategic
goals of the Group, and confirmed that the Board is responsible
to set up, maintain and review the effectiveness of such systems.
Management is responsible for the design and implementation
of the Group's risk management and internal control systems
to manage the risk. Good risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance.

The Group’s risk management framework

In order to improve the risk management and internal control
systems, as well as enhance the level of management and risk
prevention capabilities, the Group established its risk management
framework in 2016. The risk management framework includes
the Board and its Audit Committee, senior management and
subsidiary managements, in three levels (details refer to the below
framework).

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

ERERAWME(E)

Risk management framework
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The Group has commissioned a professional risk advisory body
to help build risk management framework, develop the Risk
Assessment Manual, and conduct risk assessments to determine
the nature and extent of the risk. In the risk assessment process,
the management and the Internal Audit Department, have
identified the major risks faced by the Group and ranked these
risks according to the likelihood and the severity of the impact on
the Group, as well as further development of risk management
measures to maintain the risks at an acceptable level.

The Company also has an Internal Audit Department, which is
responsible for performing independent review of the adequacy
and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems.
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The management and the Internal Audit Department would
report to the Audit Committee and the Board on all findings and
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems. The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the
management and overseeing the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems,
and makes recommendations. The Audit Committee also ensures
that an overall review of the effectiveness of such systems is
conducted at least annually and put forward to the Board for
consideration.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Company’s strategic objectives; and acknowledges
its responsibility for the risk management and internal control
systems and reviewing their effectiveness.

The Company has also developed its disclosure policy which
provides a general guide to the Company’s directors, officers,
senior management and relevant employees in handling
confidential information, monitoring information disclosure and
responding to enquiries.

Review of risk management and internal control system

The Board and its Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness
of the Company’'s risk management and internal control systems
for the year 2020, as well as taking into account the resource,
adequacy of staff qualifications, training and experience of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting and internal audit
functions. Based on the reports submitted by the Internal Audit
Department and the management, the Board considered that the
Company's risk management and internal control systems are
effective and adequate.

The Group has its risk management and internal control policies
and procedures reviewed, to ensure compliance with the new
requirements, and explore opportunities for improvement.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more members
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meeting of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary at the principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition, and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company. The objects of the meeting must be stated in the
written requisition.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meeting

If a shareholder wishes to put forward proposals at a shareholders’
meeting, the shareholder, who has satisfied the shareholding
requirements set out in the above paragraph headed “Procedures
for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general meeting”,
may follow the same procedures by sending a written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong. The shareholder should
state his/her proposals in the written requisition and submit the
written requisition as early as practicable to enable the Company
Secretary to make necessary arrangement.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
director for election as a director of the Company at a general
meeting, pursuant to Article 85 of the Articles, the shareholder
(other than the person to be proposed) should prepare a written
notice duly signed by him/her of his/her intention to propose a
person for the election and a notice duly signed by the person to
be proposed of his/her willingness to be elected. These notices
should be lodged at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong or its share registrar at least 7 days prior to the date
of the general meeting. Where the notices are submitted after the
dispatch of the notice of the general meeting, the period for the
lodgment of the notices should commence on the day after the
dispatch of the notice of the general meeting and end not later than
7 days prior to the date of the general meeting.
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TEERHRE(E)

Procedure for sending enquiries to the Board

Shareholders are welcome to send enquiries to the Board to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Workshop
No. 19, 9th Floor, Block B, Hi-Tech Industrial Centre, No. 491-501
Castle Peak Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance
of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information,
which will enable shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decisions.

The annual general meetings and twice-yearly business
performance conference of the Company provide a platform for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board as well as the chairmen of the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee or,
in their absence, other members of the respective committees,
and, where applicable, the chairman of the independent Board
committee are available to answer questions at shareholders’
meeting.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at www.tkmold.com where up-to-date information and
updates on the Company’'s business operations and development,
financial information and other information are available for public
access.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its Articles. An up-to-date version of the Articles is
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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ABOUT THE REPORT

This is the fifth Environmental, Social and Governance
Report (the “Report”) issued by the Group. It will continue
to facilitate the understanding of stakeholders' towards the
environmental, social and governance performance of the
Group by updating them on the Group's performance in
aspects of environment, society and governance. The Report
is in Chinese and English, and has been published on the
websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) and the Group (www.tkmold.com).

REPORTING SCOPE

The reporting scope of the Report will continue to cover the
environmental, social and governance (“ESG") performance
of the Group’s production bases in Shenzhen headquarters,
Suzhou and Huizhou for the year from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2020 (the “year”). In the future, the Group will
consider including the operations of the offices in Hong Kong
and Germany in the scope of this report in the light of the
development of its business.

REPORTING STANDARDS

The Report is prepared in accordance with the four
reporting principles of Materiality, Quantitative, Balance
and Consistency set out in the “ESG Reporting Guide"” (the
“Guide") contained in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Besides, some of the “Recommended Disclosures”
have been covered in this report in order to provide a more
comprehensive disclosure of the Group’s performance.

! “Stakeholders”, otherwise known as “interested parties” or “interest
owners”, refer to groups and individuals that have significant impacts on
the enterprise business, or affected by the business, including the Board,
management, administrative and general employees, as well as external
shareholders, business partners, customers, governments, regulatory

authorities, banks, investors and communities etc.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Reporting Principles
EE &R R Al Definition 22

Materiality The reporting will be focused on the ESG
BEEM issues which have material effects on the
various stakeholders of the Group.
E%’E#&%‘JZKE@Xiﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁiigg‘%%%
?i‘%& EA %EE °©

Quantitative The KPI data should be measureable and

81t comparable when appropriate.
REREIEAR T8 - WEREBR T#T
LEER o

Balance An issuer shall report on its ESG performance

F 7 during the year in an objective and truthful
manner.

BITAEEE  EETHERNFEERRE 48
E/Dﬁﬁﬁ’]%fﬁ°

Consistency The disclosures in the Report should use

—HM consistent disclosing methodologies to allow
for comparisons of KPIs in relation to ESG for
understanding corporate performance.
BREREERRA -BORESRGT L SRR
5 e RERA AN BRESEEE R ML
B B ERR -

RECOGNITION AND APPROVAL

The Group has undertaken to make every endeavour to
guarantee the accuracy and reliability of all the materials
presented in the Report and strengthened management
by establishing the internal monitoring and formal review
procedures. The Report was recognized and approved by the
Board on 26 March 2021.

COMMENTS AND FEEDBACK

Comments or recommendations of stakeholders in aspects of
the Group’s ESG performance are greatly valued by the Group.
Please feel free to contact us by the following means:

Group Headquarters S8

Response [2 f&

A board survey was conducted during the year to

understand the key ESG issues of concern to the

Board.

%$$§Eﬁﬁ§$ﬁ‘ﬁ€ﬁﬁ% CEREEINEE
BE - HEREREE -

The Group's social KPIs are sourced from the
statistics of the relevant departments. In addition,
Carbon Care Asia, a professional consulting
company, has been commissioned with the
measurement of the environmental KPls.
Z!S%?i@%ﬁ’ﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁ%iﬁﬁ&%ﬁ’%ﬂ@ﬁﬁﬁﬁEﬁ%BF'EJEI’\J%E
;Hr IEoh - BIEH O BERERIEFECEREEERN
NGILR N ﬁ#ﬁo

In the preparation of the Report, the Group not

only focused on describing its achievements in

ESG, but also introduced difficulties occurred and

corresponding solutions.

EA$$&¢%EE’J@E¢ AEEBDTERAMIRE - 1
RESERR - e8| 6 E 8RR o

In the Report, the Group has adopted methods the
same as the previous years and compared some
ESG data for the year with data for the previous
years. For details, please refer to the section
headed “Overview of Key Performance Indicators”.
RAREF - REBDIRKARTFAERNS % -
WHEAFERDDRIE S REABBRATFHIEE
LB o ﬁl%;%%ﬁﬁ [BASRAERUBIRAATE |Z 50 -
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AEEEOSHHERARARNESE 1B
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Add: TKTechnology Park, Tangjia Communi
office, Guangming District, Shenzhen
Tel: E 55 | +86-755-2369 0328

Hong Kong Office FENWEE

Hrik 1 EEHAZEETILEA1-501RENTX

Add: Workshop No.19, 9th Floor, Block B, Hi-Tech Industrial Centre, 491-501
Castle Peak Road, Tsuen Wan, N.T., Hong Kong

Tel: E55 - +852-2411 3628
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MESSAGE OF DIRECTORS

As the concept of sustainability is gradually being integrated
into the development concept of modern enterprise, the
Group has adhered to deliver its promise for sustainability
through enhancing its technologies and management abilities.

In order to further promote its governance abilities in
sustainability, the Group has established the ESG Management
Committee during the year, with the aim to monitor
the Group's performance in sustainability (including the
management of relevant risks) systematically and to report to
the Board of the progress made in achieving its sustainability
goals on a regular basis. The committee is chaired by the
Chairman of the Group, and has set up different departments
in charge of managing different areas of sustainability,
including the EHS? Department, the Human Resources
Department, the Internal Audit Department, etc. of the Group.

In addition, in order to understand stakeholder’'s opinions
and recommendations on the sustainability of the Group, the
Group has invited the members of the Board to fill an online
qguestionnaire during the year. According to the results of the
guestionnaire, the members of the Board are very concerned
about the issues within the scope of “employment and
labour practices” as these are all materiality issues. Among
which, the issues of “workplace safety” and “prevention of
child labour and forced labour” gained the highest attention.
Furthermore, the issues of “prevention of bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering”and”emissions reduction” are
also relatively important in the eyes of the members of the
Board.

During the first half of 2020, as the COVID-19 epidemic
rampaged across the world, all countries initiated epidemic
prevention and lockdown measures, as well as other
prevention measures to contain the epidemic. The Group also
actively complied with national epidemic prevention control
policies by restricting the numbers of worker resuming work
and reducing employee mobility rate. Meanwhile, as for
employees resumed work, the Group also purchased hygiene
products for them to use for free, in a bid to provide a safe and
health working environment for our employees.

In the future, the Group will continue to keep up with national
policies and grasp market dynamics, and constantly contribute
its share in promoting sustainability.

Li Pui Leung
Chairman
TK Group (Holdings) Limited

2 EHS represents environment, health and safety.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENT, SOCIETY AND GOVERNANCE
GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Group has always attached great importance to
the management in aspect of environment, society and
governance and endeavored to enhance its performance
in this aspect by establishing governance structure. During
the year, the Group has set up the ESG Management
Committee, which is delegated with the authority from the
Board and chaired by the Chairman of the Group. It is mainly
responsible for identifying priorities for sustainability, guiding
and monitoring sustainability works, reviewing sustainability
trends, preparing sustainability report, and other matters. The
governance structure is as below:

RE dE8RESR

m

A%

AEE-—A+OERYNEERE HER
ERMERE  HEBBEARBNEY - 12
NAKERZAIENRER - AEE - A%5H
ERVAESTERE YHAKEIFET
ZERMESGEEZE®  T2REHMT
FERRELASE BEYEENRHERR
T ERAKEERBEANBETHE
BRHBETHE - ERRBAT

ESG Management Committee
ESGEEZEE

Engineering and Procurment
Department,
Plastic Injection Materials

. Chairman's office,
Quality Department, Tiee Ui

Environment-related Human Resources EHS Department of

Department Department the Group Department, and
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TTERIEEDER
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Administrative Department
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Q RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has placed heavy emphasis on managing
sustainability risks occurred during daily operation. It has
established the risk management structure comprised of
three elements, namely, the Board and its Audit Committee,
senior management, and the management of subsidiaries, in
order to identify relevant risks. In addition, the Internal Audit
Department of the Group will evaluate the sufficiency and
effectiveness of the risk management structure on a regular
basis.

During the year, the Group has commissioned a third-party
sustainability consultancy institution to help the Group identify
the sustainability risks in the industry for internal reference.
It conducted works from six major aspects including exhaust
emissions, climate change, health and safety, employee
training, technology innovation, and business ethics, and on
this basis, it offers alleviation recommendations.

Risk Types
[ B 3 Bl

Responding Measures FEY}

§ mmee

AEE-EERERAREETHOAFEE
ERR CREVHAEFTERHEERZES -
SREERE - MBAREIEE=E5 D AKX
MERERERE - ABRIERRR - S50
AEBANRNS S EHRFERAREIRRED
ENMEREHIE

AEE ARBEERES A TRERRE
B R BYAR R MBIT R A T R
BREAEHSE  BEERHY AR
b RmeEs  BIHEI - HAA RS
B ABE - LI IER LR T A
i -

Exhaust emissions e Incorporate relevant risks into the general risk management structure of the enterprise for timely
BERIER identification and management;
HEARRA R bR AR R R - AR HEAI R ERE
e |mprove production processes and reduce the impact from operation on the environment;
WELETE  BRELEHRENTE
e Keep frequent communication with different stakeholders, and make reference from their
opinions and know-how during decision-making process; and
HARBFHERFEEER  UNAKBRRBF2EEBUREEZMNE &
e Formulate emissions reduction targets at corporate level, and timely monitor and publicly disclose
relevant data under external reporting framework.
BT EEmEVREE AR - WARBIMNDIREERNE K - REFER R DG B EARRE2E -
Climate change e Take into consideration of climate change factor, and regulate business acts through formulating
R relevant policies;

BREECRARMAREEEZT  WERBHIFTHEBBRARBEETR

Cooperate with public organisations in order to obtain analysis results on regional climate change
and deepen the enterprise’'s understanding of the vulnerability of business and community
climate; and

HEAHBBEE  UWESREMEREE(EOMAER  URSEELEBIHERIERIDIEAIEER K&

Work with different institutions including colleges to develop alternative energy and invest in low
emissions technologies.

ERREESE(NERE)  MEEREERIIEEF I -
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Risk Types

E R Responding Measures FE¥f# i

Health and safety * Introduce automatic equipment or robots to complete works with high risks;
REEZS 51 BB LR E e ARTTR = AR TE

e Seek partnership with local government and sanitary agencies to help employees, contractors and
community residents in managing and enhancing healthy level; and

HEWMBUNNELIERESE  EPET AERRMRERERE RIEFHEFKE &

e Use virtual technologies in training personal undertaking high-risk trades to reduce his/her
frequency of exposing to high-risk environments.

ERERFMTZFIEESETIEOAS  ROERBENSERFBNEE -

Employee e Gradually introduce online learning platforms, and adopt trainings combining online and offline
management ways to allow more flexibility to employees’ learning patterns; and
B I BHSIAGEFEBTE KAS LA THAGNEIFR  FEINSEBRAFTNESE &

e Regularly organise internal professional technologies exchange and sharing meetings, or arrange
employees to take part in the exchange and sharing meetings of the industry, in order to
understand the latest development trend and technology direction in real time.
THRPRABEERMIANZE  ALHEILNTEARREE S ERBEFITESTERBY
AMEA AR

Technology e Work with professional institutions or colleges to jointly develop the latest mold fabrication
innovation techniques, so as to enhance production efficiency and product quality; and
T RI HEXREIEREE  HAMESMEARERN - MESEERERER®RE &

e Establish an intellectual property system and relevant protection measures to protect its own
existing intellectual properties from infringement.
BV MEBERNEMEERERRE  REEFEFEAHERTZREL -
Business ethics e Take anti-corruption as a key performance indicator and as a consideration factor in determining
BXEE senior management’s remuneration;

HBREBRIERSBREMIESR  MARREEENFMEERRD

e Perform due diligence before working with any third party in order to make sure the cooperating
party can meet the expectation of an enterprise in business ethics;

BEME=FAEAMERETRRAL  URRSEITALERAXBEIENGE

e Establish an independent audit department to regularly review anti-corruption work, so as to
evaluate the implementation of anti-corruption controls;

®ALE FE AT AP E HE TR B EA - AR R B B RIE R ITIE R |

e Create specific reporting channels to encourage employees to report any suspected corruption
issues without fear; and

BUEBSRIRE SEETEMBERNERIENEHREE R

e Expand the size of anti-corruption trainings for employees.

MMARE TRBIIFHARE -
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STAKEHOLDER COMMUNICATION BHEER

Stakeholder communication is one of the most important BHEER LIS SEMBMHEBEENIRIE 1
ways to understand stakeholders’ concerns over different ehERTRBERIEENEEFAZ
environmental, social and governance issues. During the year, — o KFE  AEEDRFRAEFT M LA
the Group has understood the opinions and recommendations EMENER  BREFeRENEREE
of the members of the Board through an online questionnaire FEoHEERER EFSNEEENEE
for the Board. According to the survey results, the material %%/T% [IREBE| - [BERBIERINTE
issues selected by the members of the Board covers three BB =& - BTN (RBREZ R
scopes, being “environment”, “employment and labour FrHEzl) -

practices” and “operation practices”, the details of which are
listed below in descending order of importance:

Workplace safety
ZEMTIERE

Prevention of child labour
and forced labour
frlEE T NMogH4 T

Prevention of bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering
Dy I-ARRE - 1 - BGFROERE
Establishing a comprehensive system of
employment management
TENEREEE

Improving employees’ knowledge and
skills for discharging duties at work
TR B BT TIERE r A & et

Emissions reduction

ABER

RI&EE (ZR) ERAR —T-TFFH
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Other than the questionnaire for the Board, the Group also
organised other stakeholders communication activities during
the year, with the aim to procure the Group to establish
better management policies and measures in reducing
risks and opportunities arising from the environment, social
and governance aspects. The internal stakeholders of the
Group include its employees, while its external stakeholders
include investors and shareholders, suppliers, clients, the
public and community, education and research partners,
professional associations, government departments and other
public organisations. The communication ways of different
stakeholders during the reporting period are as shown in the
following graph:

Communicty
activities

SUVEED)

/‘

Internship
EEE
FTE

2l
N

General

Site visits
EE R
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Mode of
communication
with stakeholders

Public B DED
consultations EimA

meetings

BREH
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Daily
conferences
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Questionnaires
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STICK TO PEOPLE-ORIENTED CULTURE

Creating safe employment environment, protecting
employees’ lawful rights and interests and fostering
outstanding talents are not only the foundation for an
enterprise to achieve its strategic objectives, but also an
important criterion to assess an enterprise’s performance in
sustainability. The Group has established a series of policies,
specifying management measures for aspects including
employee remuneration, recruitment, dismissal, training,
safety and labour standards.

Q HEALTH AND SAFETY OF EMPLOYEES

Relevant Policies BB E

BEUARE

BIERENERRE REEINGEER
UARIBREFOATL  TMERBRE X
BEMER  TERRALCEAFERRRR
MEERFE - AREEHIFT —FIIEEK - 5
ARBTIHM - B - B#E  Hil - Z2R
BTRAUZTENEERENE

) rapEnz2

Operation Standards on the Safety Inspection System, Emergency and Response Procedures, Procedures on Reporting,
Investigation and Handling of Accidents, Treatment Procedures for Employees with Work-related Injuries and Occupational

Diseases. Etc.

(R2REHIEFEERAEE) (BEFMERET)  (FHRE  HEREEREF) MIBEMBXRBERARERF)E -

Governance Structure

In order to comprehensively manage the health and safety
risks for the employees of the Group, the Group has set up
the EHS Committee, which is chaired by the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group and has positions such as vice chairman,
EHS supervision and management leader and standing
committee member. The establishment of the committee is
to consistently implement national policies and approaches
on safety works, timely update safety management-related
documents and conduct safety inspections on workplace.

During the year, the Committee held a total of 4 meetings, at
which issues such as environmental protection and industrial
safety management were discussed.

REHEBRASEEINERZ AR - K
SECRIBITRERETZERNEHSE
Bg TREIZER EHSEEEEABAEA
MEBEZEERM - ZZBEWET - BN
ERERBEREEL 2 THENBETE - &
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The COVID-19 Epidemic

Protecting employees’ health and safety has always been one
of the important areas for the Group. Especially during the
most severe period under the COVID-19 epidemic in the first
half of the year, the Group placed the highest emphasis on
employees’ health and safety among all of its works. During
the epidemic, the Group had adopted the model of flexible
work, allowing some employees to work from home, so as
to reduce people’'s mobility. Meanwhile, the Group increased
its epidemic prevention costs for the COVID-19 epidemic by
approximately more than HK$6 million, all of which were used
to ensure the hygiene of workplace.

B RS

BTMiEFEZE HERASERINER
B LERNAFE LXFHERIBRER
B AEEER KB TMREEZ2ELM
BIENERZE - REHHE  AEE—&
RABUETENER o EBTAERER
Tt R ABRENE - B - REER
AREE R HT I R P R R A G AN N B
HEET  HARERTESMNELER
WL e

In order to strength its epidemic prevention and control work for the COVID-19 epidemic, the Group has immediately
established an emergency task force for the early outbreak in response to the epidemic under the direct leadership of the
Board, which supervises a traffic control team, a quarantine and treatment team, an environment disinfection team, a supplies
preparation team, a publicity and education team and a food safety supervising team, each being in charge of different aspects

of the epidemic prevention and control.

AR Y ERISHPETE - AEERE

B T RAE -

BRI HEEREXE
W FRAMEEAE  REE2AAE - RERE  WESHE  SEHFEAUR

RIE=E fFFE BRI/ -

Tz%%ﬁ DRAERIE

Before and after the work resumption, the environment disinfection team will disinfect office area, production area, living
area, public area and public facilities every day, and the traffic control team will measure body temperature with infrared
thermometer at each entrance for all personnel entering and existing and arrange people with abnormal temperature to
temporary quarantine area for further examination. As workers at entrance get in touch with many people, we offered them

hygiene products such as KN95 mask, gloves and ethanol.

WELIRR  BREERESESHRAE  £ER £5R  AHEURR

SMRERFTAIEMMEHAAERA
BRI AR A TKNISAE - FEUKBESEERM

Handling of Work-related Injuries

The Group states in relevant policies that, in case there
was any work-related injury, the injured employee would
immediately be sent to hospital for treatment with the escort
of designated person. Meanwhile, the department in question
will complete the preparation of the report on the accident,
depicting the causes of the event, the injuries and fatalities of
people, and the subsequent handling measures, etc.

A total of 5 employees of the Group suffered work-related

injuries during the year, and all these work-related injuries had
been handled in accordance with relevant requirements.
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Safety Training ZE2EI
Safety trainings for employees are an important way for
employees to acquire safety skills. The Group has provided its
employees the following safety trainings during the year. All
training records and assessment results are filed by the EHS
Management Committee.

BIZ2RIIRREES TENIEHEZ 2R
MEZESTR  AKECRAFERE TRMH
T T REEF - Bl I ERER
HEXHEHSERZ B @#TER -

Training type
EAEE

Training content AR

Three-level safety
education

ZRREHE

Factory safety training, department safety training, shift safety training and guides and trainings on
safety operation.
ABZEHE @ HMIL2HE - MELRE2HE URZ2RIERESIEI -

Special safety Trainings on fire-safety knowledge, trainings on chemical safety management and trainings on laws

education and regulations.
HEZ2HE E BN - LR m T 2 E BRI SOERERIE -

Q IMPROVING THE EMPLOYMENT SYSTEM Q EEEELE

Relevant Policies B %

Enrolment and Appointment System, Social Responsibility Management System, Recruitment Management System,
Complaint Management System, Child Labour Remedial Management Regulations, etc.

(ANBEERKE) (MeEEERHE) (BEEEHE) (EHFEERE)UM(ETHREERE)F

Remuneration and dismissal

B & R

Recruitment and promotion

RREEEA

Working hours

TR

e The Group implements a post salary e
mechanism, which is composed of
basic salary and post salary;

REEBETEUFMEG  HERTE

The recruitment of Group is in the
charge of the Human Resources
Department and includes

internal recruitment and external

The Group’s employees working in
office and production line shall work five
days a week and eight hours a day.
AEBMBPRAENEEFETHA—RAIE

A TE AR 4K

e |n case of repeated absenteeism,
falsification of personal data,
disclosure of company secrets or
any other illegal and irregular acts,
the Group will dismiss the relevant
responsible person.
EHRZAEHET - BEEAE
K ORE R RIS H M (ERE AR
RITR - AEERSEHEBREEAN
BHRIZIE o

recruitment. External recruitment
includes social recruitment, online
recruitment, college recruitment
and advertising recruitment;
TEEREHANERBEE @ 215
WEPREEF NP BEEM B o B
BESFETBE  BEBE - TR
BERESHES

The Group undertakes to give
priority to internal staff when there
is a vacancy. Among the promotion
conditions, relevant employee must
be rated as above “excellent” in his/
her comprehensive performance
appraisal results during the appraisal
period, and shall have no violation of
discipline or major operational errors
within two years before applying for
the internal promotion.
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Leave f& 3

The Group provides employees with
marriage leave, funeral leave, family
planning leave and annual leave.
REBERBTREER =R HEHEE
BEFRE -

Other packages and benefits

Hnfs@mER

The Group provides post allowance and
skill allowance for qualified employees.
KEE RS AR B TIRMHERR MY
AL o

Equal opportunity and
anti-discrimination

FEHER KR

The Group is committed to creating

an inclusive, equal and fair working
environment and prohibits any form of
discrimination.
FEEBNREL—BARE TERAT
B TIERIE - REEAZABNBRITRE °

Child labour ET

The Human Resources Department

of the Group is responsible for
establishing internal reporting channels
for child labour to encourage employees
to report the use of child labor. Any
child labour discovered shall be
immediately sent to hospital for medical
examination. The Group will bear the
entire cost for any health problem that
may be found to be suffered by the child
labour until he/she is cured.
AEEBANERFEEREIAMPETSR
WRE NEETIRREIMNEM - #1H
EI%  ELHEAZRREEREITE
B BERRBEME  ABLrEEEES
HEREZER °

Diversity Z tit

The Group respects and promotes the
diversity of employees and encourages
the employment of employees with
different nationalities, ethnicities, colors
or educational backgrounds. During
the year, the Group employed two
Malaysian employees and two Spanish
employees.

REESSWRES TE/b - SEIER
TREE Rk Sei#EERHE
I-AFE AEEDERMEHFRAD:
EETLMEAMEET -

Forced labour 3@%% T

The Group promises that when
recruiting employees, it will never
restrict employees’ freedom by means
of withholding their ID cards, passports
or deposits; and if an employee wish to
resign, he/she is free to terminate the
employment contract after a reasonable
notice period.

AEEAGBEELIR T ERBEMS
MHEL  ERIFSHEARGETS

B FRESTEE  IRaEmmEE
BHRZIEERAER -

Q DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING FOR EMPLOYEES Q EE 2 REEE

Relevant Policies BB E

Training and Development System, Management Regulations on Promotion and Cultivation, etc.
CGEIEAEGIE)AR(EFEEEERT)S -

Training Courses EIIRE

REERAE THEIJIEREARTIEE NS
F2M - RAFE  AEERBEEIERN
ROEFREEE - BRETRMTUTHEIR
2 EEREBEIIERE-

The Group understands the importance of staff training to
enhance their working abilities. During the year, the Group
has provided the following training courses for employees
according to their opinions and corporate development
roadmap, with a view to improving their working skills.

60 TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020



Training Name

=Rt

Training for new
employees
FaTHE

Mentoring

BEE

On-the-job training
EREI

Skill certification
training

BEEREE

Training for special
posts

FE TR R (35 3

Training Content $ZHIRE

Includes introduction to corporate system, corporate culture training, employee safety training,
system knowledge training, information security training, etc.
BECEFENG  CEXUEEI - BIR2EI - BRABBIARERL2EINE -

Includes arranging for mentors to carry out trainings on organisation structure and post skills for
relevant employees before they took up their posts.

BREZHEEHEAN LMETE A B THETASRENE LR -

Includes organising different employees to participate in different types of training, such as
leadership training, professional knowledge training, quality and safety training and technology
training, in combination with corporate strategies, business needs and personal needs.
BREEGLERRE  EBFTRULEAFTK  AETREI2MAEERIEI - Sl - FENE - ¥
MEE  RERERULRKINES -

Includes scientific injection molding training, Six Sigma training, FMEA training and other training
certification.
BIERIEF B - SNEBIEE - FMEAREIIZEEIIRE

Includes internal and external trainings for personnel in special posts, such as forklift certificate
training, hazardous chemicals administrator training, special equipment operation training and first-
aider training.

BEEERELABETRINBFI - FINXEFFI - BRCEREEEHE - FREEREFII
R EEIIE -

Employee Development BI%E

AEBGTHEB THETESEZ - RS
BIMIEBRMEIREND - ERERES
EEETEH  MFEUARBNEFENEE
Ig -

The Group will regularly conduct performance appraisal
on employees to understand their working conditions and
management abilities. The assessment results will be used as
the basis for their promotion, salary increase and training.
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PROMOTING GREEN PRODUCTION

In recent years, as the expectation from government
and the public to corporate environmental performance
increases, the Group has become increasingly aware of the
importance of promoting green production to corporate social
responsibilities. Currently, the Group has formulated a series
of policies to manage the environmental performance of the
enterprise during its operating process.

EMISSIONS

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Relevant Policies BB E

Greenhouse Gas Emissions Management Procedures.

CRERBHRELRRRF) °

The different areas of the management of greenhouse gas
emissions are taken care of by the Group’s general managers,
management representatives, the Injection Molding Quality
Department and other competent departments, respectively.
In particular, the Injection Modeling Quality Department is
responsible for regularly trainings for personnel in charge
of preparing greenhouse gas information, such as learning
about the source of greenhouse gas emissions and the use of
relevant calculation tools.

During the year, the Group continued to entrust the
independent consulting company Carbon Care Asia with the
carbon evaluation to quantify the greenhouse gas emissions
(or “carbon emissions”) generated from the Group's
operations in accordance with the Guide® promulgated by
the National Development and Reform Commission of the
People’s Republic of China and with reference to international
standards such as 1ISO14064-1: Greenhouse Gas Protocol.

3 Guideline of the Greenhouse Gas Emissions Accounting and Reporting for
Machinery Manufacturing Enterprises (Trial).
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During the year, the Group's total carbon emissions were KEE  AEERBIRBENA42,305.97
42,305.9 tonnes, which were mainly generated from using W EEMRHBE _ZINBEENERMESE
purchased electricity within Scope Il, accounting for 99% of (HEBEMER9% © IhY) - BE = FHREP
the total emissions. In addition, although the refrigerant R-22 FANEASER-22ABEE(REBHETE )
used in air-conditioning equipment is not included in the six FrREMNBAZERECAN  BERTERS
greenhouse gases covered by the Kyoto Protocol4, in order HREEAERESHRTENRIE  KAEH
to more fully disclose the performance of greenhouse gas HRIR 15 22 S 38 P BE LAY 132 A 18 — (b Bk
emissions, the Group included 132 tonnes of CO2 equivalent EERSREE—F -

emitted by air-conditioning equipment in Scope I.

Emission quantity for
the current year Emission quantity for 2019
(tonnes of CO: equivalent) (tonnes of CO: equivalent)

Emission of greenhouse gases AEEHHRE —E-hEFHHE
Ptk E2 (A —F{tREE) (A —F{thEE

Fossil fuel combustion — stationary sources 0.3 0.4
L RRERE — BEER

Fossil fuel combustion — mobile sources 31.1 44.8
L RRERE — BER

Greenhouse gases emitted during the 148.8 302.0
operation of equipment and systems

RERFGEERENARE R

Scope Il — Indirect greenhouse gas emissions from energy #5E2 — BeiREIEE S = AL HEMN
Purchased electricity 42,070.5 45,406.1
SNEE N

Business aircraft travel 55.2 220.8
R EIEIRTT
Total greenhouse gas emissions 42,305.9 45,9741
BAERBHHEE
Greenhouse gas emissions density (based on 20.8 19.9

revenue per million Hong Kong dollars)

REREHNEE (KSR 8BS TIRAET)

4 The main objective of Kyoto Protocol (Kyoto Protocol to the United Nations 4 (REBETE)N B(HAEBRIFEELHENLDN
Framework Convention on Climate Change) is to “stabilize greenhouse RETE) )M TEEER [ BARTHAEER
gas levels in the atmosphere at an appropriate level”, and the specified BRoEBTE—EEENKTE] HPBEENAS
greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide (COz), methane (CHa), nitrous R[ERE -G (CO,) » FIE(CH,) ~ &R
oxide (N20), hydrofluorocarbons (HFCs), perfluorocarbons (PFCs), and (N,O) ~ @& AP (HFCs) ~ 2&bhR(PFCs) A
sulfur hexafluoride (SFe). SNEAEHR(SFe) ©

RIEE (Z=K) BRAR —T-TFFHK 63
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Compared with 2019, the total greenhouse gas emissions of
the Group during the year dropped by 8.0% mainly due to the

following reasons:

e Greenhouse gas emissions within Scope | were down by
48.1% due to the decrease in fuel consumption. This was
mainly because the decrease in consumption of liquefied
petroleum gas and the rigorous segregation and control
measures for recycled materials implemented in Suzhou
Production Base during the year, leading to significant
decrease in the occurrence of stuffed nozzles and runners
on site and decrease in order volume. In addition, the fully
electrification of forklifts in plants and decreased usage of
passenger vehicles also contributed to the decrease in fuel

consumption.

e Greenhouse gas emissions within Scope Il also decreased
by 7.3%. This was attributable to the decrease in orders

and production amid the epidemic as compared to 2019.

e Greenhouse gas emissions within Scope Ill also decreased

by 75.0% due to epidemic.

Regarding the main sources of carbon emissions, the Group
will continue to evaluate, record and disclose its greenhouse
gas emissions and other environmental data every year, and
use the data from previous years as a basis to continuously
review the effectiveness of current measures, which will help

to further develop emission reduction targets in the future.
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Exhaust emissions

Relevant Policies tHBIBUR

Waste Gas Control Procedures.

(EERIZHIRZR) ©

The injection molding plants of the Group generate exhaust
gas including spraying exhaust gas, printing exhaust gas,
injection molding exhaust gas and dust during the production
process. This will be managed by the Quality Department
through overseeing and checking the function of the
environmental management system, formulating rectification
measures, as well as inspecting and maintaining exhaust gas
treatment equipment. Furthermore, the Quality Department
shall regularly organise relevant departments to identify and
evaluate the sources of exhaust gases and timely establish
and update the List of Exhaust Gases.

R

et
off

RIE L KE

m
DL\

BER I

AEEIEHEREEBRETELENERE
EEZER - HFIER  T2ERNRNE
% AmEAEEETER fIWNEERE
RIBBEEBRANETIOR - HIRTEAEEIA
MigE R EEERRERES - B mE
8 T BRAR A AE B8 BB P A8 B S B RE R PR IR
R WER T R EHCERBE)

During the year, the Group engaged a third party technology company to help the Group conduct an upgrade on exhaust gas
from plastic injection for its mold plant in Shenzhen at a consideration of RMB380,000. After the upgrade, all exhaust gases
from plastic injection are treated with carbon filtration + UV photolysis technology, and the air volume of fan is controlled by

an automatic frequency conversion technology with an emission of 10,000 m?h.

RAEE  AEEEE=+/\BIAREESEE S HRITATE B EBA RS ERE R T I BRI | i

ST - BUERM AT R RE R FAE M IR+ UV R SR 3R 451 -
PERE A10,000m3/h ©

Compared with 2019, the nitrogen oxides, sulfur oxides
and respirable suspended particulates emitted by fossil fuel
consumption from stationary and mobile sources during the
year decreased by 96.5%, 66.7% and 94.1%, respectively.
The significant decrease in air pollutants from the combustion
of fuel was mainly due to the nil diesel combustion owing to
the fully electrification of forklift equipment across the Group's

R A B2 BR PR B B S SR AT

%ﬁ“ pasy—1 =

N E TR A BhIRA b A BAREE FEPTHE AR
mﬁ%m%vﬁ%m%ﬂTWA%ﬁﬁ%
H-F-NFEMEES R T96.5% -
66.7% F194.1% © KREERREIBERR A 22 /5 A
%kﬁﬁ¢$£l%$¢ﬁ$ﬁlxiég
HMANXBELEEBARAEEE - GEL
MRERET -

production bases during the year.

Emissions for the year (kg)

Emissions for 2019 (kg)

rEEHRE SE-NAFHNE
Emission B34 (Fz=) (F=)
Nitrogen oxides (NO,) &L (NO,) 3.6 103.9
Sulroudes (SOJ EEEMGSO) no TR
Respirable suspended partilates PM) 0a o8

ATRAZFHRF (PM)

RTIKE (2R BRAE —T_TFFR
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Waste

Relevant Policies tHBIBUR

Hazardous Waste Disposal Regulations, Waste Control Procedures and Waste Management Rules.

(eBERMEIERT)  (BEMEHIRERF) AR(EEMRERMRE)

During its daily operation, the Group will classify and recycle
waste and requires all staff to handle waste correctly in
accordance with the requirements of the waste classification
list. After classification, the waste will be delivered to
different warehouse for storage based on nature. For
instance, hazardous waste will be delivered to hazardous
waste warehouse for storage, and then for regular recycle
after contacting qualified third-party contractors, while other
recyclable or non-recyclable non-hazardous waste will also be
delivered to special warehouse for storage, and then to be sold
or cleaned.

The total non-hazardous waste for the year was not materially
different from that of 2019. Total hazardous waste produced
during the year increased by 35.3% compared with that of
2019, which was due to the increase in operation of Huizhou
Production Base and the disposal of some hazardous waste
from 2019 during the year.

Wastewater Management

Relevant Policies tHRBIBR

Wastewater and Liquid Waste Control Procedures.

(REKBERIZHIIRZF) °

The wastewater management of the Group is shared by the
Facility Planning Department, the Equipment Department and
the Quality Department. Among which, the Facility Planning
Department is mainly responsible for the maintenance of
domestic wastewater treatment equipment to ensure the
discharge of wastewater is up to standards; the Equipment
Department is mainly responsible for the maintenance
of wastewater collection facilities to ensure no leakage
of industrial wastewater and on penetration of industrial
wastewater into domestic wastewater pipe networks or
rainwater pipe networks; and the Quality Department is mainly
responsible for overseeing the compliance of wastewater
treatment.
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Q USE OF RESOURCES

Relevant Policies HHBEE %

Resource and Energy Control Procedures.

(BREEREHIRRF)

During its operation, the Group adheres to aim of “Reuse,
Recycle and Reduce Waste” by adopting reasonable use
of resources. During the year, in order to further enhance
energy use efficiency, the Group has entrusted a consultancy
company to improve the energy saving upgrade of air
conditioning control system, covering the purchase and
installment of hardware, the development of air conditioning
self-control software, the manufacture and installment of
frequency conversion electricity control cabinet, application for
energy saving subsidies, etc.

Total energy consumption of the Group amounted to 69,085.3
Mwh equivalent during the year, representing a decrease
of 7.4% as compared with 2019. The direct energy use and
indirect energy use during the year recorded a decrease of
29.5% and 7.3% as compared with that of 2019, respectively.
The decrease in the use of direct energy was associated
with the optimization of the production process, the fully
electrification of forklifts in plants, and the decrease in use of
passenger vehicles, while the decrease in the use of indirect
energy was associated with the decrease in production. In
order to improve the efficiency of energy use, the Group
closed the closed tower circulating water for plastic injection
workshop during the seasons without high temperature of
the year. In addition, the Group has also established the
environmental management system, offered regular trainings
to new employees, and conducted regular inspections in all
production bases to ensure energy saving.

Consumption for the year

Use of energy AE/RfE A

Gasoline (GJ) Al (HFEH)

Total energy consumption (Mwh equivalent)
BEREREE JKEREE)

Energy intensify (Mwh equivalent/million HKD revenue) 34.0

EREE(BABETEEENRREE)

rEERAE

BRER

AEBERAESETUEEMNAER - @
WERMBDRE |RREETEENER
R RFEE - R~ SR BERERNK
o AKECDRABRAARETEREN R
mEnREE - MHRBMCEBREEMFEERE
HAREYFRE - BAEHIEEN AR
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[=]
BEMBLERER S o

O S

AREBPAFENEEREEE 5690853
KEBEE M- FEMRLRDT
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THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

Relevant Policies BB %

Emergency Preparation and Response Procedures.

(EREBMEBEIEF) -

In case there are material environmental contingencies
including chemical leakage occurred in the Group, relevant
departments will immediately conduct contingency rescue in
accordance with relevant requirements under the Emergency
Contingency Plan for Environmental Emergencies and the
Emergency Contingency Plan for Safety Production Accidents.
After the emergencies, the EHS manager of the Group will
arrange for the EHS Committee and other relevant personnel
to optimise the emergency response procedures and submit
the same to competent parties for approval.

ACHIEVING HIGH OPERATIONAL EFFICIENCY

During its operation, the Group has always adhered to its
own business principles and is committed to improving our
operational efficiency through the establishment of corruption
reporting channels, supplier selection criteria and product
quality management system.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

Relevant Policies tHRBIBR

EAEEFEERECERRREANNENR

By e Edt  Be A EEIrIRE
[RERBEHESZBERINEELEEN
EEERIFHEAREETESNE - B
EBNEAE  AEEBEEHSKIESEMBENS
ZEgRHEMABABHESEERIZHETT
Bt - WHREEHPIEITEL -

BERSMEE
AEENLEBRT —HEBBASHES
Bl BOBBRYESRRAN  HEES

#
BB REQQEERHE  RALEE
BERE o

Q miras

Ethics and Commercial Behavior Management System, Complaint Management System and Internal Investigation Guide.

(BEABMNMBERTRTESNE)  CRHFEEHE) AR(ABHERES) -

The Group is well aware of the importance of building
integrity corporate culture to the long-term development of an
enterprise. No employee is allowed to take advantage of his/
her position to engage in bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering. The Group welcomes any person or organization
to lodge a complaint regarding any reasonably suspected
corruption case with the Group based on facts. The Group will
handle the complaint on the principle of confidentiality.
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Reporting
channels
B

* Employees can report anonymously in two ways: one is "Chairman Complaint Mailbox"; the other is
scanning QR code through mobile client terminal.

BTMEEMESNETERRE - —REEREHEN] —REBTFHREPHFH _A4T -

The senior management of the Group will screen the details of complaint and dertermine whether further
investigation is needed;

Investigation AEESEHRERFFHETRR  UNEEEEFRE— S AL

. and * Where appropriate, various departments including the Internal Audit Department, the Human Resources

N id Department and the Administrative Department may take part in investigation as requested, to make sure

. evi en'Ce the objectivity and fairness of investigation finds;

. collection EEERT - ABRABEL - ANSRBARTRBEHFI2EES - BEBSERNEBENQLE
. FEENE

After the completion of compliant handling, the findings will be submitted to the senior department for reply,
and the implementaion of rectifications will be monitored.

BRFEMHRERRARASEMLE  TEEBRRTHEOEE -

If the report is substantiated, the informant will be rewarded according to the actual situation; and
FEREE  ARBEREIEBBABETED: &

The person responsible for the violation of the law will be directly transferred to the judicial department for
handling.

BILEENBEEAREEB R AVARBETTRIE

Investigation
findings
HEER

Q SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT Q EIRtpELE

Relevant Policies BB E

Social Responsibility Management System and Supplier Management Processes. Meanwhile, the Group has updated the
Supplier Management Processes during the year.

(HEBEEERHE) AR(HERERIZRF) - B - FEERAFEENT(HERETERF) -

RTIKE (2R BRAE —T_TFFR
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The Group understands the importance of managing the REERQEEHERNORE TR R Y
environmental and social risks of suppliers to the ecosystem REREEEEEENEEN - B 55T il
of the whole supply chain, and has formulated the above R HEERETRREEZ -

policies to strictly screen suppliers.

Q PRODUCT LIABILITY Q Em

Environmental requirements for suppliers

Social requirements for suppliers

HERBRRENR

HERLE EK

Take appropriate emission reduction measures to reduce the o Immediately terminate the cooperation relationship with

negative impact of operation on the surrounding environment. suppliers who use child labour or forced labour.

REGEE R - RELSEHRAEEENEERELE BRI E T alom il 25 T o0 e v BN AR bR & 1ERA R -
Monitor the dangerous substances that may cause harm e Suppliers are prohibited to treat employees in an unequal
to the environment in a timely manner and properly handle way, such as discriminating against employees based on
them. race, religion, nationality and sexual orientation.
REFERATRE BRI EARENRRYE - WETH SRR - BEMERRRATEFREFET - R ITRER - R

- BEERERAET -

¢ Mitigate health and safety risks in the workplace in a timely
manner and comply with all relevant laws and regulations.
LR TESmRREREZ2ER - BFMEREEEE
o

it

5 1

\

Relevant Policies BB %

Product quality: Raw Material Quality Control Procedures, Processing Quality Control Procedures, Finished Product Quality
Control Procedures and Non-conforming Product Control Procedures, etc.

mEAE OBt mEEHNEF)  (REREEHRERF)  (RemEEHEF) RTABRIEHIRE) % -

Customer privacy: Confidentiality Management System.

BEPEL (REBEEGE) -

Intellectual property: Intellectual Property Management System.

FBERE - CARERERHIE) -
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Product Quality

The Group has always attached great importance to the
management of product quality. In the process of product

RE - HERERRS

EmEE

AEE-RERHREREENER  £F
mBUERBIET - EREEFEUL - B

manufacturing, the Group has taken five major steps: first R K ABEfIRBRIANESERBAERS

article sampling, first article confirmation, patrol inspection,

B BORREMNEENAHERESR -

pre-warehousing inspection and delivery inspection to ensure
that product quality can meet relevant requirements.

First article
sampling

BFE

First article
. confirmation

B HER

Patrol
inspection .
g

Pre-warehousing
inspection

UNEE]
it

Delivery
inspection

hE R

First article sampling is applicable to the first production, restart after 12 hours of planned shutdown,
restart after 4 hours of abnormal shutdown, production process adjustment, etc.
BHFPEBEARERIRE « sEIER12 R FER - EREEY N SERUAREELS

Verify the net weight, appearance, size and function of the first sample according to customer
requirements or engineering drawings, and record the verification results in the confirmation form of the
first plastic injection article.

BIEEPERNTIRELR  HEEERNFE - INR - RTRINBEETRE - BELRE

BR OB EHHERE) -

Plastic injection process: inspect the defective products occurred on machine every two hours, and timely
point out any problem to operator for correction.

AT : GWRRE—REA TR G - ERMERKMRIESIELE -

Secondary processing technology: patrol the production line once an hour, and timely point out any
problem to operator for correction.

TRNITE  §OREEREES  BERMERKSERIESIELE -

Taking engineering samples, quality inspection instructions, general standards and other relevant data as
criteria, conduct sampling inspection on products manufactured at time intervals.

ATEER - MERRESE  BRREURAGEREN LR ZRHERY S EERMERRE

According to client’s special requirements and internal control requirements, check shipping notice against
physical products and label information, and conduct general sampling, including dimension test and
performance test.

RIBEPRRERIARABEHIER - BC(EERME) BREYRIERESETRY  WET KM - 25
R R0Rl R g Al

RIKE (k) BRAR =
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During the year, the Group received a total of 10 complaints,
all of which are related to product quality. In this regard, the
Group has implemented various approaches to strengthen
product quality control, such as changing the angle of spray
gun, changing the temperature control device of hot press
machine and adding temperature control alarm devices.

Customer Privacy

The Group understands that protecting customer’s privacy
is an important way of realising good corporate governance.
The Confidentiality Management System stipulates that
confidential information of any business partners and other
connected persons shall be protected and all staff are required
to sign the Employee Confidentiality Agreement, promising
guaranteeing customer’s privacy against any infringement.

Intellectual Property

In the Group, the Legal Department is responsible for the
management of intellectual property. If an employee obtains
a patent certificate related to the nature of his/her work,
the Group will grant him/her rewards of different degrees.
Meanwhile, the Group also undertakes not to infringe
intellectual property rights during the cooperation with any
partner.

At present, the operations of the Group do not involve any
product advertisement and use of label. In the future, the
Group will update relevant policies depending on its business
development.

GROWTH WITH COMMUNITY

AEBENAFELEE10RTFPERSF - KF
EMHEEREERMA - Rl AREDK
DENERAE  FRABRREENEKE
ARIE IR BRI RE R B SR - RY
EmEEEH -

EFR

AEERARREEFPEBLEERRIFOEE
AMEET N - (REERDE) P E AR
B EREBHEEMBERABRNRLE
BHZAEERE - AR - IEEIHEE
E(EIREWHR)  AHREFEPEALTE
(EFI

HBERE

AEBEREGHFIBENBRERNEET
- EETRNITIFHRESEIIELEERH
MEMNES  AIXAEESKE T TREENE
B - R - NEE A RER S ERH
BIFRERET - MRILE MBEERE -

BRl - AEEZEER I RERRS T
BER - AR AEESHEEBRE - B
FATAERIRER -

BEHERERRE

Relevant Policies BB %

Policy of Community Investment, Donation and Sponsorship Management.

(HRE BREREDEEHIE) -

The Group has always concerned about the development
of the local community where it operates. During the year,
under the guidance of the Policy of Community Investment,
Donation and Sponsorship Management, the Group placed
"public welfare activities" as its major investment area.

AEE-ERLEEMEMTENER £
(MERERE  BENREDERGIE)NES
T ARERAFESER 258 HER
TEREHE -

72 TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020



RE  HEREERS

Area of concern

BrEE Case study for the year Z"EERPIHE

Public welfare e In June of this year, the chairman of the trade union of the Group, together with relevant
activities personnel from the Government of Guangming District, visited Gongming Welfare House and
NETEH donated a batch of materials of love to the welfare house, such as ventilators, electric beds, fruits

and semi-liquid food. The chairman of the trade union of the Group stated that TK Group has been
adhering to the concept of “taking from the society and giving back to the society” and has been
continuously devoting to various social public welfare and charity undertakings.

RAFEARA  AFEETISERERABREMEBAE —TRRE T RABAE - mEFRBET
PR - EBR KRARFERERME—HRELOYE - AEETIEEFERT  RISEG —EFRK
[z itE  BERtE HIES  TERAZSEHE L AGEEMBESTEED -

e The Group has been committed to taking part in welfare activities serving the society and
giving back to the society. During the year, the employees of the Group actively participated
in the “Good deeds-driven Guangming Relief Plan” launched by Shenzhen Guangming Charity
Federation, contributing bit by bit to welfare, and donated approximately RMB15,000 for major
medical assistance to the needy people covered by Guangming Charity Federation.
REE-—HEFNRBRBEHE  BNELAENESEY - AFE AEEETIEB2HEARIKAESE
FEMSTXAKREEE] - £/ 5 KAE  HEPDAREHN—EBERTIT ARAHERRSSRH
ABREREZERE) -

e Upon the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group donated 1,000 surgical gowns, 142 protective clothing
and 10,024 medical masks to the affiliated hospitals of Sun Yat-sen University immediately and
another RMB200,000 to Shenzhen Guangming Charity Federation for supporting the front-line
prevention and control of the outbreak.

RITE R GRS  REE Bl L RS2SR i T MK 1,00014F  BimERR 1424 A K
10,024fEEAOE - AFARYITHBREZSSEBARE208 T ARIERENBHALZIEN
— R TE -

During the year, the total community investment made by the REE  AEB(RFEEBLOEEE2208
Group amounted to approximately HK$2,200,000. JC °

RIEE (Z=K) BRAR —T-TFFH 73
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COMPLIANCE

QCOMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND

REGULATIONS

Aspect
Bm

A1 Emissions

E235 ¢

Relevant laws and
regulations

HEEEER

e The Environmental
Protection Law
of the People’s
Republic of China

(hEARAMBR
BREE)

e The Water Pollution
Prevention and
Control Law of the
People’s Republic of
China

(PEARAMBIK
BRPIAE)

e The Atmospheric
Pollution Prevention
Law of the People's
Republic of China
(hEARFEMBEKXR
RFRGIEE)

Compliance disclosure

BRELRE

The Group was not
aware of any violation
related to emissions
during the year.
REBRE A MR
PERUAERA R B R B R E

=

ZE o

BRER

Major impacts on
the Group
HAEEMERNERTE

The Group may

be subject to
administrative
penalties, and in
case of severe
circumstances, be
ordered to suspend
production and

operation.
REE AR BITBUR
£ B ER AR
SEERE -

Q impzesmmsrmn

Methods for ensuring
the compliance

of these laws and
regulations

BB 75 5%

Comply with the
requirements under
environmental laws,
establish system to
avoid, reduce and
control environmental
pollution result from
daily operation as

much as possible, and
handle and disposal of
emissions in accordance
the requirements of
national laws and
regulations.
BFRBREEERT
FETHIER =R R - WD
Mz BB g EMEH
RIRSE - WIREZUER
JER B SRR IE MR B HER
) o

B1 Employment
EE

e The Labour Law
of the People's
Republic of China
(R AR HEME L
;%)

e The Labour Contract
Law of the People's
Republic of China
(hEARKEMBE S
BEREE)

e The Law of the
People's Republic
of China on the
Protection of
Women's Rights
and Interests
(hEARKEMEF
TRERIREE)

e The Social Insurance
Law of the People's
Republic of China

(PEARAMBEM
SIREBIE)

The Group was not
aware of any violation
related to employment
during the year.
AR E R A IR
EFEEENEEERE

B

The Group may

be subject to
administrative penalties,
face legal litigations and
suffer damage to its
external image.
REEA R RITHE
5 ERRAEFARDE
HIMNTERFAE -

The Human Resources
Department has
formulated different
policies in accordance
with relevant laws,
and has adhered the
principles of openness,
fairness and justice

in the selection and
employment of talents.
AN ERHBPIE IZERAEH
EEERBIFTTRIE
IERE AFIAARA o
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Aspect
=]

B2 Health and
safety
REEZS

B4 Labour
standards

grkg|

Relevant laws and
regulations

HEEEEER

e The Production
Safety Law of the
People’'s Republic of
China
(REARKEMER
BHEE)

e The Law of the
People's Republic of
China on Prevention
and Control of
Occupational

Disease
(G EYNEE )
¥EmYaE)

e The Fire Protection
Law of the People's
Republic of China

(REARKAABDE
B>

e The Labour Law
of the People's
Republic of China
(hE AR FEME L
;%)

e The Law of the
People’'s Republic
of China on the
Protection of
Juveniles
(R EARFEMBER
RE NREE)

Compliance disclosure

SRERRE

The Group was not
aware of any violation
on health and safety
during the year.
REERF AL ML H
RBERZZHEENELE
AR -

The Group was not
aware of any violation of
labour standards during
the year.
REERNF A MR E
5 TAERIEERNERER
(FES

Major impacts on
the Group
HEEEERNERTE

Major safety accidents
and occupational
disease risk can

cause the Group to

be penalised and its
employee to be injured.
BALEEHRBERR
B ] B 28 BUAN 5% 1B 44 B &1
LRETIRTE-

The Group may

be subject to
administrative penalties,
face legal litigations and
suffer damage to its
external image.

REE AR BITHUE
gl - mEREEFARRAF
HIMERFIE -

B HeakERRE

Methods for ensuring
the compliance

of these laws and
regulations
BREFELEER
BB %

Provide staff with
mechanical safety
protection equipment
and personal protective
equipment, organize
three-level safety
education and training,
and perform works in
accordance with safety
operation guidelines.

M B THeMt#mz 2%
BAEARBEASRAR
WHBET=REEHE
Bl - BRI EES
HEITIHE

The Group forbids the
use of child labour and
forced labour, and has
developed remedies to
timely deal with misuse
of child labour and
forced labour.
REBEREGRAET KRR
HlEE T - 2 2 HIET R RE
M ARERERAET
K& 4 THRER °

RI&EE (ZR) ERAR —T-TFFH
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Relevant laws and
regulations

HEEEEER

Aspect
=]

B6 Product e The Product Quality
responsibility Law of the People’s
EREE Republic of China

(hE AR FEMEE
mEE%E)

e The Patent Law
of the People's
Republic of China
(REARKENER
FE)

B7 Anti- e The Law of the
corruption People’s Republic of
RES China Against Unfair

Competition
(hEARKEME R
TEEHRFE)

e The Anti-Money
Laundering Law
of the People’s
Republic of China
(hE ARKEME R
HER)

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020

Compliance disclosure

SRERRE

The Group was not
aware of any violation
related to product
responsibility during the
reporting period.
REERARIRE BN &
EREERBEEERNE
SREMER -

The Group did not
receive any corruption
lawsuits against

the enterprise or its
employee, and did not
have any violations

of relevant laws and
regulations that have
significant influences
on the Group during the
reporting period.
REERRREHNLEZ
BUEHPESESRY
WEITFHFARM  THEA
EREAEEBEEATE
EARRRERE IR -

Major impacts on
the Group
HEEEERNERTE

The Group may face
return of goods by client
or consumer, causing
significant economic
losses.
REFFREHEPIOHE
ERE - ERBRENKE
1Bk o

There may be an
increase in the Group's
operating costs, causing
economic losses.
AR B E)EIER AN -
EREEERK -

Methods for ensuring
the compliance

of these laws and
regulations
BB %

The Group and its
supply chain have
implemented a strict
quality management
system to ensure
product quality at each
session is in compliance
with relevant laws and
regulations and client’s
requirements.

NGB R B RATT
BEEEHE  BREE
RETWMEREIERAR
ERREPENK .

Stipulate in the
Employee Handbook the
code of conduct that
must be followed by
employees, and adopt
zero-tolerance policies
for illegal actions such
as corruption and
bribery.
(BIFM)BFIAEIL
EETHITRSTR  BHE
5 B EE AT RIRER
TRBEBEE -



OVERVIEW OF KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Q Environmental performance

Key performance indicators of
the environment

REBBERER

During the year
BEE

B HeakERRE

HEENERAE

§ mamzn

Type of emissions and relevant data $E Y EE R EBEHEREE

Respirable suspended particulates (PM)
AR A SRZRLF (PM)

Non-methane hydrocarbon (NMHC)
FEF LTI (NMHC)

Volatile organic compounds (VOC)

BEEEBRIAM(VOC)

Respirable suspended particulates (PM)
AT A SRZRLF (PM)

643.3

Scope | — Direct emission

BEN - BRI

tonnes of CO2 equivalent

AW ELiREE

Sco e |l — Indirect emission

I2 k37

tonnes of CO:z equivalent
AP tikEE

Scope Il - Indirect emission

#0E3 - RPN

tonnes of CO:z equivalent

R — (LR E £

Greenhouse gas emissions in total
BERBBYNE

tonnes of CO2 equivalent

R — (LR E S

Greenhouse gas intensity (as per revenue)

RERBRE (ABEATE)

tonnes of CO:z equivalent/
m|II|on HKD .
RE—EiE 8 BEEE

Hazardous waste produced in total

EEBENMEELS

Hazardous waste intensity
(as per revenue)

BEREEYNZE ABRAGTH)

tonnes/million HKD

N VR Y 1

5 Data calculation is based on the test reports of production bases in

Shenzhen headquarters, Suzhou and Huizhou.

5

IR F ARG AEERN - FINEERMR
BN AEER M RBIRE -

RTIKE (2R BRAE —T_TFFR
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Key performance indicators of
the environment

RERRENIER REE

During the year

Non-hazardous waste in total EEEEYEE

Non-hazardous waste produced in total 1,740.5

BEBENMEELE

Non-hazardous waste intensity 0.86
(as per revenue)

BEEENZE(ARAGTH)

tonnes/million HKD

N BB

Direct energy BE#RER 462.9
Indirect energy E# 4R 68,956.7
Energy intensity (as per revenue) 34.0

BEREE ABMAGTE)

Mwh/million HKD
kEEBEBE

Water consumption intensity (as per revenue) 124

FEREE CARAGE)

m?/million HKD
MK BB

Packing materials in total B&HEEE 2,011.2

Packing materials intensity (as per revenue) 1.0

BEMHEE CARAGE)

tonnes/million HKD

AW BBBE

Distribution of employees
ETAES

Male B4

AR Greening staff -t A B

Total number of
new employees®

METAANHE

Number of resigned
employees®

BERS T AHE

6 The number of dispatched staff was included. Due to the nature of the
industry, the turnover rate of dispatched employees is relatively high.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020
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B L RRE

B
i
>3d
off

Occupational safety and health performance
BEZEZREREN Total #5%

Number and percentage of work-related deaths for the past 0
three years

BE=FRTREMETHARZLE

Number of work-related injuries Bl L5 A% 5
Number of working days lost due to work-related injuries 157
HIEEEAIERR

Percentage of

Trained employees Total Average
employee receiving training training
Distribution of employees distribution training’ hours hours®
BT AEDMH BEINE D BIEELAT | BIERE FIIE I EE
Male 5514 2,299 1,671 59.7% 14,537.0 6.3
Gender
4 R
5] Female Z 1% 1,766 1,060 40.3% 8,450.8 4.8
18-30 years old 18-305% 1,162 842 32.0% 6,645.0 5.7
%ﬁ 31-45 years old 31-455% 2,615 1,640 62.3% 15,057.3 5.8
Above 45 years old 45554 288 149 5.7% 1,285.5 4.5
Total number of employees receiving training 5l AZ 2,631 64.7% 22,987.8 5.7
Region where suppliers are located £ EE i it B Number of suppliers it ERE &
Mainland China A B3 A 1,830
Hong Kong &b 194
Others H bl 128
Total &5t 2,152
Percentage of suppliers who implement the practices 100%

HITIE DA A L)

Product quality EREE Total #5t+

Percentage of products that shall be recalled® for safety and 0.03%
health reasons
FEZ 2 miEREHAR KR "D

=
c
3
o
19)
N
o

f complaints related to products or service 10
R E m e RIS IR R 8 B

\a

7 Percentage of employees receiving training is calculated by dividing the 7 EIEBEMAEAFRNASETEANEERIIA
number of trained employees of specific category by the number of trained 8/ ZIES -
employees.

8 Average training hours is calculated by dividing the total training hours 8 FHEEIESENAEFRAETEEENAEZTI
received by employees of specific category by the total number of e ETEHENESBAY -

employees of such category.

9 Products were recalled mainly due to poor appearance. 9 FERERINETRFTERMEIL

RTIKE (2R BRAE —T_TFFR
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JHCHERAEY

CONTENT INDEX TO THE ESG REPORTING (RE - HERERBEESIIRE
GUIDE A

Subject Areas Content Page
TEHE AR BiF&E5|

A1 Emissions $E3 4

General Disclosure Information on: 62-66, 74

R FHBERREREHN - AKRLHOEES  EERBEEEEYNELSH

(a) the policies; and
(a) B5R : &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

(o) BFHBEITABERZENHBMERZRBANER -

A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data 65, 77
PER e R K AR F B BUE

A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity 63, 77
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility)
RERBAENE (UABHE) R (ER)BE(MNEES SN - BIEREAE)

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) 77
FEEREEEDHEE (AETE)

Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) 78
FEEEREEZEYHES (AETE)

A1.5 Description of measures to mjtigate emissions and results achieved 64-65
FAURE R R BV B S PSR

A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, reduction 66
initiatives, and results achieved )
HIMEIBEERBEEEMN T E  REESEHREERTEKRR

General Disclosure  Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw 67

—RRHEER materials
BRERER(BIEER - KREARMED B

A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in 67,78
total (kWh in "000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility)
AREIS M EE & REIEER(NE - Asoh) BREATETREBHE) R
FE(WAGES B - BHERETE)

A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per 78
facility)
BFEKERTE(MNEES SN - BHERMAE

A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved 67
L BE R AR a5 & R FTIS AR

A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,  The Group has no
water efficiency initiatives and results achieved issue in sourcing
FAUSKEUGE KR E R BRI - LARIRF RKB a8l R s R water

REEESREUKIR
EEE
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, 78

with reference to per unit produced

SR EAAREMHNEE (UM E) R(ER) BEESELGE
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RE  HEREERS

Subject Areas Content Page
TEEE AR BB RL|

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources BiE R X R &R

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and 68

—RE natural resources
BIREITAHRRERARAREREREATENBER

A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and 68
natural resources and the actions taken to manage them
HMEBEDEHRERAARBERNEATZERERNEEEELENTE

General Disclosure Information on: 59, 74
—RIE BRI LEE  BERERF  TERS - BE - FEEE 2ok REBRUKE
i fFsRENY

(a) the policies; and

(a) BUE : &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
(b) BFHBEITABEAZENHBEERLBRANER -
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group, and geographical 78
region
R B - FEAR KRS S KRB B
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group, and geographical region 78
LM - FEME R R ibE B 5 B E B AR

General Disclosure Information on: 57,75
—REE FHREZE2TERRIREREB#EE2BEEFED

(a) the policies; and
(a) BSK : &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

(b) BFHBETABERFENABERZRRIINER -

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities 79

HTERBE ML T A A b &

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury 79
ATEEARTIERE
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how they = 57-59

are implemented and monitored

R PTER AN R R 2 5 - ARMBBRITRER A

RI&EE (ZR) ERAR —T-TFFH
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Subject Areas Content Page
TEEE AR BB RL|

B3 Development and Training 3 /& & %3l

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at  60-61
— MR E work. Description of training activities.
EBRARERITT TEBE N AH RREERNBER < IHFINES) -
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g. 79
senior management, middle management)
RUEFIREEEN (SR EERE PREZES)FNNZIIEEESIL
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee 79
category

ZURIRERRRE D S8R EATRZIIN TR

General Disclosure Information on: 59, 75

—RRIE BRADT LB T ekoa |2 TH) -

(a) the policies; and

(a) B &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour.
(b) BTFHBETAGERTENEBEEKAEOOER -
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and 60
forced labour
FEIR TR E I A FE He A SR B T Je o il 45 T

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered 60

R HIE R IT IS BERR B B ISR ER e 22 5)

General Disclosure  Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain 69

— MRk EE EIRH RS RN Rt g BRI

B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region 79
i@ S DR HEREE

B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers 70, 79
where the practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and
monitored
AR B EERES - MERTEREMNNEEREE  ARBREND
HITRERTA

General Disclosure Information on: 70, 76
— IR BRMMBEHERMREHRRERZS BS - RELLBEEARBERAER

(a) the policies; and
(a) BE: &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact
on the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.
(o) BFHBITABERTENHBERZLRONER -
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and 79

health reasons
EENEEXEMAHTRAL 2 HERIBAMARWN A S L
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Subject Areas Content Page
TEEE AR BB RL|

B6.2

Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are
dealt with
BEANEMRRGHRFEE U REH A

72,79

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property
rights
Tt B R N R PR SR RS RO 1E D

Description of quality assurance process
S ST BE

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are
implemented and monitored

BB EEBRRERALEBER - ARBEERITRERA

General Disclosure

—RIE

Information on:

B IEFRE 1R - HEFRERER -
(a) the policies; and

(a) BUE : &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

(b) BTHETABEAZENERMERLRONER -

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against
the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases

R

REHFAANHETASHREERHECBENE)THARFOBE KA

oH

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how they
are implemented and monitored

R B S R B WIR T - U RAEBRITRER A

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

BHNAHBR2EREREENEHRBETENEREILRKZDHSEELRFIEMBK

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour
needs, health, culture, sport)
FIERBE(NHE  BREFHE  SIFK - @BF- Ut 8BE)

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area

EETBEME B ER(NEELRRHE)

RTIKE (2R BRAE —T_TFFR
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The Board has pleasure in presenting the annual report and the
audited accounts of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020.

The principal activities of the Company is investment holding.
Principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 12 to the
financial statements.

An analysis on revenue and operation of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020 by principal activities and places of
operation is set out in Note 5 to the financial statements.

The Group’'s business review for the year ended 31 December
2020, which includes a discussion on principal risks and
uncertainties facing by the Group, an analysis of the Group's
performance using financial key performance indicators, particulars
of important events affecting the Group during the year, and an
indication of likely future developments in the Group's business
is set out in the sections headed “Financial Highlights” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report.
In addition, discussions on the Group's environmental policies,
relationships with its key stakeholders and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on
the Group are also set out in the sections headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate Governance Report” and
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report”.

BEEEMARIREANEEFHE202012A31H
IEFERNFRMAEETRE ©

ARAMEBEBRIREZER - HEA TN
EEEBENRM B RRMEI2 -

AREEHZE2020F12A31HILFER T B
BREEMEE D 2 WS R AEE DI TE R BT
TEIRRMIFED o

AEBEE20206F12 831 H EFEMEKE
B PEFRABEASEMEEEERR K
THHAEZMNNR EREEVBERER
HAEBXRBENONT  XEASENEES
G B RERNEEXGRRERNTER - &
RAFE®m [BBHEIR [EEENRRINT]
Ao AN BREAASEIRRIE - X245
MDENBERRETHEBEEREZRO TR
RIBEENRESIT]  [REERRE IR
[R5 - g RER/WME A -



The Group's results for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
page 111.

It is the policy of the Board, in considering the payment of
dividends, to allow shareholders of the Company to participate
in the Company's profits whilst retaining adequate reserves for
the Group's future growth. The Board shall consider the following
factors before declaring or recommending dividends:

e the Group's actual and expected financial performance;

e retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the members of the Group;

e the Group's working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements and future expansion plans;

e the Group's liquidity position;

e general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group's
business and other internal or external factors that may have
an impact on the business or financial performance and
position of the Company; and

e other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The payment of dividend is also subject to compliance with
applicable laws and regulations including the laws of the Cayman
Islands and the Articles. The Board will continually review the said
dividend policy from time to time and there can be no assurance
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any given
period.

After considering the above-mentioned factors, the Board has
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.08 per
share for the year ended 31 December 2020 to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
at the close of business on Tuesday, 8 June 2021, amounting to a
total of approximately HK$66,661,000. The proposed final dividend
is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM"). The final
dividend, if approved, is expected to be paid on Monday, 21 June
2021.

AREEEE2020F 12831 HIEFENEES
REBEVMENE HFERERER °

EXeEBRIREDIRE  RANBRE—
THBARBRBRRDZFARB G - FRFTE
BRARBUHEAEERRERZA &%
SHEEMRBEREZREBRERN BEET
IR

o AEEMERMIEAIIEES

o ARBRAKEZKE RBINRFRE LG F
MAIDBECFEES

o AEEMBEBEAER  BAHXEX
KR FIERERTE

o AEEMRBESNN

s EEREMN AKEXBOREER
H - ARBARAER  MEEENHT
BRI EF ENE ALK INMER
ES3

s EFXERA/HBNEMARE-

ZNYNCIVENE S SS WIS IS H i E0b T DS
7l - BREREFRSEMLAN  EFSKHE
BRI DR EBE X TMRESHEME
a4 PRR N E AR E SRR E

KEREMEZR EF2EZEMMN202156
ASH(EH D) EXKEARKRIARQ R
fix 57 & i &9 AR 3R (< # 22020412 A31 B
IEFEMRIREFR00BE L + AHEL
66,661,000/ 7T - B AHAKREEARAEQ
AEERRBFAS([RREFAE]) L&
SRR HEfE o anERLE - TEHAREIR B8R
2021568218 (28 —)IKfT »



For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM
to be held on Monday, 31 May 2021, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 26 May 2021 to
Monday, 31 May 2021, both dates inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be eligible
to attend and vote at the AGM, unregistered shareholders of
the Company should ensure that all share transfer documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, are lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's
Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, 25 May 2021.

For determining the entitlement to the aforesaid proposed
final dividend, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Friday, 4 June 2021 to Tuesday, 8 June 2021, both
dates inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to be qualified for the proposed final dividend,
unregistered holders of shares of the Company should ensure that
all share transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, are lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong at the above address for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 3 June 2021.

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the past
five financial years is set out on page 208. The summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.

Details of the movement in the Group's property, plant and
equipment during the year are set out in Note 13 to the financial
statements.

Particulars of the bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2020 are set out in Note 26 to the financial statements.

Details of the movement in the Company’s share capital during the
year are set out in Note 21 to the financial statements.

AEEHFESR2021FE5 8318 (E#—)&
THRFBEFASTRE LRENER - A
AEI¥E2021F5A26H (EH=)E20214
5A3MB(EH ) (EEMARETEAN)EE
MEROBEELTE  HESTeIEE
AIRPDBFER - RTEEREFERRBS
AT RE ERE  AARRDHRELH
B ANBBRABRMDBE XH4ERABBERE
TER2021F5 258 (28 =) T 4830
DRERRNABEEROBEERDEREE
HFELTARAR (AL AB B2/ RNER183
SRA MR B4R ) I IR B FE o

RETHR EMZERRAREHERS - AR
A E2021546 A48 (28R )E202146 A
SH(EH=)(HEMABEEN)EEHER
DB/EERLFE BT EEITMKRYD
BPER - AFEERKDMEZRHARE -
RAFRGOORBLRIFE ABBRAERMD
WP EREEKRENER202156 A3H
(E2HM) T 4R305 R E M0 AR AY
RARBBBRNDBEELDRMIEELFE -

AEEBEREANBFENRE BERA
BEHMEHNF208E  ZMEIL FEKE
BT BRI D -

AEEYE  BELRRERERNEBNFB
BRI BRI EE1S -

AREEMN2020F12 A31 HRRITEEFHEH
R BTSRRI FE26 ©

RRABRAREARNE S FBHP I EHRE
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There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders of
the Company.

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

Details of the movement in reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in Notes 21, 22, 23, 24
and Note 35(a) to the financial statements and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 185 to 187, page 204, and
pages 114 to 115 respectively.

As at 31 December 2020, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands amounted to approximately HK$490,563,000
(2019: HK$498,718,000), of which approximately HK$66,661,000
has been proposed as a final dividend for the year.

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2020 were around HK$2,194,000 (2019:
HK$3,849,000).

MAKHEHSEVLEERELEZR
E - BRARBERLGIRA R B H R B K
REBEHB

AN T R H AR B A TR E A S E 20204
12A31BIEFEEE » HEsEBELOARRME
Al L& -

REBRARBREBERFRNESHFED B
HNE185E 1878 * 5204 B M B B Rk & MY
5521~ 22~ 23~ 2481 7E35(a) AR FE 1145
1MEREHEREER -

R2020F 12 A31H » AR AIRECHS
BERARAEA)ENAHSRFEEHELN A
490,563,000 7T (20194 : 498,718,000/%

JC) B 466,661,000/ T2 EZ KN A
FRERERL S

AREBREZE2020F12 831 B IEFE1E
H ) AR ZE B 20 492,194,000 7T (2019 4F -
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEEwE=S(E)

DIRECTORS

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:
Executive Directors

Mr. Li Pui Leung

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy
Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

Pursuant to the Articles, Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael, Mr.
Cheung Fong Wa and Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong will retire at the AGM
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
AGM.

PARTICULARS OF BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Particulars of biographies of directors and senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 25 to 30 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of directors’ remuneration and those of the five highest
paid individuals in the Group are set out in Notes 36 and 8 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

Each of the executive directors entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 20
December 2019, which may be terminated by either party giving
not less than three months’ notice in writing.
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The Company has issued a letter of appointment to each of the
independent non-executive directors for a term of three years
commencing from 20 December 2019, unless terminated by either
party giving not less than three months’ notice in writing.

No director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
agreement which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”
in this report and Note 34 (Related Party Transactions) to the
financial statements, no director nor a connected entity of a
director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contract of significance in relation
to the business of the Group to which the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
under review.

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme”
and “Share Award Scheme"” below, at no time during the year
was the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements and the objects
of or one of the objects of such arrangements is/are to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debt securities, including debentures, of
the Company or any other body corporate.

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.
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As at 31 December 2020, the interests of the directors or chief
executive of the Company in the shares of the Company which
were recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to
Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO"),
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code (Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules),
were as follows:

Long position in the shares of the Company

Name of director

EEgE B REEME
Mr. Li Pui Leung (“Mr. Li")
(Note 1)
P REE(TENREE]D) RiEEH AR ER (1)
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael
(“Mr. Yung”)
SEALRE(SHEE]D

(Note 2)
SR AB RS (fF2)

Mr. Lee Leung Yiu (“Mr. Lee")

(Note 3)
FTREBAEE(ZREBEAE]D SR AB RS (HaE3)

Notes:

1. These shares were held by Eastern Mix Company Limited (“Eastern Mix") (for
350,974,000 shares) and Lead Smart Development Limited (“Lead Smart”)
(for 89,400,000 shares) respectively. The issued share capital of Eastern Mix is
owned as to 45%, 28% and 27% by Mr. Li, Mr. Yung and Mr. Lee, respectively;
and Lead Smart is wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Li. As Eastern Mix and
Lead Smart are controlled corporations of Mr. Li, he is deemed to be interested
in these shares held by these two corporations pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

2. These shares were held by Cheer Union Development Ltd. (“Cheer Union"”), a
corporation wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Yung.

3. These shares were held by Normal Times International Limited (“Normal
Times"), a corporation wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Lee.

The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares involved divided by the
number of the Company's issued shares as at 31 December 2020.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
directors nor chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in shares or underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which has been recorded in the
register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

Capacity/Nature of interests

Interests in controlled corporations

Interests in controlled corporation

Interests in controlled corporation

M2020F 128318 * RARESEHHE=ITH
ABRARR AR GD BB BREE S K
BB ([#EH R EEEG ]) 5352 K87
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PRI EMARBIMER10) 21& AN 7 KB 22 B
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

Number of shares the Company*
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440,374,000 52.85%
55,620,000 6.67%
53,640,000 6.44%

Byt

1. ZEROIINBEERERAAR(IER]) (4
350,974,000/ & fn ) k&2 EERBR AR ([ L2HE])
(589,400,000 & 7)) F A - ERHEBEITRASD
BEZFTRIELE  FEERTRBAEEFFI5%
28% K&27% i BHN  BREEL B RIZHIZ
B ARERRTEAT TR AEENZRGER -
HMIRIBEBE AR BEEREXVE - HRIRR AR ZHRE
ARIFH RGP

2. ZEBOBAXERARAIF(ELDFEE  ZA
AESEEZERE RIET -

3. RERMBESERERIR(ERDIFE @ %2
AHFERIBRERE A RIS o

* BEDLIEMY R TR E BRIAR AN 20206
12H31BEB#THRMNEA -

B R BEESN - 120209128318 »
BANABEERARSTHRABRARAKE
FRAREE(EE RES KBS EHEXV
)RR - BB ESTBEIRIEES
MERE B 36216 E T 7 &M E LM AT
RIS SOA R - ARBIZESRI M
KRB KRB TR RS SRR o



As at 31 December 2020, the following corporations had interests

in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company as

recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the

Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or as known by the

Company:

Long position in the shares of the Company

Name of shareholder

RRE R

Eastern Mix (Note 1)
SR(MET)

Lead Smart (Note 1)
ZB(MEET)

Cheer Union (Note 2)
S (K aE2)

Normal Times (Note 3)

s (HE3)

Value Partners Group Limited
(Note 4)
BEEEBR AT (HE4)

Value Partners High-Dividend
Stocks Fund
BESEREES

FIL Limited (Note 5)
FIL Limited(H7#£5)

Pandanus Partners L.P. (Note 5)
Pandanus Partners L.P.(#755)

Pandanus Associates Inc. (Note 5)
Pandanus Associates Inc.(#f35)

Capacity/Nature of interests

510,/ EEME

Beneficial owner

Interest in controlled corporations
RPEHDEE

Beneficial owner

EREAA

Interest in controlled corporations
SPEHAE S

Interest in controlled corporations
SPEHAE S

Interest in controlled corporations
SPEHAE S

M20205612A31H - RRFIREFSKEE
GBI 336 KR EEBRARATFENRREE
ARSI B ARRIFTA - LT EBESR
RAFIS5% A ERIE BTN A

RAEXBRBHOEFRE

Number of shares

RDBE

350,974,000

89,400,000

55,620,000

53,640,000

48,996,000

47,172,000

50,214,000

50,214,000

50,214,000

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the Company*
RZA A B HIBEA
RET DL
42.12%

10.73%

6.67%

6.44%

5.88%

5.66%

6.03%

6.03%

6.03%



Notes:

1. The above interests of Eastern Mix and Lead Smart were also disclosed as the
interests of Mr. Li in the above section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’'s
Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”.

2. The above interests of Cheer Union were also disclosed as the interests of Mr.
Yung in the above section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests in

Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”.

3.  The above interests of Normal Times were also disclosed as the interests of Mr.
Lee in the above section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”.

4. These 48,996,000 shares were held by Value Partners Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Value Partners Hong Kong Limited, which in turn was a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Value Partners Group Limited. Accordingly, Value Partners
Hong Kong Limited and Value Partners Group Limited were deemed to be
interested in these shares pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

5. Pandanus Associates Inc. is a general partner of Pandanus Partners L.P.,
which in turn owns as to 37.01% in FIL Limited. FIL Limited was deemed to
be interested in these 50,214,000 shares of the Company through a series of
subsidiaries. Accordingly, Pandanus Associates Inc., Pandanus Partners L.P. and
FIL Limited were deemed to be interested in these shares pursuant to Part XV of
the SFO.

* The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares involved divided by the
number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2020.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no person,
other than the directors and chief executive of the Company
whose interests are set out in the section headed “Directors’
and Chief Executive's Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” above, had any interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register of interests required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO.

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 29 November
2013 (the “Share Option Scheme") for the purpose of providing
incentives or rewards to eligible participants (including employees,
executives or officers, directors including non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors, advisers, consultants,
suppliers, customers and agents of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries) for their contribution to the long term growth of the
Group and to enable the Company to attract and retain high caliber
employees.
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The Share Option Scheme became effective on the date of the
Company's listing (20 December 2013) and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date.

The total number of securities of the Company available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme was 73,340,000 shares,
representing approximately 8.80% of the shares of the Company
in issue as at the date of this annual report. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options granted to each
eligible participant in the Share Option Scheme (including both
exercised and outstanding options) within any 12-month period
is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any
grant or further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting. A grant
of share options under the Share Option Scheme to a director,
chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their associates, is subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors (excluding any independent
non-executive director who is the grantee of the Options). In
addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any
of their associates, which would result in the shares issued and to
be issued, upon exercise of all options already granted and to be
granted (including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding),
to such person in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of the grant in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price
of the Company's shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5
million, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
30 days from the date of offer upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determined by the directors, save
that such a period shall not be more than 10 years from the date
of offer of the share options and subject to the provisions for early
termination as set out in the Share Option Scheme. There is no
requirement of a minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised.
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The exercise price of the share options shall be not less than the
highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's
shares on the date of offer of the share options, which must be a
date on which the Stock Exchange is open for business of dealing
in securities; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company'’s shares for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the
Company on the date of offer.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no outstanding
share option for the subscription of new shares held by any parties.

The Company adopted a share award scheme on 25 February
2019 (the “Share Award Scheme"”) as means to recognise the
contribution by the Group's personnel and to provide them
with incentives to retain them for the continual operation and
development of the Group. The shares of the Company to be
awarded under the Share Award Scheme will be purchased by
the trustee from the open market out of cash contributed by the
Group or subscribed by the trustee when allotted and issued by
the Company under a general mandate granted or to be granted by
the shareholders of the Company from time to time to allot, issue
or otherwise deal with the Company’s shares in accordance with
the Listing Rules for the purpose of the trust and be held on trust
for the Eligible Participants (as defined under the Share Award
Scheme) (other than Excluded Participants (as defined under the
Share Award Scheme)) until such shares are vested with the
relevant Selected Participants (as defined under the Share Award
Scheme) in accordance with the provisions of the Share Award
Scheme.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company through its
trustee, Bank of Communications Trustee Limited, acquired a total
of 1,778,000 of the Company’s shares. Details of the Share Award
Scheme are set out in Note 25 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, all the share awards were held by
the trustee, and no share awards have been granted to any
grantees.
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Each of Mr. Li, Lead Smart and Eastern Mix (collectively the
“Covenantors”) have entered into a Deed of Non-Competition in
favour of the Company (on behalf of itself and the Group) dated
29 November 2013 (the “Deed”). Pursuant to the Deed, each of
the Covenantors shall procure their respective associates not to
directly or indirectly engage in any business in competition with
the existing businesses of the Group. Relevant information on
the Deed was disclosed in the Prospectus in the section headed
“Relationship with Controlling Shareholders”. The Company has
received confirmations from the Covenantors of their compliance
with the terms of the Deed. The Covenantors declared that they
have fully complied with the Deed for the year ended 31 December
2020. The independent non-executive directors have reviewed the
confirmations from the Covenantors and concluded that the Deed
has been complied with and enforced in an effective manner.

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of the
Company is currently in force and was in force throughout the year.

The Group entered into the following continuing connected
transactions during the year. The directors confirmed that those
transactions have been entered into in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group, on normal commercial terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole. All applicable percentage ratios (other
than the profits ratio) as defined in Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules
in respect of the proposed annual caps for those transactions
are expected to be less than 5%. Those transactions are exempt
from shareholders’ approval under Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing
Rules and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.
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The table below sets out the annual caps and the actual transaction
amounts of those continuing connected transactions in 2020:

No. Connected Transaction

1 Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement

ERlEhE

2 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant No. 1 Lease Agreement

RYVERRE 158 & ek

3 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant No. 2 Lease Agreement

RYVER B 258 & ek

4 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant No. 3 Lease Agreement

RYER 35 E &

5 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant No. 4 Lease Agreement
MERBE4REERZ

6 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Dormitory Block A
Lease Agreement

MIEFREAREEEE RS

7 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Parking Space
Lease Agreement

AIER R B S 3R

8 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Farm Land Lease
Agreement
RIEZBEREAE RS

9 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Football Field
Lease Agreement
MIERBERR LR E RS

Connected Person

BEAL

TK Technology Holdings Limited
("TK Technology Holdings")

RINREEERAT
(IRIRREE])

TK Technology (Shenzhen) Limited
(“TK Technology (Shenzhen)")

RIME (RN ER AR
(TRTRE (RN )

TK Technology (Shenzhen)
FIRE (R

TK Technology (Shenzhen)
RLRHE(RA)

TK Technology (Shenzhen)
ROTRHEE (R

TK Technology (Shenzhen)

RTRB A

TK Technology (Shenzhen)

RTRH A

TK Technology (Shenzhen)

RTRE A

TK Technology (Shenzhen)

RTRR A

Subtotal of lease agreements

HE Bt

TREINZEFEAERIHN2020F 2 F X

ERRERR

Annual Cap
EELR

2

RMB'000 HK$'000

ARETT

146

18,261

30,213

6,510

20

675

557

264

57,560

TAL

168

21,483

35,544

7,663

23

795

1,076

655

67,718

Actual Transaction Amount

ERRS8

RMB'000
ARBTT

146

14,841

26,703

5,601

550

838

242

49,446

HK$'000
TR

168

16,698

29,863

6,259

937

571

271

55,299



(1) Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement

A tenancy agreement dated 27 December 2018 (the “Hong
Kong Tenancy Agreement”) was entered into between TK
Technology Holdings as landlord and TK Group International
(Hong Kong) Limited (“TK Group International (Hong Kong)",
a subsidiary of the Company) as tenant in respect of the
premises located at Workshop No. 19 on 9th Floor, Block B,
Hi-Tech Industrial Centre, No. 491-501 Castle Peak Road,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong (the “Hong Kong
Premises”) with an area of approximately 77.67 square metres
for a term of three years commencing on 1 January 2019 and
expiring on 31 December 2021 at a monthly rent of HK$14,000
in 2020. The property is used as the principal place of business
for the Group in Hong Kong. At any time during the term of the
Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement, TK Group International (Hong
Kong may terminate the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement by
giving not less than one month’s prior written notice to the
landlord or by paying one month’s rent to the landlord.

TK Technology Holdings is a property holding company and
indirectly held as to 45.0% by Mr. Li, 28.0% by Mr. Yung
and 27.0% by Mr. Lee. According to the Listing Rules, TK
Technology Holdings is an associate of Mr. Li, Mr. Yung and
Mr. Lee, and is thus a connected person of the Company.

Pursuant to the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement, the annual
rent of the Hong Kong Premises in 2020 amounted to
HK$168,000, payable by TK Group International (Hong Kong)
in advance on the first day of each calendar month. The annual
rent payable to TK Technology Holdings was determined at
after arm’s length negotiation between the parties to the Hong
Kong Tenancy Agreement. The independent property valuer
of the Company has also confirmed that the terms of the
Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement are fair and reasonable and
the rental payment under the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement
reflects the prevailing market rate.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EERWES

(%)

(2) Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements

The following lease agreements were entered into between
TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord and TK Mold
(Shenzhen) Limited (“TK Mold (Shenzhen)”), TK Precision
Plastics (Shenzhen) Limited (“TK Precision Plastics”), YD
Mold (Shenzhen) Limited (“YD Mold"”) and TK Supply Chain
Management Services (Shenzhen) Limited (“TK Supply Chain”)

(2) F®YERBEHE =

RIRHECGRIND (EREET)BRITIHEA
CRAINDBR AR (TRITEACHRID )
RIBEDEZCRID AR AR ([FRIT
BEDEZ ) - ARBECRI)BRAT]
(TMARBE ) A RFOT e & 12 R
CRIDBRAR(TRITHERE ) (ER%E

as tenants respectively:

BA)DRIRTSZ THIEEF -

Agreement Parties to the Agreement Date of Agreement  Leased Property Term Monthly Rent
] EEE ELEE] IS 3 R#
(RMB)
(AE®)
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant No. 1 TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord 1 January 2019and ~ Workshop A, B, C, D, E and F Phase 1 of 1 January 2019 to 1,365,066
Lease Agreement and TK Mold (Shenzhen) and YD 1 January 2020 TK Technology Park, Tangjia Community, 31 December 2021
Mold as tenants Fenghuang Sub-District Office, Guangming and 1 January 2020
District, Shenzhen City, the PRC to 30 September
2020
MIEFER RS RS RINROMIN(ERET)ERIER  019FIMANE  PENITHEERRRSRERIE N19F1810%
(RIDRAFER(fERAEA) 02051818 RIHRIXE(-H)EREA B C 20215128318
D EFi HR2020%1A18
E2020%9A30H
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant No. 2 TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord 1 January 2019and ~ Workshop E Phase 1, Workshop G and H Phase 2, 1 January 2019 to 2,464,223
Lease Agreement and TK Precision Plastics as tenant 30 September 2020 Zone A Workshop J, Phase 3, the 4th, 5th, and 31 December 2021
6th floor of Zone B, Workshop J, Phase 3 of and 1 October 2020
TK Technology Park, Tangjia Community, to 31 December
Fenghuang Sub-District Office, Guangming 2020
District, Shenzhen City, the PRC
MIRFER SRS R RIMROM(fERRE)E WOFIMBNR  PERITERERERERERILE 019814182
FIRAITA(fEREEA) 0059808 FINRIZE(-H)ERELR 01%12831R
(ZH)HRG HR - (CH)ERE/RAR HR2020510A18
JRBEE4 5 6F E200512A31H
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant No. 3 TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord 1 January 2019 The 1st, 2nd, 3rd, 8th, 9th and 10th floor of Zone 1 January 2019 to 508,827
Lease Agreement and TK Precision Plastics as tenants B, Workshop J, Phase 3 of TK Technology Park, 31 December 2021
Tangjia Community, Fenghuang Sub-District
Office, Guangming District, Shenzhen City,
the PRC
MIEFHRTRE i RIBROMI) (feR%+)E 201951718 RN TR E RS R AR R 019¥1810%

RIRATE(ERAEA)
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EReRE=E0E)

Agreement Parties to the Agreement Date of Agreement  Leased Property Term Monthly Rent
i EEE ELE] BENZE 3 R#
(RMB)
(AE®)
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant No. 4 TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord 15 June 2019 Zone B Level 7 Workshop J, Phase 3 of TK 15 June 2019 to 1375
Lease Agreement and TK Supply Chain as tenant Technology Park, Tangjia Community, 31 December 2021
Fenghuang Sub-District Office,
Guangming District, Shenzhen City, the PRC
MIRFHRRRE RS RIHRM (A% E)E 201967158 AT AREERSREFHRRIMAIR 201966A16A2
FIHER(FRAEA) B(=H)BRE/RBEETE 021512A31A
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Dormitory  TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord 1 January 2020 Dormitory Block A of TK Technology Park, 1 January 2020 to 45,840
Block A Lease Agreement and TK Precision Plastics and Tangjia Community, Fenghuang Sub-District 31 December 2020
TK Mold (Shenzhen) as tenants Office, Guangming District, Shenzhen City,
the PRC
MIEFREARESEENE  BIRROV)(ERXT)ERIREE 20051718 nERITE AREE R ERERILE 00%1810%
ZRRIEA(RY)(ERAEA) FINRIZEARES 20205128318
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Parking  TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord 1 January 2019 Parking Space of TK Technology Park, Tangjia 1 January 2019 to 76,200
Space Lease Agreement and TK Precision Plastics and Community, Fenghuang Sub-District Office, 31 December 2021
TK Mold (Shenzhen) as tenants Guangming District, Shenzhen City, the PRC
MIEZBREUEERS RIMROMI(EB%)ERTRE 201951518 RERIMt AEEERERERIE N1951810%
TERRIRE (R (fERREA) RIMRIZEEN 215128318
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Farm TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord 1 January 2019 Farm Land of TK Technology Park, Tangjia 1 January 2019 to 46,400
Land Lease Agreement and TK Precision Plastics as tenant Community, Fenghuang Sub-District Office, 31 December 2021
Guangming District, Shenzhen City, the PRC
MIEFEERAEE RS RIBROMI) (fep%+)E 01951718 nERITE AREE R ERERILE 019%1810%
RIREITE(fERREA) BINRILERS WNF12A318
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Football - TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord 1 January 2019 Foothall Field of TK Technology Park, Tangjia 1 January 2019 to 22,000
Fild Lease Agreement and TK Precision Plastics as tenant Community, Fenghuang Sub-District Office, 31 December 2021
Guangming District, Shenzhen City, the PRC
MIEFERRREERE  RINKOM)(ERXT)E 01951718 RERIMt AEEERERERILE N19F1810%
FIREITR(fEREEN) RINBIRERNS 20215128318
ROIERE (%) BRAR —ZE_TFFH
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TK Mold (Shenzhen), TK Precision Plastics, YD Mold and TK
Supply Chain are entitled to renew the Shenzhen Tangjia
Plants Lease Agreements by notifying the landlord one month
before the expiration of the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease
Agreements, and TK Mold (Shenzhen), TK Precision Plastics,
YD Mold and TK Supply Chain are entitled to a right of first
refusal in the renewal. Moreover, in the event that the landlord
intends to sell the subject properties during the term of the
Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements, including any
renewal thereof, the landlord shall inform TK Mold (Shenzhen),
TK Precision Plastics, YD Mold and TK Supply Chain of the
intended sale in writing and TK Mold (Shenzhen), TK Precision
Plastics, YD Mold and TK Supply Chain are entitled to a right
of first refusal to purchase, which is deemed to be waived
if TK Mold (Shenzhen), TK Precision Plastics, YD Mold and
TK Supply Chain do not accept the offer within 30 days after
receiving such notice. TK Mold (Shenzhen), TK Precision
Plastics, YD Mold and TK Supply Chain are further entitled to
terminate the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements by
giving one month's notice to the landlord without cause. Mr.
Li, Mr. Yung and Mr. Lee, being the ultimate shareholders
of TK Technology (Shenzhen), undertake to use their best
endeavour to procure TK Technology (Shenzhen) to fulfil
its obligations under the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease
Agreements.

TK Technology (Shenzhen) is a company indirectly held as to
45.0% by Mr. Li, 28.0% by Mr. Yung and 27.0% by Mr. Lee.
According to the Listing Rules, TK Technology (Shenzhen) is
an associate of Mr. Li, Mr. Yung and Mr. Lee, and is thus a
connected person of the Company.

RITHEACRYD) - THRANTEZ - AR
BARRTHERAENRIBERBE
HEWHE M —EABMETERR
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P HREARRIHEERNEEZE
HIL30A MW M|EFEL) - BIRIERE
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The annual rent payable to TK Technology (Shenzhen) was
determined at after arm’s length negotiation between the
parties to the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements.
The independent property valuer of the Company has also
confirmed that, the terms of the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants
Lease Agreements (including the rental payable thereunder)
are fair and reasonable and the rental payable under the
Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements reflects the
prevailing market rate. Our directors consider that the
Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements have been entered
into on normal commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group.

Pursuant to Rules 14A.81, 14A.82 and 14A.83 of the Listing
Rules, the transactions under the Hong Kong Tenancy
Agreement and Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements
(collectively the “Connected Lease Agreements”) have been
aggregated for the purposes of determining the category of
continuing connected transaction that the Connected Lease
Agreements shall fall into under the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company
have, for the purpose of Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules,
reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out
above and have confirmed that these continuing connected
transactions have been entered into by the Group (i) in the
ordinary and usual course of its business; (ii) on normal
commercial terms or better; and (iii) according to the
agreements governing such transactions on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company's
shareholders as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company's
auditor was engaged to report on the Group's continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 "Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued his unqualified letter in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group. A copy
of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EFgHEE(E)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details of the related party transactions are set out in Note 34
to the financial statements.

The Company confirms that in relation to the related party
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2020, it has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers accounted for 42.4% of the Group’s total
sales and the sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer
was approximately 13.7% of the Group’s total sales. The aggregate
purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
were approximately 17.1% of the Group's total purchases and
the purchase attributable to the Group’s largest supplier was
approximately 5.6% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the directors or any of their close associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had beneficial interests in the Group's top five suppliers or
customers referred to above.

COMPLIANCE OF RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, there was no material breach or non-compliance
with the applicable laws regulations by the Group.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme”
and “Share Award Scheme” in this annual report, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares
or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will
or may result in the Company issuing shares entered into by the
Company during the year under review or subsisted at the end of
the year.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance were entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries during the year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors as at the date of this
annual report, there was a sufficient prescribed public float of the
issued shares of the Company under the Listing Rules.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE

If the shareholders of the Company are unsure about the taxation
implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the
exercise of any rights in relation to the shares of the Company,
they are advised to consult an expert.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and a resolution for their
re-appointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
AGM.

By the order of the Board
Li Pui Leung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B %BER S

_
pwec

To the Shareholders of TK Group (Holdings) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of TK Group (Holdings)
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 111 to 207, which comprise:

e the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2020;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended,;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“"HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to impairment of
trade receivables.
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Key Audit Matter
BRETER

Impairment of trade receivables

Refer to note 4.1(b) — Critical accounting estimates
and assumptions and note 18(c) — Trade and other
receivables to the consolidated financial statements.

We focused on this area because the allowance for
impairment of trade receivables is mainly related
to specific customers (HK$11.26 million as at 31
December 2020) and has increased by approximately
HK$6.90 million or 158% comparing with that of last
year.

In addition, the assessment for impairment of trade
receivables involves critical accounting estimates
and judgments relating to the extent and duration
that amount will be recovered.

B 5 BRI E

AE2HA S RERMTA1(b) — BAREEHEE RE
RAKPFE18(c) — B RE MR FIA -

AFBETHEEDEARESREVRBREREELE
HEFTEFEB(R2020F12A31HA11.26 885
TT)  BREFIENNL)6.90E BB ITH158% ©

SN G E 5 RBCGRIRE Y KRB TR E 8 £ 5R
KEEE BB ST et R -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KA ET AR EREEETEE

In responding to this key audit matter, we performed
the following procedures:

(i)  We obtained an understanding of the management’s
internal control and assessment process of
impairment of trade receivables and assessed the
inherent risk of material misstatement by considering
the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors such as complexity, subjectivity,
changes and susceptibility to management bias or
fraud;

(i) For those items with impairment provision being
made, we reviewed the impairment calculations,
focusing on the estimated amount to be recovered
and timing of the recovery with reference to the
supporting documents, e.g. repayment schedules of
trade receivables;

(iii) We requested confirmations for major year end
balances. Where confirmations had not been
received or received with difference, we sought
explanation from management and checked to their
original sales contracts, delivery documents and
their subsequent settlement after year end date;

(iv) We assessed the adequacy of the Group's
disclosures related to impairment of trade
receivables in note to the consolidated financial
statements.

Based on the procedures performed and evidence
obtained, we found accounting estimates and
judgments in relation to the provision for impairment
of trade receivables as at 31 December 2020 was
supported by the evidence we obtained.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)
BN Iz AR ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e (Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, WHBEZRES/BEBHNEES - KNFTRTE W
we determine those matters that were of most significance in LEBEHAHBES M ERERNETRAS
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current T AmMEKBEEENFE AT EZE
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe RisRE R ZEE1E  BRIPEESTEERET
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation RHEZEEEE A AHRAERE  SERIRER,
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely HIERT  AESEBEEEENFRSE T ER
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be FEEMEKNEAECRERBEBEEAN
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences NRFzm KIS SEHEBN NERS
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public B2 EIE -

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent REUZEMMENBTEE AR ARKRE

auditor’s report is Cheung Chin Hoo, Albert. e
PricewaterhouseCoopers EORUKES ISR
Certified Public Accountants HEDED

Hong Kong, 26 March 2021 BE 120213 H26H



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

EftEme R
Year ended 31 December
BE12A3MALEE
2020 2019
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
HtaE FET FHT
Revenue U A 5 2,033,419 2,310,842
Cost of sales SHERAR 7 (1,500,786) (1,643,367)
Gross profit EF 532,633 667,475
Other income HAb A 6 58,835 50,147
Other losses — net HhEsie — ¥ 6 (30,761) (5,842)
Selling expenses HERY 7 (71,130) (80,690)
Administrative expenses THAX 7 (254,719) (269,567)
Operating profit R 234,858 361,523
Interest income F B WA 9 15,025 20,220
Interest expenses FERX 9 (9,991) (21,615)
Finance income/(cost) — net B (B A ) — F%58 (1,395)
Share of net profit of an associate FEREREARZ
accounted for using the equity FE(LERZ N A
method A 12a 371
Profit before income tax BR BT 8 8 AT A 240,542 360,499
Income tax expense FrisHif < 10 (30,855) (58,696)
Profit for the year attributable to AATEEAEM
owners of the Company FREF 301,803
Other comprehensive income Hittimma s
Item that may be reclassified to B D EEE
profit and loss: ZHEA -
Currency translation differences HINERERNEZR 87,949 (23,199)
Total comprehensive income FERGENFHAEH
for the year 297,636 278,604
Earnings per share for the year FRERERN
— basic and diluted (HK$ per share) — EARREE(ERETT) 11 0.36

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income A AR A U 25 2 e R BE BT BT 3 — B R
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

s
i}

RIEE (2) ERAF —T-TFFH m



112

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

EHEERER

As at 31 December

R12H31H
2020

Note HK$000

Hia THExT

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Investment in an associate

Prepayments for property, plant and
equipment

&E

FRBEE

Y% -~ BB MR

EREEE

BVEE

UNAanBEFERHEZS
SAABRENEREE

REFE R B ZIRE
B

13 556,903
14 83,438
15 24,141

1% 33,621
12a 16,176

10,083

Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 17 447,095
Amount due from a related company FE Ui BB N B R IE 34(c) 10,898
Trade and other receivables B 5 K& E Ath fE W 5K IE 18 320,836
Deposits for bank borrowings RITRENES 26(a) 148,231
Restricted cash ZRRHIE e 20 443
Cash and cash equivalents HeREEEEY 20 920,446
1,847,949

Total assets wWEE 2,572,311
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of the Z<2A F#EH A B

Company
Share capital A& X 21 83,326
Share premium B1n =B 21 251,293
Shares held for employee share wiEB R EtE

scheme ESE =P ) 22 (10,416)
Other reserves H i 24 126,026
Retained earnings IR & 23 944,326
Total equity e 1,394,555

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020

2019
HK$'000
TAT

592,278
142,530
13,831

33,621
15,526

22,812

820,598

397,041

371,794
134,594

17,638
582,878

1,503,945

2,324,543

83,326
251P2.98

(5,517)

21,188
841,175

1,191,465



Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

aHEERERGE)

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2020 2019
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B et FET THET
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Bank borrowings RITEE 26 58,435 75,911
Lease liabilities HEBE 14 19,536 92,671
Deferred income on government grants 54 BhiE E U A 27 46,421 36,442
Deferred income tax liabilities FEEFTSHAE 29 40,674 43,737
248,761
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R H A FERFIR 28 456,370 411,751
Contract liabilities SHBE 245,955 226,663
Income tax liabilities FistiaE 7.471 21,299
Bank borrowings RITHEE 26 223,800 166,049
Lease liabilities HEAE 14 79,094 58,555
1,012,690 884,317
Total liabilities Ba R 1,177,756 1,133,078
Total equity and liabilities ERREEAE 2,572,311 2,324,543

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The financial statements on pages 111 to 207 were approved by
the Board of Directors on 26 March 2021 and were signed on its
behalf.

Li Pui Leung
R
Director

EF

LA L& GHEE B B R EE R BE MY o — 663

i
=N

FI1NE207EMIHBHREKN2021F3826H

REFSHE  THERREE -

Yung Kin Cheung Michael

aEH

Director

EF

RIEE (2) ERAF —T-TFFH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A HE 32 4=
SOtRESEER
Other reserves
Hincie
Shares
held for
employee Share- Currency
Share Share share Statutory based translation Retained
capital premium scheme reserves  payments reserve eamings Total
iES
RinitEl PUGL
kE  ROEE HERG  EERE  ERIAH Eifi  RERH @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T ThT T T Thn T T Thn
Balance at 1 January 2019 201951 A1Ba&E 83326 251,293 - 79,665 - (b4441) 715615 1075458
Comprehensive income SakE
Profit for the year g = = - - - - 301,803 301,803
Currency translation differences  SNERENEEE - - - - = (23.199) = (23,199)
Total comprehensive income A UBEAE — — — — - (23,199) 301,803 278,604
Contributions by and distributions KAFEBALER
to owners of the Company Ef:2R
Acquisition of shares for SEERNE
employee share scheme DESi0) - - (5,517) - - - - (5,517)
Employee share schemes EERMHE
—value of employee services ~ — (EERBER = - - - 1239 = = 1239
Dividends R - - - = = = (158,319) (158,319)
Total contributions by and ERRLAREALE
distributions to owners of REEAREE
the Company for the year — — (5,517) — 1,239 — (158,319) (162,597)
Transfer to statutory reserves ~ ERZEERE = - - 17,924 - - (17,924) -
Total transactions with owners ~ EARATHEE A
of the Company RAAE - = (5,517) 17,924 1,239 (23,199) 125,560 116,007
Balance at 31 December 2019 A2019512 831 K& 83,326 251,293 (5,517) 97,589 1,239 (77,640) 841,175 1,191,465

14 TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

Note

Balance at 1 January 2020 202051518

i
Comprehensive income Galg
Profit for the year R

Currency translation differences SMEFZIFTEZE X4

Total comprehensive income A& KEAE

Contributions by and FARAREALE
distributions to owners REEDR

of the Company
Acquisition of shares for SEERME
employee share scheme WERG 2

Employee share schemes —  EBR{3:t8] —
value of employee services  EERKEE 25
Dividends k& 30

Total contributions by and ~ ERAATEEALE
distributions to ownersof ~ REM S REE
the Company for the year

Transfer to statutory reserves  EREETHE 23

Total transactions with BRATEEA
owners of the Company #5445

Balance at 31 December #2020512A31R
2020 e

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Share
capital

Bx
HKS'000
T#n

83,326

83,326

Shares

held for

employee

Share share
premium scheme
S

Rtitd

kVER EBEZRE
HKS$'000 HK$'000
Thn THx

251,293 (5,517)

(4,899)

(4,899)

251,293 (10,416)

/\ AV4 == N\ / 2‘%—"2‘ %
Bt EREER(E)
Other reserves
Rt
Currency
Statutory Share-based translation Retained
reserves  payments reserve  earnings Total
RHA

EERG  EE2NR EXGR  REEA it
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
TR TEn TRR TR TEn

97,589 1,239 (77,640) 84,175 1,191,465

209,687 209,687
- 87,949

- 87,949 209,687 297,636

(4,899)

- 2,0M
(91,658) (91,658)

(91,658) (94,546)

- (14,878)

14,878 2,01 87,949 103,151 203,090

112,467 3,250 10,309 944,326 1,394,555

PA £ & ff 1 5 5 B 3K 85 (R B8 Y BfY o — 61 B3

£
g °

BTEE (%) BRAR —T_TFFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
EHRERER

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALEE
2020 2019
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
fieF THT THET
Cash flows from operating activities RELLETHNELRE
Cash generated from operations REELNIRS 31(a) 563,437 488,797
Interest received BIKFIE 2,419 14,951
Income taxes paid BERMEH (47,746) (59,948)
Net cash generated from operating activities KT EELNIRS FH 518,110 443,800
Cash flows from investing activities RERETBNRERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipmentand ~ BEWE - BERH
construction in progress ARERTRE (62,068) (206,197)
Purchase of intangible assets BEBVEE (16,449) (6,689)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEME  BERREUR
equipment and intangible assets EREENRBNE 31(b) 1,655 8,640
Additions of investment in an associate AERBED TZTxﬁi - (15,155)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through ﬁ%“é’LA’Aft{ETEuJFEHH
profit or loss EIABENEREE (1,241,008) (596,808
Proceeds from financial assets at fair value WAL EBEFELEES:FA
through profit or loss BRNEeREEMFRA 1,253,161 592,063
Net cash used in investing activities BREEBEERSFE (64,709) (224,246)
Cash flows from financing activities REMETENHESRE
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITEEREIA 219,440 369,489
Repayments of bank borrowings BERTEE (179,165) (469,761)
Increase in deposits for bank borrowings BITEERESEM (13,637) (49,619)
Interest paid BAFIE (4,036) (12,745)
Principal elements of lease payments HERRZAEE S 31(c) (47,269) (60,966)
Acquisition of shares for employee share scheme gt{E B 17 = 2 Ui ik (5 22 (4,899) (5,517)
Dividends paid BERARE 30 (91,658) (158,319)
Net cash used in financing activities REGHTAREFR (121,224) (387,438)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash Re KRS EEY
equivalents i/ (RL)FE 332,177 (167,884)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the ~ E¥HE & RREZEY
year 582,878 753,811
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and ~ EZXZEHHIE S K
cash equivalents BeEEBYHNRE 5,391 (3,049)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year EXBELRBRLEEY 920,446 582,878
Analysis of balances of cash and RekReEEMER
cash equivalents: A
Cash and cash on hand RekFEHRE 920,889 600,516
Restricted cash TRHHEE (443) (17,638)

920,446 582,878

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in DA b6 OF IR & 7 8 2% FE 5 [R) B Y Pl o — 6 B
conjunction with the accompanying notes. & o
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1

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 28
March 2013 as an exempted company with limited liability.
The address of the Company’s registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Company, an investment
holding company, and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacturing, sales,
subcontracting, fabrication and modification of molds and
plastic components in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"). As at 31 December 2020, the ultimate shareholders
of the Group are Mr. Li Pui Leung, Mr. Yung Kin Cheung
Michael and Mr. Lee Leung Yiu (collectively the “Ultimate
Shareholders”), each holding an effective equity interest of
29.68%, 18.47% and 17.81% in the Company, respectively.

On 20 December 2013, shares of the Company were listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 26 March
2021.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
(a) Compliance with HKFRS and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS")
and requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (“HKCQO") Cap. 622.
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—RE R
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F12A318  AEBHNKEBRBFH
REE - SEMEERFTRIBEE (5B
R ITEEIRR])  BESEREART S
$4629.68% * 18.47% K% 17.81% M H
MRAHE R -

MR2013F12 8208 » ARAFIHKRNHES
BEMARGAR AR ([HRF]) EH o

BREBATMEN  ZEEHMERRTD
BB 2% - ZEE I B®R
RIEA NGB EFTEN2021F3 268 &
TEHE A TI)3% -

o

FTEESHHREE

AW EHEREZFEHMBHRRE
REAMEBEABER KR BHAE
Sy ZEBRECREBRFESIER
R o

2.1 RRELAE

(a) ETEBMBRERARETAER
AR B
RRBNAEHABRRCIRAA
ERNEBR RS ER([EFE
M mEER ) RFE622ER/E
N ARG ([ BB R REG ) BV

17



118

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B s ReR M (A8

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) Historical cost convention

(c)

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss which are carried at fair
value.

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The Group has applied the following standards
and amendments for the first time for their annual
reporting period commencing 1 January 2020:

e Definition of Material — amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

e Definition of a Business — amendments to
HKFRS 3

e nterest Rate Benchmark Reform — amendments
to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

e Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting

The Group also elected to adopt the following
amendments early.

e (COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions —
amendments to HKFRS 16

The amendments listed above did not have any impact
on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not
expected to significantly affect the current or future
periods.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020

2 FES

BRI E (@)

2.1 fREE X (|)

(b) ESERAE

(c)

EHPBERRDREELKNAOX
(RERARAEBEFELHLE
Bt ABENERMEETNE
HpLE

AN B BR AR O HT RT R AZE RT 22 Rl

AREEDN2020F1 51
2 FEREHEE XA T
B RAEET -

. EAHTE — EERiHE
BIE 1R B BRI EAIES
SEHET

s XBHIEE — BAEUBH
BRI E IS MIERT

o FIERENE — BZEMK
WEEAFEIN - BEEE
ERIEIW R BB BB E
ERE 7 mEET

o BT B EBRIER

74 58 B TR 18 9 AT SR A DA T 48
i

e COVID-1916/F 1 & & )i —
BB B & ERFE 165589

4T

FETE AT HEERN SR
VEEFRZE  AFRMISEE
AR RABBREATE -



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

IR ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2 FESHBEXRBE@E)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 RBESE (E)

(d) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted
Certain new accounting standards and interpretations
have been published that are not mandatory for 31
December 2020 reporting periods and have not been
early adopted by the group. These standards are not
expected to have a material impact on the entity in the
current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable
future transactions.

2.2 Changes in accounting policies

The Group has early adopted amendment to HKFRS 16
— COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions retrospectively
from 1 January 2020. The amendment provides an optional
practical expedient allowing lessees to elect not to assess
whether a rent concession related to COVID-19 is a lease
modification. Lessees adopting this election may account
for qualifying rent concessions in the same way as they
would if they were not lease modifications. The practical
expedient only applies to rent concessions occurring as a
direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and only
if all of the following conditions are met: a. the change in
lease payments results in revised consideration for the
lease that is substantially the same as, or less than, the
consideration for the lease immediately preceding the
change; b. any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments due on or before 30 June 2021; and c. there is
no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the
lease.

The Group has applied the practical expedient to all
qualifying COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions (see note
6). Rent concessions totalling HK$5,327,000 have been
accounted for as negative variable lease payments and
recognised in ‘other losses — net’ in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2020, with a corresponding adjustment to the
lease liability. There is no impact on the opening balance of
equity at 1 January 2020.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BRI (4R)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

TK Group

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity where the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group (refer
to note 2.4).

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the group.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting (see (c) below), after
initially being recognised at cost.

(Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

IR ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESHBEXRBE@E)

23 AtRAIRERS A @

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)

(c) Equity method (c) EEZEFHE

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee
in profit or loss, and the Group's share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income. Dividends received
or receivable from associates are recognised as a
reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

Where the Group's share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in these entities. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of equity-accounted investees
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in note 2.11.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BRI (4R)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. |ldentifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation are measured at either
fair value or the present ownership interests’ proportionate
share in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their acquisition date
fair value, unless another measurement basis is required
by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit
or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

IR ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2 FESHBEXRBE@E)

2.4 ¥ S0 @)

2.4 Business combinations (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to
conform with the Group’s accounting policies.

Merger accounting

In preparing for the Company's listing on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange in December 2013, the Group
underwent a reorganisation involving entities under the
same ownership of the ultimate shareholders.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the combining entities or
businesses as if they had been combined from the date
when the combining entities or businesses first came
under the common control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
combined using the existing carrying amounts from the
controlling parties’ perspective. No amount is recognised
for goodwill or excess of acquirers’ interest in the net
fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common
control combination, to the extent of the continuation of
the controlling party’s interest.

FreEEAE R ES O ERE
AR 25 5 BB Ik A ] ST AR B U AR
FHRERKERSN AR BER
LB BRI EEFENARE
BENBIINAEE - HEEBEEM
T OMATEERE BERFEER
RBamREMBENERSEREERN
KEWNBAREEFENARE
B AEZEESEEEAHEE KRS
TR ©

EENATZHNRS  XHEH
Rk BB s Ty TG o KB ER
BT HE - WEATFRE 2 S
FERESEHEE  UEKEE
BB E M -

AOtREE

BEHERNRQNTR20134F12 AR
FTERLET AEBEETHIRE
RIRRARFAE TN 2 B2 EA -

AHHBREDESHEBRLEY
ZRBRE  MMALRAGERE
SR E R T R A
17 -

EHERBAXBNEEFEELER
TZAEURBREEAGH - HE
T 7 S B T IR M RE 0 B AT A
MEE BEMIARBERIAEER
FEMRSAELRZS A HREL
AR ER D HEREM 5 - AR
EES T EERTE o

FULERE (i) SRAR —F_FFFH

123



124

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BRI (4R)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Business combinations (Continued)

Merger accounting (Continued)

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income
includes the results of each of the combining entities
or businesses from the earliest date presented or since
the date when the combining entities or businesses first
came under the common control, whichever is shorter,
regardless of the date of the common control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses
had been combined at the previous balance sheet date or
when they first came under common control, whichever is
shorter.

A uniform set of accounting policies is adopted by
those entities. All intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between combining
entities or businesses are eliminated on consolidation.

2.5 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee's net
assets including goodwill.

2.6 Segment reporting

TK Group

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the executive directors who makes strategic
decisions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

IR ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESHBEXRBEu@m)

2.7 NI E

2.7 Foreign currency translation

(a) THEER 2HIEH

(a) Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group's entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
Renminbi (“RMB") is the functional currency of
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principal operating subsidiaries of the Group. These REEHE - ZEESHU BRI
consolidated financial statements are presented in BILES - BITIIARRNZES
Hong Kong dollar (HK$), which is the presentation and RINEEEE o
functional currency of the Company.

(b) Transactions and balances (b) B RiEER
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the INER AR5 E AHRNIER

functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where
items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such

é%ﬁ?rgﬂﬂﬁfﬁié BB RITHE =
B RIRERE R LI ASNEFHE
MEKEERBEMEENEL

transactions and from the translation of monetary BE - —ianNemaliask
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies NFER °

at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to HEEURRENRSEEBYA

borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the statement of comprehensive income
within ‘Finance income/(cost) — net’. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in statement
of comprehensive income within ‘Other losses — net’.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BRI (4R)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

TK Group

(c) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at
the rate on the dates of the transaction); and

all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising
are recognised as a separate component of equity in
other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

IR ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2 FESHBEXRBE@E)

2.8 Property, plant and equipment 2.8 9% - BMERKME

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Construction in progress is property, plant and equipment
on which construction work has not been completed and
stated at cost. Cost includes acquisition and construction
expenditure incurred, interest and other direct costs
attributable to the development. Depreciation is not
provided on construction in progress until the related asset
is completed for intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’'s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of
their residual values, over their estimated useful lives as

follows:

Buildings 20 years

Leasehold Over b years or the remaining
improvements term of the relevant lease,

whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery 5-10 years

Furniture, fixtures and 3 years
computer equipment

Motor vehicles 5 years
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BRI (4R)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’'s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.11).

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within ‘Other losses — net’ in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

2.9 Intangible assets

(a) Computer software
Acquired software licenses are capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 3
to 10 years.

(b) Goodwiill

Goodwill is measured as described in note 2.4.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included
in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on
the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill
arose. The units or groups of units are identified at the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, being the operating segments
(note b).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10Research and development expenditure

Research expenditures is recognised as an expense as
incurred. Costs incurred on development projects (relating
to the design and testing of new and improved products)
are recognised as intangible assets when the following
criteria are met:

e it is technically feasible to complete the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use;

e management intends to complete the intangible asset
and use or sell it;

e there is an ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

e it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will
generate probable future economic benefits;

e adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset are available; and

e the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset
during its development can be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet
these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development cost previously recognised as an expense
is not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.
Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible
assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is
ready for use on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives.

IR ()

2 FESHBEXRBE@E)

2. 10T E5 B 2

MEFMINEESERRA - &
RIAR (ERFLBHMI R EHRR
EmBR)AEENKARTE T
RIS HER DBV EE -

s ENZENEELKEMNEEMR
B ERIAT

s BEEEARTKLELEEL(E
R E

s ARNEAIHLEZETLEE

o RWEAZLELEERWFESE
] BEAY R RIS 2

u]

o BARMHEM - MHEREME
IR - CATERK A 3 R E sk B 5%
BEE Rk

s EENEEMBRBIETHEHESA
BN BE SR SEMET & -

THRE N ERENHE M 3% RS
REZLEREIA/FAX - BEER
RAXHERRARERBEL T
BRAREE - EXELERKAIAS
BRVEE TRZEEARERZ
B R0 B A AT Al E A F HI A B AOX

129



130

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BRI (4R)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11lmpairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that they might
be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting
period.

2.12Investments and other financial assets

(a) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value
through profit or loss and,

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
be recorded in profit or loss.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020

2 FESHBEXRBEw@m)

21N EERMEERE

EREHTHRENHERELEE
BEETEE  BEFETRER
A RWMBLEFEIBRESET
A BE i ER BB B Al R SR S M AT
MERAS - BEMEFELEHBR
RN H R mEE A R EA M
B IS EmEEETRERN -
EREENERHEBBE AT K@ S
B A EEBEERAREESE -
AEEEAEEAABEBHEE
KRARERBEMEZRSE R
£ o BAFRBEMNS @ BERASE
VB ARBBINEMEEREE
ARRERANEERAZ&IEK
EHREELEM) DR - HERE
MIFEMEE(BRBEINRERE
HAR R ] = & Al RERE BRI (E

LRRERHMMEREE

(a) 28
AEBETIGERNSBES
BMEE

o HEEARBEIEARE
BEH A R

o IRBBIHNAGTE ©

ZORBARNEBEESMEE
ZEBBANBEEREZENIKE

E
AN

HREAABEFENEEMS -
H e R B RN BE AR -

BEEEZFEEZERHRAR
EEEE  AREL SHEKIR
BEMOME -



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(b) Recognition and derecognition

(c)

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit
or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are two measurement categories into
which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

e Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented
in other gains/(losses) together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BRI (4R)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.12Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

2.13Offsetting financial instruments

TK Group

(c) Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

e FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost are measured at FVPL. A gain or
loss on a equity investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss
and presented net within other gains/(losses) in
the period in which it arises.

(d) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables, see note 18 for further

details.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet where the Company
currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts, and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The Company has also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting
but still allow for the related amounts to be set off
in certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the

termination of a contract.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

IR ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2 FESHBEXRBE@E)

2.14Inventories 2108

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads based on
normal operating capacity. It excluded borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

2.15Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold and service provided in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective to collect the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
See note 18 for further information about the Group's
accounting for trade receivables and note 3.1(c) for a
description of the Group’s impairment policies.

2.16Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with bank, other short-term, highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts
are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the
balance sheet.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BRI (4R)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17Share capital and shares held for employee share

scheme

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the company's
equity instruments, for example as the result of a share
buy-back or a share-based payment plan, the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs
(net of income taxes) is deducted from equity attributable
to the owners of the company as treasury shares until the
shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such ordinary
shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration
received, net of any directly attributable incremental
transaction costs and the related income tax effects,
is included in equity attributable to the owners of the
company.

Shares held by the Bank Of Communications Trustee
Limited on behalf of the Group are disclosed as shares
held for employee share scheme and deducted from the
contributed equity.

2.18 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented
as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12
months after the reporting period. They are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

IR ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESHBEXRBE@E)

2.19Borrowings 21916 &

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

2.20Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BRI (4R)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation and considers whether it is probable
that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax
treatment. The Group measures its tax balances either
based on the most likely amount or the expected
value, depending on which method provides a better
prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

(c)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Generally the Group is unable
to control the reversal of the temporary difference for
associates. Only when there is an agreement in place
that gives the Group the ability to control the reversal
of the temporary difference in the foreseeable future,
deferred tax liability in relation to taxable temporary
differences arising from the associate’s undistributed
profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements only to
the extent that it is probable the temporary difference
will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable
profit available against which the temporary difference
can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and where the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current
tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity
has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

IR ()

2 FESHBEXRBE@E)

2.21 ENEA R AR FE PSR (48)

(b) EZEFTSH ()

(c)

e A5 22 ) A 428 15 A 1 2 BR O 2B
Bl i 8 R AR A A BEAE A RRBRA
SRMABEZE  ATERRNE
SR E R REEERE 2 [
MR EEERDEENRAE
REE - —RME  AREEZX
B N R R B R A
B - EEFE R T AKEEE
HRRF] BR R HI B 12 R 1
BOe - BEEQRARD RE A
ELNARERREREEZR L
ELERARET TR -

EEPTISHEETIFAMB AR -
BERRRAERIREELN
AMREREEZEM®ER - BR
PR & B 1 2 RAR AT BEFEAS 2R 8
B - I 7 R H FE SR 2 A4 5
AR EREER

E

s & 54 AT 52 Bl 1T RO RE A LA BD
HIMEEERHERE  AREE
R IAGRER — MG HIBE
o AR REERAFEEMN
HiH - HERB /A MBI
HIHHER > YA BRFREE
HESRKBREEMSERE
- RIADEINRE ERGAAE
MHEHEH

137



138

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BRI (4R)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22Employee benefits

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions
to publicly or privately administered pension insurance
plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense when they are
due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company's shareholders after certain adjustments. The
Group recognises a provision where contractually obliged
or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

2.23Share-based payments

The Group operates equity-settled, share-based compensation
plans, under which the entity receives services from
employees as consideration for equity instruments (award
shares) of the Group. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the award shares is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the fair value of the award
shares granted.

The grant by the Company of equity instruments over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiaries in the
Group is treated as a capital contribution. The fair value
of employee services received,measured by reference to
the grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting
period as an increase to investments in subsidiaries,
with a corresponding credit to equity in the parent entity
accounts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

IR ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESHBEXRBE@E)

2.24 IR A\ TERR

2.24Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group's activities. Revenue
is shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and
discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when control of the
products has transferred, and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group's activities as described
below. The amount of revenue is not considered to be
reliably measurable until all contingencies relating to sale
have been resolved. The Group bases its estimates on
historical results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement. Revenue is recognised as follows:

(a) Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of good directly to the
customers is recognised at the point that the control
of the inventory have passed to the customers, which
is primarily upon the acceptance of the products by
the customers. The customers have full discretion
over the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customers’ acceptance of the
products. The Group collects cash or bank acceptance
notes from the customers before or upon deliveries
of products through banks. Cash or bank acceptance
notes collected from the customers before product
delivery is recognised as contract liabilities.

(b) Modification services income
Revenue from mold modification services is
recognised in the accounting period in which the
services are rendered.

2.25Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BRI (4R)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred income in government grants and are credited to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related
assets. Note 27 provides further information on how the
Group accounts for government grants.

2.27Leases

TK Group

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset
is available for use by the group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of
real estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected
not to separate lease and non-lease components and
instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

IR ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESHBEXRBE@E)

2.27Leases (Continued) 227HHE (&)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable

e variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BRI (4R)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.27Leases (Continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received

e uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by the Group, which does not have recent third party
financing, and

e makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg term,
country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to
the individual lessee (through recent financing or market
data) which has a similar payment profile to the lease,
then the group entities use that rate as a starting point to
determine the incremental borrowing rate.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in
variable lease payments based on an index or rate, which
are not included in the lease liability until they take effect.
When adjustments to lease payments based on an index
or rate take effect, the lease liability is reassessed and
adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

IR ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESHBEXRBE@E)

2.27Leases (Continued) 227HHE (&)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received

e any initial direct costs, and

e restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset
is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.
While the Group revalues its land and buildings that are
presented within property, plant and equipment, it has
chosen not to do so for the right-of-use buildings held by
the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment
and vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are
recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in
profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets comprise IT
equipment and small items of office furniture.

2.28Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as
a liability in the financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved.

2.29Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basic
using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BT RSk It (48)
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (foreign exchange risk, price risk,
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance. Risk management
is carried out by the senior management of the Group and
approved by the Board of Directors.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC, and is exposed
to foreign currency risks, mainly with respect to HK
dollar (“HK$"), US dollar ("USD") and Euro dollar
("EUR"). Exchange rate fluctuations and market trends
have always been the concern of the Group. Foreign
currency hedging of the Group has been managed by
our chief financial officer, and overseen by the Group's
chief executive officer. In accordance with our hedging
needs and the then foreign exchange situation,
the Group’s chief financial officer would gather
and analyse information regarding various hedging
instruments and determine stop-loss thresholds.
The Group's chief financial officer would then obtain
quotations from various banks as to the financial
instrument and present such quotations to the Group's
chief executive officer, who would then evaluate
and make a decision as to whether to enter into the
relevant hedging agreement. Foreign currency hedging
of the Group has been managed by the Group's chief
financial officer, and overseen by the Group’s chief
executive officer. There is no unsettled hedging
contract as at 31 December 2020. The conversion of
RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated
by the PRC government.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
at the respective balance sheet dates are as follows:

BR5 R M ()

3 H¥KERERE@)
3.1 Biis R b [ = (&)

(a) FMEE =B ()
REBERERBH  NEEMN
SMEHENEREERERAR
ZEREERSIMT

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Assets EE
HK$ BT 72,332 93,942
UsD ETT 286,893 501,450
EUR BT 36,470 30,021
Total BET 395,695 625,413
Liabilities a&
HKS$ BT 81,593 141,234
Usb e 94,304 20,575
EUR BT 125,322 108,939
Total it 270,748
If RMB had strengthened/weakened by 5% against WARBRLEMINETE &

the relevant foreign currencies, with all other variable
held constant, the profit before income tax would have
been higher/(lower) as follows:

higher/(lower) on profit
before income tax if

B5% r MATBEEMEERE
A& BIER AT S B AT & A
m/CRA)ERIT

2020 2019
higher/(lower) on profit
before income tax if

exchanges rates change by exchanges rates change by
fEERBBIMT - BRATEHA WEXZEBWT - BRAEHA

A A, (RA) A, i)
+5% -5% +5% 5%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET FET FHT
HK$ BT 463 (463) 2,365 (2,365)
usD T (9,629) 9,629 (24,044) 24,044
EUR BT 4,443 (4,443) 3,946 (3,946)

RIEE (2) ERAF —T-TFFH
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BRI (4R)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

TK Group

(b) Price risk

(c)

The Group is not exposed to equity securities price risk
or commodity price risk and the Group has not entered
into any long term contracts with the suppliers.
Fluctuations in the price of raw materials are usually
passed on to customers.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other receivable and equity investments that
are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

(i) Risk management and Security
For cash and cash equivalents and deposits for
bank borrowings, the Group manages the credit
risk by placing all the bank deposits in state-owned
financial institutions or reputable banks which are
all high-credit-quality financial institutions.

To manage the credit risk in respect of trade and
other receivables, the Group performs ongoing
credit evaluations of its debtors’ financial condition
and does not require collateral from the debtors on
the outstanding balances. Based on the historical
credit losses experienced and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors, the Group
maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts
and actual losses incurred have been within
management'’s expectations.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group faced some
concentration of credit risk as the Group's five
largest customers accounted for approximately
60% (2019: 44%) of the total trade receivables.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

IR ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HKEREREE

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1 I REREEE®)

(c) Credit risk (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of financial assets

(c) FERBR(E)
(i) TREEZRE

The Group has one type of financial assets that is
subject to the expected credit loss model:

e trade and other receivables

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject
to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.

Trade and other receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for
all trade receivables.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has assessed
that the expected loss rate for other receivables
was immaterial. Thus, no loss allowance for other
receivables was recognised.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment
profiles of sales over a period of 36 month
before 31 December 2020 and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within this
period. The forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affect the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables. The Group
has identified the GDP and the unemployment
rate of the countries in which it sells its goods
and services to be the most relevant factors,
and accordingly adjusts the loss rates based on
expected changes in these factors.

rEBE-FHEeREERS
STERBEEBEEARE

o BEZREMEKFIA

BERERACEFEWINA
BTREVHRELERF
SREVRERE - S BB
BEEYTEX -

B 5 K E A EUGRIA
AEBERTEWHREE
RIS B At ERAME
EEE - BsAE SR
FRARA 2 MM EHE R
TR o

M2020F12A831H » K&
B BT H At e R IE /T
HIBSBERBEM - At - I
4 ok Ho At FE W S IB RERR S 1B
R -

TBEEIE R T E R 2020F
12 A 31 H BI361# A HA i 84
E BB R A R AR ERE R
KEMMEEATEEEEM
B o REER XA ATE
MHEREERFEE R
THREE S - AEE R AIE
7 on 2 AR 7 8 1 B R a9 B A
EEBENMKELXARIERH
HAE - WEKERZZEERER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 75 ik M et (48)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HXERERE@)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B s E fe R = ()
(¢) Credit risk (Continued) (c) SERM(H)
(ii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) EEEEZBEE)
Trade and other receivables (Continued) B REMEWTIEE)

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 RILEAE - S E 5 WA

December 2020 and 31 December 2019 was BEMN2020F12 A318 &

determined as follows for trade receivables: 20194 12 A 31 B # &5 48 #
(RO

More than  More than
90 days 360 days

Current past due past due Total
DA 90AH 360H @st
31 December 2020 2020F12831AR
Expected loss rate EHEEX 2.96% 10.32% 3.97%
Gross carrying amount EmAE
— trade receivables —HE 5 RWFE 255,196 27,804 283,834
Loss allowance B 7,554 2,870 11,258
More than More than
90 days 360 days
Current past due past due Total
AR 90H 360H BEr
31 December 2019 2019%12H31H
Expected loss rate HHEE R 1.00% 6.54% = 1.38%
Gross carrying amount RARE
— trade receivables —& S EWIE 294,175 21,692 — 315,867
Loss allowance gty 2,942 1,419 — 4,361
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c¢) Credit risk (Continued)

(if)

(ifi)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Trade receivables is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery
include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor to
engage in a repayment plan with the Group, and a
failure to make contractual payments for a period
of greater than 1 year.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented as net impairment losses within operating
profit. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against the same line item.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group is also exposed to credit risk in relation
to equity investments that are measured at
fair value through profit or loss. The maximum
exposure at the end of the year is the carrying
amount of these investments HK$33,621,000
(2019: HK$33,621,000).

(d) Liquidity risk

The Group exercises prudent liquidity risk management
by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances. The
Group's liquidity risk is further mitigated through the
availability of financing through its own cash resources
and the availability of banking facilities to meet its
financial commitments. In the opinion of the directors,
the Group does not have any significant liquidity risk.

IR ()

3 HKEREREE

3.1 I REREEE®)

(c) FERBR(E)

(ii)

(iii)

EHEEZBEE)

B 5 N E A YR (48)
BHREFEAR L EAIEE
HART U3 B T LA SE - S
BRI ENEZEERE
(ErBR)ESABERRN
SEEAUEREE - AR
B R FHFIAEL
BRI

B 5 REFAENREBER
e HEMNA 25 RRERER
HFEE o EL1R YD ST AT EH
MERBAFAR—BER -

KURABEFEZEARZE)
ABm % MEE

AEBNRABEARAABEE
ATEEEEHAEED
REKREMEENEER
B - RAFEREBRNZA
ERAeZERENKAE
33,621,000/ 7L (20194 -
33,621,000/87T) °

(d) RBEZER
AEBEBHERBRS MR
RRFEMEERDESRR -
AEENRBESERE—HE
BEEBARECEREFHERES
AR A SR1T B & LA & B U
EMEAER - EZR5 - A%
B BETAENRBDESAR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 5 R P (4R)
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’'s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows including interest elements computed using
contractual rates, or if floating based on rates at the
year-end date.

On
demand

BEX
HK$"000
TERT

At 31 December 2020 720205612A831H

Bank borrowings RITEE

Trade and other payables 85 & H e 38
(excluding non-financial ~ (EL BB EBRIN)

3 HXERERE@)

3.1

3 months
or less
=f8A
EWN

HK$’000
THET

142,359

B LR R 2 ()

(d) FRENE & B (8)
TEROIREEERBEXRBHES
HZIH B R RISR IR - RAERE
HIEB DM AREN SR AE
RABRBENSBERAOARMAR

mE - BRERANLERTAE
MMBEED - HEFE - A%
FHRENL RS -

3 months Over

to 1 year 1 year Total
=f@A
E-F HBBE-F met

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER

285,094

liabilities) 6,664 346,356 353,020
Lease liabilities HEBE - 20,525 104,001
Total #BEt 6,664 509,240 144,815 81,396 742,115

On 3 months 3 months Over
demand orless to1year 1 year Total
={EA =fE@A
BEK EAYEN EF—F HBEF BEt
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
THET FHET FHT FHET THET
At 31 December 2019  }A2019%12831H
Bank borrowings RITEE — 119,307 51,208 78,490 249,005
Trade and other payables & 5 & H et 5018

(excluding non-financial ~ (FE£ @& EKRIN)

liabilities) 5,329 291,026 — — 296,355
Lease liabilities HEEE — 16,980 50,939 102,783 170,702
Total Bt 5,329 427,313 102,147 181,273 716,062
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

IR ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HKEREREE

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1 I REREEE®)

(e) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's interest-rate risk arises from bank
borrowings. Bank borrowings at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk.
Bank borrowings at fixed rates expose the Group
to fair value interest-rate risk. The Group currently
has not used any interest rate swap arrangements
but will consider hedging interest rate risk should
the needs arise. If interest rate for variable rate
borrowings had been 1% higher/lower for the year
ended 31 December 2020 with all other variables
held at constant, the Group’'s profit before tax would
have been lower/higher by HK$2,822,000 (2019:
HK$2,420,000).

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, changes in interest
rates within an expected range had no material impact
on the interest income of cash and cash equivalents.

3.2 Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may vary the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by
total equity.

(e) ﬁﬁmué&@ﬁ@ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁi
AEENFERER KRG RITE
B FRRITEEFEASEAR
Eimu%ﬁjtﬂﬁ fE%fEﬁ_'Fi
%ﬁ$il%*“ﬁﬁﬁﬂ

% o NEEHE AW EFERT
m%%%%%m'ﬁQMﬁ%
DEEEHPMERR - WH
HE2020F12A31HIEFER
FEEBEREREN, 1%
mEMAEESRFITE - IX
5= B 7 BR B A s AR A48
hn 2,822,000 7% Jt (2019 F
2,420,000 7T) °

R 20204 K% 2019412 A31H -
T BR & B A A I R F ) N ¥R
2 RBEEFEDNFEWAERK
BAKE -

3.2 EXRER

AEEEREANBBERREASE
BiISELENREN - M RBRE
HE A S E A0 E RN -
AR MR R ENE AR RBIABIEE
AP e

RERIABELARE  AEEK
AE&QH%&%MH EEE ¥
TR Ak & & E PAREERS -

AEEREEABRLEMNELER
BR o R R TyIRIEE B AR
MARRRRTH -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BT ERR T ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BEKRERE®

3.2 Capital management (Continued) 3.2 EREE (#)

The gearing ratio is as follows: BEEBBHENOT :
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Total borrowings e m 241,960
Total equity R AR R m 1,191,465

BERBLER(%)

Gearing ratio (%)

The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2020 approximates to
that as at 31 December 2019.

3.3 Fair value estimation

The fair values of current financial assets, including cash
and cash equivalents, restricted cash, deposits for bank
borrowings, amount due from a related company and
trade and other receivables, as well as current financial
liabilities including trade and other payables and current
bank borrowings approximate their carrying amounts due
to their short maturities as at 31 December 2020.

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value, by the levels of inputs to valuation techniques.
The inputs to valuation techniques are categorized into
three levels within a fair value hierarchy, as follows:

e |evel 1 — Quoted prices unadjusted in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities.

e |evel 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included

2.2

2020F 12 A3 1 HMEEAE L RE
201912 A31 HAAE °

D AEEMET

AN E| BB &5 - 1R20209F 12 A31
B nocpE=(BERE kRS
ZEY  XRHIRES  RITEEX
Re  BREBARREURES
REMERZE) REBeHBE
(BIEE 5 & H fth FE A 7038 LA K BN AA
RITEE)N AR BEHELREE
& °

T ERE B E B R A BUR B AR
DR AREBEIENERITA -
REXNEABBEAAEERER
BRI BERUAT=ERER :

s FE—MHRAEEXRBHE
BmisrmmE(CREH
B) -

s FEKRTE-EMERENR

within level 1 that are observable for the BN ZBEXAER
asset or liability, either directly that is, as BEE(AER) KFE%
prices or indirectly that is, derived from (BVR BB BRr&E
prices. AEUE o

e Level 3 — Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data that is,
unobservable inputs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgments and estimates
made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are recognised and measured at
fair value in the financial statements. To provide an
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in
determining fair value, the Group has classified its
financial instruments into the three levels prescribed
under the accounting standards. An explanation of
each level follows underneath the table.

BR5 R M ()

B % B B B T ()
3.3 A REEMAF @A)

(i) 2REEER
7 55 18 31t 7 X TR B 75 R R RE R
REAABEFENEGBRTAR
REBEMELOHE G - &
BHEBREBEEAABEMRHA
B2 RNER  AREDR
S EAMRENREERTAD B
=EFER - BEFNTREL -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-8 E-F E=F st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHT FHT
Recurring fair value #2020612A31H
measurements at BEMANER
31 December 2020 itE
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at fair value AR A BEE B EEH
through profit or loss FABENEREE
— non current (note 19) — JERE(MZ19)
Unlisted equity investments FEmRERE
Total financial assets SREELE m
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£-E £°F F=FE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET THT THT
Recurring fair value RW2019512A31R
measurements at BEMAAEE
31 December 2019 TE
Financial assets SHEE
Financial assets at fair value ~ LAR# BEEHEHEE
through profit or loss FTABERSREE
— non current — ERE
Unlisted equity investments I EmRERE — — 33,621 33,621
Total financial assets SREEMGE = = 33,621 33,621

RIEE (2) ERAF —T-TFFH
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BT ERR T ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BEKRERE®

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 A REBEEMETE)

(i)

(ii)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Note that all the resulting fair value estimates are
included in level 3 during the year. For transfers in
and out of level 3 measurements see (iii) below.
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end
of the reporting period.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3. This is
the case for unlisted equity investments.

Valuation techniques used to determine fair values
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include:

e for unlisted equity investments — discounted cash
flow analysis.

All of the resulting fair value estimates are included
in level 3 where the fair values have been determined
based on present values and the discount rates used
were adjusted for counterparty or own credit risk.

(iii) Fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs (level 3)
The following table presents the changes in level 3
items for the year:

(i)

(i)

DABEBEER(E)

BUHER  RFARMELENR
REBERBFTINAE=E - B
FEBrENEAREL  F2
BT X (i) - NEBREBER
BERRERAABEELNS
AREHL -

i —BRZEEKR
WA BUR Y FERE
AEEMSHEE
ERIZBETAS®
MAE=E - L
MREREB IR
S7 o

F=E:

RREE 2 ABEENGEERT
AR E s TABENREM
BERfTEE

o FIFLMBERE—RIRE

EREDH -

WARBERZRRERE KA
BRERBFIREHFEERAR
Mm% - MIFTAMELEN AR E
BRFTVRAR=ZE -

(iii) EAERTABE@ABEBN A

REEFE(E=E)
TRINFRE=ZBRBERAFEN

=

Unlisted
equity
investments
FLETRERE
HK$’000
F#ET

Closing balance as at 31 December 2019

MR2019F 12 A31 BRI EAR 54

Closing balance as at 31 December 2020

MR2020F12 A31 B EAR 464
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(iv) Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value
(FV)
The following table summarises the quantitative
information about the significant unobservable inputs
used in level 3 fair value measurements. See (ii) above
for the valuation techniques adopted.

Un-observable

Description Fair value at inputs*
B RI5IRENAAEE L CPN oy
31 December 31 December
2020 2019 2020
2020F 2019%
12831 12A318
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T
Unlisted equity 23,621 Discount rate 19%-21%
investments for discounting
— Precision estimated cash flows
Robotics Limited ERiReRE,
FEmRERE LIRS
— Precision
Robotics Limited Net profit rate 19%-21%
B

BR5 R M ()

B % B B B T ()

SES

Range of inputs

REEMAE (@)

Ny

(iv) fHEBABBREQAEBENE

%
TEBAE =R EEFEM
REBEBATNAERE ABIEHNE(
BER - BRAMREMOGEERM
B2 LX)

Relationship of unobservable

(probability-weighted average) inputs to fair value

BABEHE(TRMEMETS)

TIRRAARBRANEENER

2019

19%—21%

15%—17%

Lower discount rate for discounting estimated
cash flows (-1%) and higher net profit

rate (+1%) would increase fair value by
HK$1,427,000;

Higher discount rate for discounting estimated
cash flows (+1%) and lower net profit

rate (1% would decrease fair value by
HK$1,304,000 (2019: Lower discount rate for
discounting estimated cash flows (-1%) and
higher net profit rate (+1%) would increase fair
value by HK$6,091,000; Higher discount rate
for discounting estimated cash flows (+1%)
and lower net profit rate (-1%) would decrease
fair value by HK$3,080,000.)
HREHRERE MAE TR % kAR
1%l 2 BEEM 427,007 :
BRERERE HBE LA % RFHE
TRH%)ELRABERD1304 00087 o
(2019% : BREHRERE L HRETR(%)
TR E7H+1%) 8 2 24 BEE16,091,000
AT BRBHRERE MR L %R
SFRIET (190 < 27 BRI 3,080,000
Ae)

RIEE (2) ERAF —T-TFFH
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

R R M FE ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(iv) Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value
(FV) (Continued)

Un-observable Range of inputs

B % B b B X (1)
3.3 A REEMAF @)

(iv) fEEBABBREQAEBENE
& (&)

Relationship of unobservable

(probability-weighted average) inputs to fair value

FIRERABBRAABENDE

Lower discount rate for discounting estimated
cash flows (-1%) and higher net profit

rate (+1%) would increase fair value by
HK$1,448,000;

Higher discount rate for discounting estimated
cash flows (+1%] and lower net profit

rate (1% would decrease fair value by
HK$1,237,000. (2019: Lower discount rate for
discounting estimated cash flows (-1%) and
higher net profit rate (+1%) would increase fair
value by HK$2,893,000; Higher discount rate
for discounting estimated cash flows (+1%)
and lower net profit rate (-1%) would decrease
fair value by HK$240,000.)
HREHRERE MAE TR % kA
LFH1908 2 A7 BEIEMN 448,007 :
HAGHRSREZMAE LA % RFHE
TRC1%IHS AL BEHS1,237,000%7 °
(20195 : BERIEERERBZBRETR(1 %)
TR E7H+1%) 8 24 B E2E 112,893,000
AT MRBHRERE L MR LFH(+1%)
ROEMETRC1%)% 2 2 2 BLER 240,000
Ao

Description Fair value at inputs*
Bt RTSIABHARERE FURRRAE BAHEEE(TRHMETY)
31 December 31 December
2020 2019 2020 2019
2020% 2019%
12831 128318
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T
Unlisted equity 10,000 10,000 Discount rate 19% = 21% ERELEAR
investments for discounting
— Intelligent estimated cash flows
Precision PRMHRENEL
Micro-systems g
Limited
FETRERE Net profit rate eIV 15%—17%
—RRERIZS %
ERAA
*  There were no significant inter-relationships between unobservable N

inputs that materially affect fair values.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

IR ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HKEREREE
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 A REEMETE)

(v) Valuation processes

(v) HERF

The finance department of the Group includes a team
that performs the valuations of non-property items
required for financial reporting purposes, including
level 3 fair values. This team reports directly to the
chief financial officer (CFO) and the audit committee
(AC). Discussions of valuation processes and results
are held between the CFO, AC and the valuation team
at least once every six months, in line with the Group's
half-yearly reporting periods.

The main level 3 inputs used by the Group are derived
and evaluated as follows:

e Discount rates for financial assets are determined
using a capital asset pricing model to calculate
a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risk specific to the asset.

e Net profit rate for unlisted equity investments are
estimated based on market information for similar
types of companies.

AEEMBHERA—@E/NE - B
A HE B S IE AR
EiTHE BREE=-EAAE
B W/ NEERAEEMEE M
BREREQER - REAAEE
BYEERENEY - BEMK
B ERZBeffE MRS
BREARE R AwEER
RMBEREER -

AEBEANTIZEFEEHAK
BT T 5 SRS AT -

s TRMEEMREXNEMREAN
BEETERAETE - BIs
ERMEAERESEED
M5 E B E R E R
HRIREIR X -

o ERFEARMTISELRM
sF3F LT I R B B % A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BRI (4R)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’'s management determines the estimated
useful lives of its property, plant and equipment and
consequently the related depreciation charges. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations and
competitor actions in response to severe industry
cycles. Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are less than previously
estimated lives, or it will write off or write down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold.

(b) Impairment of trade receivables

The Group makes allowance for impairment of trade
receivables based on an assessment about risk of
default and expected loss rates. The Group uses
judgment in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the
Group’s past history, existing market conditions as
well as forward looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period. Details of the key assumptions and
inputs used are disclosed in the tables in note 3.1(c).
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4.1 BERETHEE RRR

REBE R KA LB RRE © B

BE - EIAFERRIFRME
MERGR - TX ARt e g
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Allowance for inventories

In determining the amount of allowance required for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the Group
would evaluate customers’ orders, ageing analysis
of inventories and compare the carrying amount of
inventories to their respective net realisable value.
A considerable amount of judgments is required in
determining such allowances. If conditions which
have impact on the net realisable value of inventories
deteriorate, additional allowances may be required.

Income taxes and deferred taxation

Significant judgments is required in determining the
provision for income tax. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the current and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which
such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be recognised.
The outcome of their actual recognition may be
different.

Estimation of the fair value of certain financial
assets

The fair value of FVPL that is not traded in an active
market is determined using valuation techniques. The
Group uses its judgment to select a variety of methods
and make assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end of each reporting
period. For details of the key assumptions used and
the impact of changes to these assumptions see note
3.3

IR ()

4 BERESFTHEERHE @

4.1 EREETHEET RERR (8

(c)

(d)

(e)

FERE

REE B K% 77 5 P A0
BEEK - AEEEFEEPE]
B FENRESTLHELE
EMEmEERES A 2R F
B BEZBEIEEETAEH
B o W B E R ZRFENR
SURAE - RIZAVEHERIMNES -

PGB R R
HEBEMSHMERRAFLE
RHEE - EFREXRBBIET - &
AR SR BT A SETREE
HERKPIENER ~ HELEHE
AP HS E R AN 1S M BRR
BEZR  ERZBEReYEE
TE i TR I ) BN R SR FE AT S 35
BENIAE

HWERERRBAIEBAREKE
AR A AR 85 AT T AR R
RERIFAEEE - AIEZHE
ETEREZRLBEBBENEL
MEEE - ERBRERLEAR
PR e

A ETEREEN D AEE

RanBEtEREZFHTAR
@ BYFNERMSEEEZS
BTADNFERHEEXMNETER
REBE AEBESREEHEEE
NRVTEL E BRBEEREHR
MR TR MIEL R © PR
TERBRREPHZEFRRZE

EmFBRMESS -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BRI (4R)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGMENTS (Continued)
4.2 Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

With effect from 1 January 2008, companies within the
PRC are required to withhold income tax at 10% of the
amount of dividend declared to their immediate holding
companies outside the PRC when their PRC subsidiaries
declare dividend out of profits earned after 1 January
2008. A lower 5% withholding income tax rate is applied
when the immediate holding companies of the PRC
subsidiaries are established in Hong Kong and fulfil certain
requirements under the tax treaty arrangements between
the PRC and Hong Kong. During the year, the directors
reassessed the cash requirement of the Group and the
dividend policy of its major subsidiaries established in
the PRC, namely TK Mold (Shenzhen) Limited, YD Mold
(Shenzhen) limited, TK Precision Plastics (Shenzhen)
Limited and TK Plastic Products (Suzhou) Limited, based
on the Group's current business plan and financial position.
The retained earnings generated by these subsidiaries
amounting to HK$303,200,000 would be distributed and
deferred tax liability was accrued accordingly.This involves
critical judgments by the directors.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the executive directors of the Group. The executive directors
review the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess
performance and allocate resources and have determined
the operating segments based on the internal reports that
are used to make strategic decisions. During the year, the
Group has 21 operating segments, out of which 11 operating
segments relating to the mold business are aggregated into
‘mold fabrication’ operating segment as they have similar
economic characteristics and satisfy all conditions and meet all
the aggregation criteria in HKFRS 8; the remaining 10 operating
segments relating to the plastic business are aggregated
into ‘plastic components manufacturing’ operating segment
as they have similar economic characteristics and satisfy all
conditions and meet all the aggregation criteria in HKFRS 8.
Accordingly, the executive directors considered the nature of
the Group's business and determined that the Group has two
reportable segments as follows: (i) mold fabrication and (ii)
plastic components manufacturing.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The executive directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on their revenue and gross profit
and do not assess the assets and liabilities of the operating
segments.

Segment information for consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

(a) The following table presents information on revenue of the
Group by geographical segments for the year.

Revenue from external customers

5

SRR ()

DEER (E)
MITESRBLL D B KA K EFT

EOMRE  BYBEFEHEELEDHNE
EREE-

BHtRERERND BER

(@) TREJANEERFRRMBEDH
D RRAER -

HREFBA
2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

FH7 FHT

PRC 2]
South East Asia and Hong Kong Ko &S
Europe BM
USA Ee
Others B

738,846 1,084,315
320,752 BEIRY95
443,710 385,965
502,327 480,057

27,784 20,510

2,033,419 2,310,842

The revenue information above is based on delivery
location of the customers.

Non-current assets, other than financial instruments, by

ERBAERTIEREF Rt
b o

BREFRE DM ERBEE(ZRTA

country: BRAN) -
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHxT FHET
PRC B 663,357 760,163
Germany = 11,208 11,288

771,451

RIEE (2) ERAF —T-TFFH
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Revenue KA

Segment revenue AEUA

Inter-segment A EPEURA S
revenue elimination

Revenue from MREPHA
external customers

Timing of W N TR B
revenue recognition
At a point in time RER RS

Segment results AHEE

Other income and Hit W AR E &S
other losses — net — ¥4

Selling expenses HERY

Administrative expenses  {TEfS

Finance income/(cost) BBWA,/ ()
— net — ¥4

Share of net profit of FREFZEAREZ
an associate accounted  JE(EEEE A A
for using the equity R
method

Profit before income tax  BRFTEHiA%F
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 75 ik M et (48)

Segment information for consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (Continued)

(b) The segment information for the reportable segments is
set out as below:

Mold fabrication

HARE

2020
HK$'000
TET

797,315

(97,117)

700,198

700,198

2019
HK$'000
TR

743,804

(163,018)

590,786

590,786

207,667

D EE R (E)
EREmERERNDHER (&)
(b) FATEREDBEHIDIPBEREFIT

Plastic components

manufacturing Total
EREHEE @t
2020 2019 2020 2019
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET THT TET THT
(kkprAl 1,720,056 WPAELLEN 2 463,860
(EYRUVIN (153,018)
(kPP 1,720,056 WPAERXACE 2,310,842
(EkkPrAN 1,720,056 WPAEEEYEE 2,310,842
341,071 459,808 532,633 667,475
28,074 44,305
(71,130) (80,690)
(VAYWALIN (269,567)
5,034 (1,395)
371
240,542 360,499




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment information for consolidated statement of

comprehensive income (Continued)

(c) Information regarding the Group’s revenue by nature:

SRR ()

o)
=
it
od>
=
Bk
st
=
[S)
ok
At
¥

(c)

BRASEZEESDHBRAER

Sales of goods
Modification service income

& 7 an
fiE B AR 75 A

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TET
1,951,086 2,251,875
82,333 58,967
2,033,419 2,310,842

(d) Revenues of approximately HK$277,715,000 (2019:
HK$307,965,000) were derived from a single external
customer. These revenues are attributable to the plastic

components manufacturing segment.

6 OTHER INCOME AND OTHER LOSSES — NET

(d)

%9 277,715,000 & 7T ( 2019 & :
307,965,000/% 7T ) RI UL A T3 2k B &
—IINAEP c ZZEWAKRB FEE
HEESER -

Ht WA R EEE—FHE

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Other income Haug A
Government subsidies IR #68 B 40,427 30,301
Sales of scrap and surplus materials SHERER K TR R 15,918 18,918
Others Hi 2,490 928
50,147
Other losses — net HihEE— 38
Net foreign exchange loss b H S5 (37,241) (7,325)
Rent concessions (a) HeERa) 5,327 —
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  WENMREHKE
plant and equipment (note 31(b)) (K1:£31(b)) 1,153 1,483
(30,761) (5,842)

(a) Certain lessors offered rent concessions to the Group, without changing
the terms of the lease contracts, due to the outbreak of COVID-19. The

rent concessions were accounted for as other gains for the year ended 31

December 2020 with a corresponding reduction in the lease liabilities.

(a)

BMMRCOVID-19%1EEE A HEFEMES
HEROBERT @ BT HAARAEBERER
SER - e BT AEZE2020612831H8
IFFERHEMKE - RSAEaEEERD -

RIEE (2) ERAF —T-TFFH
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 75 ik M et (48)

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE 7 BEMBASTHEAX

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Changes in inventories of finished goods &k M ¥ K mIFEE H)
and work in progress (62,990) (49,916)
Raw materials and consumables used R R RN 781,781 835,686
Employee benefit expenses (note 8) BB RAF (HaFs) 534,232 622,739
Subcontracting expenses RIEBH 172,015 182,474
Depreciation of property, plant and ME  BENLERETENUL
equipment and amortization of | A ER
intangible assets 145,380 134,597
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHEEETE 64,714 66,874
Transportation and travelling expenses B M ERRE X 47,453 48,303
Water and electricity expenditures IKEEH 45,183 52,856
Other taxes and levies Hmii & 13,681 13,280
Advisory and legal service expenses hi MR RIS X 12,862 11,369
Maintenance expenses HIEE R 10,506 10,010
Commission expenses HeEH 8,385 16,060
Security and estate management RERMEERE
expenses 7,261 6,993
Allowance/(reversal of allowance) FEW B R B RS,
for impairment of receivables (Bt m) 6,992 (1,759)
Allowance for impairment of inventories  F&EREEE 5,203 5,848
Operating lease payments KETHENK 3,846 1,587
Utilities and postage fees B NI 3,293 4,084
Auditors’ remuneration 1% A % B
— Audit services — ZEART 3,013 3,747
— Non-audit services — IERZBRTS 435 501
Advertising and promotion fees BEMEEEMA 2,993 6,329
Donations B 2,194 3,849
Custom declaration charges WA E 1,854 2,503
Bank charges and handling fees RITWERFESE 1,822 1,476
Recruitment expenses RIEEE A 1,066 2,417
Other expenses HiRX 13,461 11,717
Total cost of sales, selling expenses HENSE HEMXKR
and administrative expenses THBZ 5 1,826,635 1,993,624
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

SRR ()

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE (Continued) 7 BMEEESHEZ@E
Research and development expenses represented: MEBRNKEK
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Raw materials and consumables used R R R FEM 32,131 31,813
Employee benefit expenses EEEFMAZ 33,666 33,798
65,611
8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 8 EEEAMX
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Wages and bonuses T&RIEA 497,329 561,823
Pension costs BRI
— defined contribution plans (a) — TRMHFEE) 11,821 19,135
Other social security costs H i R AR 18,232 24,300
Other allowances and benefits )2 BE M A& T 4,839 16,242
Share award scheme (note 25) It SR T8I (H1aE25) 2,011 1,239
534,232 622,739
(a) Employees in the Group's PRC subsidiaries are required (a) REEFFKBEARINEEBERHE
to participate in a defined contribution retirement scheme it MRS REENEEM
administrated and operated by the local municipal TORKETEl - REBERMPREMEA
government. The Group's PRC subsidiaries contributes AR M 5 TR 9 E B 1B B R
funds which are calculated as 10%-20% (2019: 10%-20%) BHEESH10%2E20% (20195 110%
of the average employee salary for the year as agreed by £20%) st EMEFE R & T 8K
local municipal government to the scheme to fund the LATRME B RIKBRIREE S o

retirement benefits of the employees.

RIEE (2) ERAF —T-TFFH 165
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

A 7% SR MY L (A8)

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued) 8 EER/ABMX @
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEEREEMAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
include four (2019: four) directors whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis shown in note 36. The
emoluments payable to the remaining one (2019: one)
individual during year are as follows:

HZE2020F12A31HILFE - K&
ERsmmu A TeENA (2019
F:MNB)EE - A HRME
IGFTFIRHDHT - N - BN TH
BR—H(2019F : —R)E=HFEHMA
THEBAT

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH7 FHT

Wages, salaries, allowance and IE - %Fe 2K
other benefits HAb 2 A

Bonus TE4T

Contributions to pension plans RIKS T B

Share award scheme i1 22T &

1,635
2,008
18
50

3,711

The emoluments paid to this individual fell within the
following bands:

Rz AL OBENF THIER -

2020 2019

Emolument bands i <& 48 Bl
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,001/ 75 %3,500,000% 7T
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7C 24,000,000/ 7T
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

9 FINANCE INCOME/(COST) — NET

BR5 R M ()

9 HBBA(KAE) — FHE

Interest income:
— Interest income on bank deposits
— Interest income from financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Interest expense:
— Bank borrowings
— Lease liabilities (note 14)

Finance income/(cost) — net

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current income tax
— Hong Kong profits tax
— PRC corporate income tax

— Income tax under-provided in previous

years

Total current tax expense

Deferred income tax
— Increase in deferred tax assets
(note 29)
— (Decrease)/increase in deferred tax
liabilities (note 29)

Total deferred tax (benefit)/expense

Income tax expense

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
FEWA -
— IRITF A F B UA 14,965
— UARBEFERHESF
SFABENESREEDN
FEHA 5,255
20,220
FEMAX :
— RITIEE (4,036) (12,745)
— HEBBEMFI4) (5,955) (8,870)
(21,615)
B A (A ) —F5E (1,395)
10 FRrf8BiRE X
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
BERFT1SHt
— BAENBR 13,930
— PR EAEH 21,730
— BEFEEHREETR
921
BEAFLIE R X 44 58 36,581
EFEFTISH
— EIEFR TR E N
(Kt:t29) (12,515)
— EEREaECRL),/
#AN(HTEE29) 34,630
B IE (W 2s) BAX %8 (4,663) 22,115
Fri8dip 58,696
BIEE (2R) ARAT —E-TEER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BRI (4R)

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Cayman Islands income tax

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability and accordingly, is
exempted from Cayman Islands income tax.

Hong Kong profits tax

Under the current Hong Kong Inland Revenue Ordinance,
from the year of assessment 2018/2019 onwards, the
subsidiaries in Hong Kong are subject to profits tax at the
rate of 8.25% on assessable profits up to HK$2,000,000,
and 16.5% on any part of assessable profits over
HK$2,000,000. The payments of dividends by these
companies to their shareholders are not subject to any
Hong Kong withholding tax.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT")

CIT is provided on the assessable income of entities
within the Group incorporated in the PRC, calculated in
accordance with the relevant regulations of the PRC after
considering the available tax benefits. The applicable CIT
rate is 25% (2019: 25%). TK Mold (Shenzhen) Limited,
TK Precision Plastics (Shenzhen) Limited and TK Plastic
Products (Suzhou) Limited, subsidiaries of the Group, were
recognised as “New and High Technology Enterprise”
and thus enjoy a preferential CIT rate of 15% from 1
January 2020 to 31 December 2022, 1 January 2018 to 31
December 2020 and 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021
respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(d) PRC withholding income tax

According to the CIT Law, starting from 1 January 2008,
a withholding income tax of 10% will be levied on the
immediate holding companies outside the PRC when
their PRC subsidiaries declare dividend out of profits
earned after 1 January 2008. A lower 5% withholding
income tax rate is applied when the immediate holding
companies of the PRC subsidiaries are established in Hong
Kong and fulfil certain requirements under the tax treaty
arrangements between the PRC and Hong Kong.

During the year, the immediate holding companies of the
PRC subsidiaries, namely TK Mold (Hong Kong) Limited,
TK Plastics (Hong Kong) Limited, TK Plastics (Hui Zhou)
Limited, TK Plastics (Su Zhou) Limited, YD Trading (Hong
Kong) Limited and TK Group International (Hong Kong)
Limited have obtained Hong Kong tax resident status
certificate, and therefore a lower 5% withholding income
tax rate is applied.

(e) The British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) income tax

No provision for income tax in BVI has been made as the
Group has no income assessable for income tax in BVI
during the year (2019: nil).

10 FrB8 B (@)

IR ()

(d) REITEHIFTEH

(e)

RIBEFEMET A - B2008F1 A
1THE  ERERIINEEZERAA
/R B BB A 1A 200841 A1 H %
FATHRE A AP EIRRE - B
ZEEEERAFEURI10%BTER
Frig® - B BENBRRNERET
BRARREBKLFEFBEES
BAEI MBI BIRAN T E T
TE v AR5 % R EE R R Ta 0 AT

v

188 o

FA - PEMBARNEEERA
A MRTIHEA(RE)BERAA
RTE2(FB)ARAR - RTx
BEM)BRATF - RITITL (%
MBERRA)  HREZ(FE)E
BARUERIEERE(FE)E
RAR JEESEERKRERS
RERR - I A I IR5 % B BUE R R 8
MIRFIFTIS TR

ABERLZBRBE(REBELZEHS])
PGt

HRAERERFAERBRELES
W EBRABHUA - BRI EEH 2
REBRZESHMEHREE (2019
FE) -
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B 75 ik M et (48)

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(f) Taxation on the Group’s profit

The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would have arisen
using the main statutory tax rate applicable to profit of the

Group due to the following:

10 FTSFHBE X (&)
(f) NEBRFIF
7K £ B R AT 12 B BT S R B A e 7R

TR T 71| %% 38 1 B2 5K R AN 5% i A
BREREAENEAENEREE

Profit before income tax

Tax calculated at corporate income
tax rate of 25%

Effects of:

— Different tax rates applied

— Income not subject to tax

— Accelerated deduction of research
and development expenses

— Tax losses not recognised

— Expenses not deductible for tax

— Under provision in prior years

— Withholding income tax on profit
to be distributed from the Group
companies in the PRC

— Utilisation of previously
unrecognised tax losses

FEEZR :
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
B BT 45 %0 A& A 240,542 360,499
R25% EMS MM ETE
EOpTRzE] 60,135 90,124
THFIENFZE
— RATREE (23,301) (38,089)
— BEZEHRA (1,675) (3,363)
— BB AN R
(7,482) (13,036)
— RERBEERE 1,728 3,475
— NABAX 1,224 8,383
— BAFERETE 1,261 921
— KBEASEHRERARSIK
Zm M B TE AT H
10,281
— ERALREARERZ
THIEE 18 —
58,696

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

SRR ()

11 EARNINGS PER SHARE 11 BREF
(a) Basic (a) &R
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit TR E AR B F 5 LA F Z 35 F B DA
for the year by the weighted average number of ordinary AEEEBRTETAK(TEERES
shares in issue for the year excluding shares held for R T &I B 2 Ik Hh (Mi5E22) ) #9n
employee share scheme (note 22). EFHEEE -
2020 2019
Profit attributable to owners of KRBHEE AR T
the Company (HK$'000) (F#&7T) 209,687 301,803
Weighted average number of BT S BRI
ordinary shares issued (thousands) (FR%) 830,817 832,972
Basic earnings per share (HK$) SREARZFET) 0.36
(b) Diluted (b) #E
Diluted earnings per share approximates basic earnings HZE2020F12A31HILFE - B
per share at the year ended 31 December 2020 (31 BERMNEGRERETN KBIER
December 2019: same). (201912 A31H : #8[) °

RIEE (2) ERAF —T-TFFH
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BRI (4R)

12 SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2020, all of which are limited liability companies:

12 M¥B A B8]

TXAR2020F12 A31HHEEMMB A

AI(ARERRA)IIE

Place of Principal activities Particulars of
Company name incorporation  and place of operation issued share capital Interest held
ARER AR EE  ETEEERCENY ERTRAFE Ptz
TK Group International BVI Trading of plastic products 50,000 ordinary shares of 100%
(Hong Kong) Limited* and molds/HK 1 USD each
RIKEER(FE)ERLR HERXEHE  U2BHGREAZS/FE  50,000RBREEIZFTHLER 100%
TK Plastic Products PRC Manufacture of plastic Paid in capital of HK$10,000,000 100%
(Suzhou) Limited* products/PRC
RIZBHmENARDA HE HEEBHE,/ T H EH£710,000,0007% T 100%
TK Mold (Shenzhen) Limited? PRC Fabrication of mold/PRC Paid in capital of HK$132,000,000 100%
RIEA(RINARR R HE BASUE/HE EHE7132,000,0007 7 100%
YD Mold (Shenzhen) Limited* PRC Fabrication of mold/PRC Paid in capital of HK$10,000,000 100%
HREA(RINBERAF hE BARUE/hE EHE7K10,000,0005 7T 100%
TK Precision Plastics PRC Manufacture of plastic Paid in capital of HK$166,000,000 100%
(Shenzhen) Limited* products/PRC
RIBEAIZCRINER AR B HEvBHR,/ TR E447166,000,00075 T 100%
TK Precision Plastics PRC Manufacture of plastic Paid in capital of HK$10,000,000 100%
(Huizhou) Limited* products/PRC
RIBENTZ(EM)BRRF)  HE HEvBHR,/ TR E4£710,000,0007 T 100%
TK Mold Germany GmbH Germany Fabrication of mold/ Paid in capital of EUR25,600 100%
Germany
TK Mold Germany GmbH EgEi BASUE/2E B AR 25,60080 T 100%

* Shares held directly by the Company

W Registered as wholly-owned foreign enterprises under PRC law

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

SRR ()

12 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 12 M B2 7l (#)
a Investments accounted for using the equity a FREZEARZKRE
method

Immaterial associate FERKEE QT

Place of
business/
country of % of ownership Nature of  Measurement
Name of entity incorporation interest relationship method Carrying amount
¥y FraRkER
EREH 1R B 32 Bl R BA BEME TEEE HREE
2020 2019 2020 2019
% % HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT
Motlles i Matrius Fisas ~ Spain 43.01 Associate*  Equity method 15,526
Navarro, S.L.*
Motlles i Matrius Fisas ~ FR3E7F BEDNRY  EmE
Navarro, S.L. *

*  Motlles i Matrius Fisas Navarro, S.L. is a private company incorporated *  Motlles i Matrius Fisas Navarro, S.L.%5
in Spain. Its principal activities are the provision of mold modification R F A AL AT c EXB%
services in Europe. B RARBUNR R S BURT -

2020 2019

HK$000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

At the beginning of the year REF] —
Addition NE 15,1565
Profit for the year F N F 371
Other comprehensive income H iR a W —
At the end of the year REFER 16,176 15,526

RIEE (2) ERAF —T-TFFH
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B 75 ik M et (48)

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 M1%¥ - BMERRE
Furniture,
fixture and
Leasehold Plant and computer Motor Construction
Improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
BEME BE %E
B HEREE REERE RE ERIR ait

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL

Year ended 31 December 2019 &Z2019E128318

Jl2:353

Opening net book amount FOEREFE 60,018 379,894 10,510 1,833 63,935 516,190
Currency translation differences SMERFRTEZE (675) (5,825) (131) (2) (1,214) (7,847)
Additions RE = = 3,403 5 218,137 221,545
Transfer g% 53,407 191,205 — — (244,612) =
Disposals HeE (11) (6,227) (819) — — (7,057)
Depreciation bl (31,921) (92,492) (4,735) (1,054) — (130,202)
Impairment loss HEBSE - (324) (27) = = (351)
Closing net book amount EXREREE 80,818 466,231 8,201 782 36,246 592,278
At 31 December 2019 120195124318
Cost A 179,745 911,739 39,569 5,935 36,246 1,173,234
Accumulated depreciation ZHFTERAE

and impairment (98,927) (445,508) (31,368) (5,153) = (580,956)
Net book amount REFE 80,818 466,231 8,201 782 36,246 592,278

Year ended 31 December 2020 &Z2020£12831H

IHFE

Opening net book amount ERERE 80,818 466,231 8,201 36,246 592,278
Currency translation differences SMEHRTEZR 3,175 23,341 268 2,279 29,071
Additions NE - - 3,640 11,157 74,797
Transfer B 18,370 70,591 - (88,961) -
Disposals (note 31(b)) HE(HE3110) (5) (476) (2) (483)
Depreciation b= (31,537) (101,760) (4,825) (138,760)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 70,821 457,927 7,282 152 20,721 556,903
At 31 December 2020 20205124318
Cost KR 207,407 1,018,345 45,051 6,049 20,721 1,297,573
Accumulated depreciation ZHTERAE

and impairment (136,586) (560,418) (37,769) (5,897) (740,670)
Net book amount EmEE 70,821 457,927 1,282 152 20,721 556,903
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R M e (48)
13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 13 1% - B R R ()

Depreciation charges were included in the following categories ELHTABRIN AR
in the profit or loss:

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Cost of sales SHE KA 117,136 107,515
Administrative expenses TERSX 21,483 22,516
Selling expenses HEMX 141 171
138,760 130,202
14 LEASES 14 HE
(a) Amounts recognised in the balance sheet (a) REEEBRERAZEHE

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET

Right-of-use assets ERAEEE
Properties ) ES 142,530

Lease liabilities HEEE
Current me 58,555
Non-current FERH 92,671
98,630 151,226
Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2020 R20200 M EEAEFRAEEE
financial year were HK$1,635,000 (2019: HK$45,000). 1,635,000/ 7T (20194 : 45,0007

) @
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BT ERR T ()

14 LEASES (Continued)

(b) Amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensive

income

14 fHE @)

(b) RERERARER S

Depreciation charge of right-of-use
assets — Properties (note 7)

Interest expense (included in finance
cost) (note 9)

Expense relating to short-term leases
(included in cost of goods sold and
administrative expenses) (note 7)

Expense relating to leases of low-value
assets that are not shown above as
short-term leases (included in
administrative expenses) (note 7)

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FAET
FERREENES N
— WE(E7) 66,874
FERAX (FFAMISAA)
(K7:£9) 8,870
B HATR SRR MRS
GTABEEMR A K
THAXR) (M:77) 1,548
EANPIE bl AR EATE &R
KEEEERERBENMY
(GEATTBRBIR) (BfaE7)
39

The total cash outflow for leases in 2020 was HK$57,070,000

(2019: HK$71,423,000).

20200 F HH E MR & " 1 25
/4 57,070,000 7 T ( 2019 £
71,423,000/ 7T) ©

(c) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases various offices, warehouses, equipment
and vehicles. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed
periods of 6 months to 8 years, but may have extension
options as described in (d) below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14 LEASES (Continued)
(d) Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a
number of property and equipment leases across the
Group. These are used to maximise operational flexibility
in terms of managing the assets used in the Group's
operations. The majority of extension and termination
options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by
the respective lessor.

15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

SRR MIEE

14 FHE (@)
(d) IER R AR I RIERE

AEBEZENERREBEHREDES
EEREIDEERE - EEAKE
LEMAEEMS @ WEHKFKIA
NEEIRMEEREN - KA AE
ENEREREIDEERETHASE
B1Tfe - AERA A A BT -

15 B EE

Computer
software Goodwill Total
EREH 5k Foh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TET T
Year ended 31 December 2019 BZ2019F12831BLFE
Opening net book amount FUEmFE 10,848 845 11,693
Currency translation differences IERRITEZR (132) (24) (156)
Additions NE 6,689 — 6,689
Amortisation charge BT (4,395) — (4,395)
Closing net book amount FRIEEMFEE 13,010 821 13,831
At 31 December 2019 #2019%12A318
Cost KA 35,431 821 36,252
Accumulated amortisation REtEE (22,421) = (22,421)
Net book amount R FE 13,010 821 13,831
Year ended 31 December 2020 HZE2020512A318 LEE
Opening net book amount FONRMFE 13,010 13,831
Currency translation differences IERRTEZR 422 500
Additions NE 16,449 16,449
Amortisation charge BT (6,620) (6,620)
Disposals (note 31(b)) & (H231(0)) (19) (19)
Closing net book amount EREERE 23,242
At 31 December 2020 #2020%12831H
Cost B AR 54,091 54,990
Accumulated amortisation Rt (30,849) (30,849)
Net book amount BRI FE 23,242 24,141

RIEE (2) ERAF —T-TFFH
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BT ERR T ()

15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Amortisation charges were included in the following categories
in profit or loss:

15 B EE &)

B HET ABmm TR

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx TAET

TR

Administrative expenses

Goodwill arose from the acquisition of 100% equity interest in
TK Mold Germany GmbH in 2014.

The recoverable amount of the CGU related to TK Mold
Germany GmbH is determined based on value-in-use
calculations. The calculation uses pre-tax cash flow projections
based on financial forecasts prepared by management
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates
stated below.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculation are as
follows:

7 2 A 2014 F Y2 B8 TK Mold Germany
GmbHEY100% AR A HE &8 1 EE A

ARBITK Mold Germany GmbHEIIR & E
Bz AT E & R R EER
ERAEE - ZAERBEEEMEL
RERFHENMBIER - FABATE
RERAEL  cBATFHRENIRS
TR Ty {E BT SR MO (i 538 5 SR HEHT o

ANAHEERAEENTIEZRRMT ¢

2020 2019

Net book value (HK$'000) REFE(TAET)
Net profit margin (%) FME(%)
Revenue growth rate (%) AR R (%)
Discount rate (%) BRI 2 (%)

821
7%
2%
16%

The directors of the Company consider that no impairment
charge was required after performing the impairment
assessment for the year (2019: nil).

If the estimated future cash flows had been 10% lower
than management'’s estimates as at 31 December 2020, the
Group would still have recognised no impairment loss on the
goodwill.

If the discount rate had increased 2% as at 31 December 2020,
the Group would still have recognised no impairment loss on
the goodwill.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BR5 R M ()

16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 16 ZEAE PSR T A
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHET
Assets as per balance sheet EEABRRNEE
Loans and receivables: ER R EWGIE
— Trade and other receivables — B 5 REAMBEWFIE
(excluding prepayments and (TEFERNRIE R
tax recoverable) AT YR B R IE ) 277,760 317,552
— Restricted cash — XRHEE 443 17,638
— Deposits for bank borrowings — RITEENRS 148,231 134,594
— Cash and cash equivalents — HERIREEEY 920,446 582,878
Financial assets at fair value through ARAARBEEBEEZSHA
profit or loss BN orpEE 33,621 33,621
1,380,501 1,086,283
Liabilities as per balance sheet EEEERRAR
Liabilities measured at amortised cost: REEKATTEZBE
Trade and other payables B 5 N E b ET R IE
(excluding non-financial liabilities) (TefEEemas) 353,020 296,355
Bank borrowings RITEE 282,235 241,960
Lease liabilities HEAE 98,630 151,226
733,885 689,541
17 INVENTORIES 17 &€&
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Raw materials JR#4# 31,672 38,352
Work in progress K 357,524 302,565
Finished goods RURK oA 72,343 64,312
461,539 405,229
Less: allowance for impairment B R R (14,444) (8,188)

447,095 397,041
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B 75 ik M et (48)

17 INVENTORIES (Continued) 17 #E @)

The movements of allowance for impairment are analysed as EBREEE ST T -
follows:

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHEIT
At beginning of the year F9) 2,441
Currency translation difference INEERRITE =R (101)
Allowance for impairment of inventories FEREREE 5,848
At end of the year FR 14,444 8,188

AAFRAEEXNARAZFERAR

1,487,220,000 & st ( 2019 %
1,630,088,0005 7T o

The cost of inventories included in cost of sales for the year
was HK$1,487,220,000 (2019: HK$1,630,088,000).

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 ES R HMEWFIE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Trade receivables Z 5 W RIE 283,834 315,867
Less: allowance for impairment R BB R (11,258) (4,361)
Trade receivables, net B EWRIBEEE 272,576 311,506
Export tax refund receivables H 3R T fE U Z0 08 13,629 21,051
Prepayments and deposits A FIE Rige 27,054 31,270
Value-added tax recoverable G EE 2,393 1,921
Advances to employees AlEE R 3,550 4,037
Others HAith 1,634 2,009
320,836 371,794
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
ISR MIEE (4B)
18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 18 & 5 & H b FE UL FE ()

(a) The carrying amounts of the trade receivables are

(a) EZEUHEZREBEMN TIIEE

denominated in the following currencies:

HE -

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000

FHxT FHET

UsD E5T 232,963 221,181
RMB AR 39,742 78,782
EUR BT 11,024 12,006
HKD BIT 105 3,898
283,834 315,867

(b) The credit period granted to customers is generally
between 30 and 90 days. The ageing analysis of the trade

(b) ETFEPMEEMHBEN FI0E90
RzM@ - B EEFIREHE RS

receivables from the date of sales is as follows: BEERS T :

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$'000

FExT FHET

Less than 3 months =EANUA 255,196 294,175
More than 3 months but wBim={E AR

not exceeding 1 year TR —F 27,804 21,692

More than 1 year —FPAE 834 —

283,834 315,867

The Group’s sales are made to various customers. While
there is concentration of credit risk within a few major
customers, these customers are reputable and with good
track record.

AEENHEERAREFEL -
EREERRETRETEER
FrEZEEFEERELRRR
SRR RCER ©
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A 7% SR MY L (A8)

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 18 EZ R H M EWRIE (&)
(c) Movements for the Group's allowance for impairment of (c) RAEERE ZEINRIB M R (E B E 2
trade receivables are as follows: BT -
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHEIT
At beginning of the year F9 6,250
Allowance for impairment AR 673
Reversal of allowance for impairment  E{E & f5# 0 (2,432)
Receivables written off during the year ZN4F & & 45K U O] M35 2
as uncollectible FEURIR =
Currency translation differences INERRITE =R (130)
At end of the year FR 4,361
The creation and release of allowance for impairment IR ELDZBREREE T AR
have been included in administrative expenses in the HRERERAZITHAY -
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
(d) Fair values of trade receivables (d) EZEWRENAAEE
Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, ARIRERERFENDPERE -
their carrying amount is considered to be approximate as HEEEESRSEQAREEES -

their fair value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Financial assets mandatorily measured at FVPL include the

following:

SRR ()

19 UAREBEFEEEZBTTAR
ENTHMEE

(a) BHIA DR EEAEAEEHA
BEMeREERRETIISE:

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT THET
Non-current assets RBEE
Unlisted equity investments JEETIRERE 33,621
Current assets REEE
Wealth management products W EEREM
— Beginning of the year — F7) = —
— Additions — RE 1,241,008 586,808
— Disposals — HE (1,241,008) (586,808)
End of the year FR —

The wealth management products managed by high credit
quality commercial banks in the PRC with expected return
range from 2.4% to 3.6% (2019: 3.0% to 3.9%) per annum
and will mature within one year.

VEEREERBTRBRSEEER
PEERITER  HHFRFENT
24% E3.6% (20194 : 3.0% &
3.9%) * WK —FERNE|HE -

RIEE (2) ERAF —T-TFFH
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A 7% SR MY L (A8)

19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(b) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

During the year, the following gains were recognised in
profit or loss:

19 UAREBETEBHSET AL
EHNEREE @

(b) RIBZR P IERH T HE

FA - REBESFREROWSRINT

Interest income on wealth REF WA — JFREME R
management products recognised in I EEIEERAOFEUA

finance income — net (note 9) (RHiE9)

(c) Fair value measurements

For information about the methods and assumptions used
in determining fair value, please refer to note 3.3.

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx TET
5,255
(c) DABEE

BRBEERABEMRAITERR
RHER - F2HMFE33 -

20 RERREEEY

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TAT

Cash and bank balances B4 MIRTTA
Restricted cash 2 BR HI 2R &

920,889 600,516
(443) (17,638)

920,446 582,878

As at 31 December 2020, restricted cash mainly represented
restricted deposits held at bank as reserve for issuance of
guarantee letter for the product quality as required by the
customers (2019: restricted cash mainly represented restricted
deposits held at bank as reserve for issuance of guarantee letter
for the import of raw materials).

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents approximate to

their carrying amount and represent maximum exposure to
credit risk.
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A5 ERAR T ()

21 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 21 RER KRG EE

Number of
ordinary shares Share capital Share premium Total
EEREE R R A3 5(E st
thousands HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TAT TAT TR

As at 1 January 2019, #2019F1R18 »
31 December 2019 and 2019F12A318 K

31 December 2020 2020%12A31H 833,260 83,326 251,293 334,619

(a) All shares issued rank pari passu with each other.

(a) FAEEHETROBILFERS S -

22 SHARES HELD FOR EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME 22 Fi{EER&GTEFEZRH

2020 2019
Total Total
Shares consideration Shares  consideration
i) BHRE B BRE
thousands HK$'000 thousands HK$'000
TR TET Fik FTHET

Shares held for employee share EERMTERSEZ

scheme i) 2,932 10,416 1,154 5,517

The Group through its trustee, Bank of Communications
Trustee Limited, acquired a total of 1,778,000 of the
Company’'s shares during 2020 (2019: 1,154,000). The
total consideration paid to acquisition of these shares was
HK$4,899,000 (2019: HK$5,517,000), which has been
presented as a deduction from equity attributable to owners
of the Company. These shares are held by the trustee for
the purpose of granting share award under the Company's
employee share award scheme (see note 2.17).

AEER20200FFREITARABIR
TEEAERAGEES £1,778,000 %
(20194 : 1,154,000/%) A DGR - B
BZERMHAE 8K EA4,899,000/%5
JL(20194F : 5,517,000 7C) ' E25 5
BARREB ABMGERPHR - Z5
B B ZEARBE AR BE B IRG% 26
SPEI(RME2.17)BER DB MR B
BA -

RISE (BR) BRAR —Z_ZFFRH
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B 75 ik M et (48)

22 SHARES HELD FOR EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME 22 MEERGFEIEE ZRHG @)
(Continued)

Number of Total

Details =15 shares consideration

R EE HRE

thousands HK$'000

T FExT

Opening balance 1 January 2019 201991 A1 B EIVI & & = -

Acquisition of shares by the Trustee ZEABERS 1,154 5,517

Balance 31 December 2019 M20194F 12 A31 B &% 1,154 5,517

Acquisition of shares by the Trustee XEABERG 4,899

Balance 31 December 2020 202012 A31 B Y& 8% 10,416
23 RETAINED EARNINGS 23 RE&EF

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

At 1 January ®1A1H 841,175 715,615

Profit for the year F Ak 209,687 301,803

Dividends paid B E (91,658) (158,319)

Transfer to statutory reserves R E TS (14,878) (17,924)

At 31 December ®12H831H 944,326 841,175
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24 OTHER RESERVES

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

SRR ()

24 Hib{RE

Currency
Statutory Shares-based translation
reserves payments reserve Total
BB H
EERE ER 2% B RfkE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT
At 1 January 2019 H2019F181A8 79,665 = (54,441) 25,224
Share-based payment expenses PABR (0 LR 2 3R 2 — 1,239 — 1,239
Transfer to statutory reserves BREZEATRHE 17,924 — — 17,924
Currency translation differences IERRITEEZR — — (23,199) (23,199)
At 31 December 2019 RW2019%12831H 97,589 1,239 (77,640) 21,188
At 1 January 2020 R2020F1A1H (77,640)
Share-based payment expenses AR BER 2 HRFAS
Transfer to statutory reserves (a) BREEERKEE)
Currency translation differences INERRTEZR
At 31 December 2020 12020%12A31H 112,467 3,250 10,309 126,026
(a) Statutory reserves (a) EERME
In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of BIEFBEBBEEERER  A5H
the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries of the Group should make R BB QR EGEREFRA
appropriation of not less than 10% of its net income after DOR10% BIEETEE o & 25
taxes to legal reserve. Further appropriation is optional EEMREED KM EAR50% 3k
when the accumulated statutory reserve is 50% or more LAER  AIETTATCRERE— T
of its registered capital. Upon approval from the board of - RKESSHEEL  FEREA
directors, the statutory reserves can be used to offset AREEAEENPENB AR Z
accumulated losses of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group. ZETEE -

RIEE (2) ERAF —T-TFFH
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BT ERR T ()

25 EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME

The share-based compensation expense recognised during the
year are as follows:

25 & & 75 El

ARG BERBEET T

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx TAET

FGEUEE

Share award scheme

The Company adopted a share award scheme on 25 February
2019 (the “Share Award Scheme"”) as means to recognise the
contribution by the Group's personnel and to provide them
with incentives to retain them for the continual operation
and development of the Group. Pursuant to the Share Award
Scheme, the vesting period of the awarded shares is 5 years
from their respective grant dates.

The Group planned to use shares held for employee share
scheme to award the grantees of the Share Award Scheme.
The awarded shares are held by Bank Of Communications
Trustee Limited. This Trust is consolidated in accordance with
note 2.3.

ARQAF201942 H 25 B H4% 10 22 B
TEI([ IR @GS ]) - (ERRAIARE
BAEFEERMARRERHEHHE RS
RAEENFELSERERELERM
BT - BEBERMDREEE - RERDD
REH AT BB ARESE -

AEEFEERREERNDEFEDN
B tn B2 R 0 22 BT Bl MO A - 228
B AR BRITETETBERAFEE -
ZEFRBEME2.3TIAGH ©

Movements in the number of Awarded Shares are as follows: BRI EE BT -
2020 2019
At 1 January ®1A1H 1,154,000 —
Granted [R5 Ja 1,778,000 1,154,000
At 31 December Mm12H31R8

The Group has to estimate the expected retention rate of the
share award scheme in order to determine the amount of
share-based compensation expenses charged to profit or loss.
As at 31 December 2020, the expected retention rate was
assessed to be 100%.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020

AEBAMFROBEEMNBHEE
o PETEESIRA RN AERE
FEMS 4% - N2020F12A318 » &
R 17 R4 2100% ©



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BR5 R M ()

26 BORROWINGS 26 fBE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Non-current JEENHR
Bank borrowings RITEE
— unsecured — 158,475 134,950
Less: current portion of non-current B JERNEREE ZmEh I
borrowings (100,040) (59,039)
75,911
Current ENHA
Bank borrowings RITEE
— secured (a) —a#&H(a) 123,760 107,010
Current portion of non-current borrowings JERIHA(E & 2 R ENE 5 100,040 59,039
223,800 166,049
Total borrowings BEE®E 282,235 241,960
(@) As at 31 December 2020, bank borrowings amounting (a) M2020%E12A318 » A&#123,760,000
to HK$123,760,000 were secured by the bank deposits BITHETREEDINETER
of HK$148,231,000 (As at 31 December 2019, bank 148,231,00078 TT/EH# (FA2019E12
borrowings amounting to HK$107,010,000 were secured B31H : A#0107,010,000/8 CHRTT
by the bank deposits of HK$134,594,000). & BASRFT 2 20134,594,000/% 7T /EK
#) -
(b) The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated (b) EEMNERER T E®E
in the following currencies:
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
HKS BT 75,860 134,950
usD e 82,615 —
EUR BT 123,760 107,010
282,235 241,960
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 75 ik M et (48)

26 BORROWINGS (Continued)

(c) The exposure of the borrowings to interest-rate changes
and the contractual repricing dates at the balance sheet
dates are as follows:

26 5 & (&)

0 REERBXRAY HEEEHH
MEZHEBRRANEFNEERH

Borrowings at floating rates HFENEEE
6 months or less FE PN

(d) The borrowings are repayable as follows:

Within 1 year 1F AR
Between 1 and 2 years 122N
Between 2 and 5 years 2E5F A

s

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TAT
241,960

(d) BEARNKTHRAEE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TAT
223,800 166,049
48,360 75,911
10,075 —
241,960

(e) The effective weighted average interest rates at the

e) REEBBRASNERNETH

balance sheet dates are as follows: FZEET -
2020 2019
Bank borrowings denominated in: ARSI EBEHENRITEER
HK$ BT 2.72%
USD ETT -
EUR BT 0.59%

(f) The carrying amounts and fair value of non-current
borrowings are as follows:

(f) JFENHEENREENA A EBELT

Carrying amounts REE
Fair value (level 2) AREE(E2E)

Weighted average discount rate used  FTfA 7 (BE & IN4E F 15

for fair value (%) BRIRE (%)

T
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
75,911
74,390
2.72%
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27 DEFERRED INCOME ON GOVERNMENT

GRANTS

The amount represented various subsidies granted by and
received from local government authorities in the PRC. The
movements in deferred income on government grants are as

follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BR5 R M ()

27 BRI A

ZRRETEEMBARER LS T
M Z IR E) o BT il BhE T WA B = B
wmr

Opening balance as at 1 January
Receipt of grants

Recognised in the profit or loss
Currency translation differences

Closing balance as at 31 December

28 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables
Wages and staff welfare benefits payable

Accrual for expenses and other payables (a)

Other taxes payable

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$'000

THxT THET

M A1 B84 36,442 23,793

W BB & 18,210 20,804

RIESER (10,970) (7,483)

INEESRRITE E R 2,739 (672)

M2 A31 B H R 5 46,421 36,442
28 ES R HMENKIE

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHxT FHETT

=) A E e 335,321 273,906

ERTEREEREF 97,849 108,981

FEETRI S R H b fE {5 FXE (a) 17,699 22,449

E b SRR 5,501 6,415

456,370 411,751

(a) The amount mainly represented accruals for commission (a)

and professional service expenses.

ZRAEBEEAE REXRBAX
FEETER -

RIEE (2) ERAF —T-TFFH
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
R R M FE ()
28 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 28 E5 Kk Hth FEFFRIE ()

(b) BHRENFIBEATIIEREE :

(b) Trade payables were denominated in the following

currencies:
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
RMB AR 316,337 245,118
UsD ETT 11,689 20,575
HKS$ BT 5,733 6,284
EUR BT 1,562 1,929
335,321 273,906

FERt A R H A BN AN EREE
TEUARERHE

The carrying amounts of accrued expenses and other
payables were primary denominated in RMB.

(c) The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the goods/ (c) BEFEMNZEREY, IRIEEWRE

192

services receipt date is as follows: MR ERE ST
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FABT
0-90 days 0£90H 261,677 206,165
91-120 days 91&120H 49,783 42,799
121-365 days 121£365H 19,951 20,801
Over 365 days HiE365H 3,910 4,141
335,321 273,906
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 29

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax
relates to the same taxation authority. The analysis of deferred
tax assets and liabilities is as follows:

SRR ()

IEIE TS B

T B A TE R T (L4 5 B) BA B IR A B
AR A RERE YRR -—HBHE
BERZBREMEH - AEHELTHEHR
BERAREBRKE EXLHBEER
BEIMWT :

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Before offsetting 35 88 Al
Deferred income tax assets: FRIEFTESHEE -
— to be recovered after more than — BREIE121E A & Uk
12 months 6,963 5,466
— to be recovered within 12 months — #1218 A Rk E 14,749 11,324
16,790
Deferred income tax liabilities: RIEMEHEE
— to be settled after more than — BREBA12EAEEE
12 months (47,226) (42,855)
— to be settled within 12 months — BRI RNEE (15,160) (17,672)
(62,386) (60,527)
After offsetting KHE
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFTSHAE (40,674) (43,737)

As at 31 December 2020, deferred income tax assets and
deferred income tax liabilities were offset, where they are in
the same entity, to the extent of HK$21,712,000 (31 December
2019: HK$16,790,000).

720201283180 » REEEENET
FIEHMEERECHSHABEERER
$421,712,0007 £ (2019412 A318 :
16,790,000/ 7T) °

RIEE (2) ERAF —T-TFFH
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29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 29 IEFEFTISHE (&)

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are as follows:

EEFRSHEERABNESNT ¢

Deferred
income on
Accrued  government
Deferred income tax assets expenses grants Total
BUS#BY
ELERBREE PEFTR X i1 ON Hat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET TET
As at 1 January 2019 M2019F1A1H 1,769 3,569 5,338
Currency translation differences INERRITEER (962) (101) (1,063)
Recognised in profit or loss PMERER 10,5617 1,998 12,515
As at 31 December 2019 72019512 A31H 11,324 5,466 16,790

194

As at 1 January 2020 720201 A1H
Currency translation differences INERRITEZE
Recognised in profit or loss RIBEER
As at 31 December 2020 7202012 A31H 6,963 AW AV
Revaluation
surplus in
Accelerated related to
tax  Withholding business
Deferred income tax liabilities depreciation income tax  combination Total
HEK
Xl
BERBHERE MERBITE BEMAFEHR BB #@gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAT TAT FAT THET
As at 1 January 2019 #®2019%1A1RH (16,785) (10,490) 9 (27,266)
Currency translation differences INERRNEZR 1,361 — 8 1,369
Recognised in profit or loss REEER (27,448) (7,182) — (34,630)
As at 31 December 2019 ®2019%12A31H (42,872) (17,672) 17 (60,527)

As at 1 January 2020
Currency translation differences
Recognised in profit or loss

120201 A18

NERRFTEER

NBERER

As at 31 December 2020

202012 A31H

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020

(42,872)
(2,519)

(1,827)

(47,218)

(17,672)

2,512

(15,160)

t)

(60,527)
(2,544)
685

(62,386)




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carry-forward to the extent that the realisation of the related
tax benefits through the future taxable profits is probable.
As at 31 December 2020, no deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the unused tax losses amounting
to HK$6,314,000 (31 December 2019: HK$33,389,000) as its
realisation is uncertain. Such tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

30 DIVIDENDS

A5 ERAR T ()

29 JEHE P15 (&)

BEFBHREEDARBHREERNE
BRRERBAMNEEMEE 2B EE
BRERALR - R2020612A831H » A&
5] 37 R BE AR (2 A F 1 E5486,314,000% 7T
(20194F12 4318 : 33,389,000/ T )

HEN - AT AR RS ERAEE

30 IR

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT TAT

Interim dividend paid of HK$0.02 (2019
Interim: HK$0.05) per ordinary share

BEIREEA0.02/8 7T
(20194 A58 : 0.05/87T)

IR AR ERAR S 41,663
Proposed final dividend of HK$0.08 REREBR0.088 T
(2019: HK$0.09) per ordinary share (20194 : 0.09/87T)
IR B R ERAR B 74,993

116,656

The dividends paid in 2020 and 2019 were HK$91,658,000
(HK$0.11 per share) and HK$158,319,000 (HK$0.19 per share)
respectively. A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2020 of HK$0.08 per share, amounting to a total
of approximately HK$66,661,000 is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

#2020 FF & 2019 F R 14 /9 BZ 8 5 Bl
#$91,658,0008 T (FAR0. 1B L) &
158,319,000/ 7T (FAR0.1987T) ° AN
ABREERRBAF A EERRTE
£2020F12A3MHIEFEZ RBKESE
§%0.08/8 7T + IR B 45 4966,661,0007%
=

RISE (BR) BRAR —Z_ZFFRH
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31 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash

generated from operations:

31 &6t RE

Profit before income tax BT BLATE T
Adjustments for: FEE
Finance expenses (note 9) B F S (A1529)
Interest income (note 9) F B A (HTaE9)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BE X
equipment (note 13) WE(KE13)
Impairment of property, plant and W BB MERERE
equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE
(note 7) (Hiat7)
Amortisation of intangible assets B A EHE
(note 15) (Btet15)
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BE MR E KRS
plant and equipment (note 6) (Kt:6)
Rent concessions (note 6) HEER(HiE6)
Allowance for impairment of GFERERE
inventories (note 7) (K1527)
Allowance/(reversal of allowance) KRB RERE,
for impairment of receivables (B EA D)
(note 7) (Btet7)
Share based payments (note 25) VARR 19 B LR 2 A 5k (M1 7#25)
Share of net profit of an associate il NS |
(note 12a) (Ktst12a)
Changes in working capital: HEASEH
Inventories =&
Restricted cash R HIE &
Trade and other receivables %%&ﬁﬁﬂfél&m
Amount due from a related company el NGB!
Trade and other payables ﬁ%&ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁﬁ(lﬁ
Cash generated from operations REMBRE
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2=
\

Zz /)l

(a) B AT 1S4 A0 A 82
Eal

B R M EE
CEMB/RELZ

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx THET
240,542 360,499
4,036 12,745
(15,025) (20,220)
138,760 130,202
351
66,874
4,395
(1,483)
5,848
6,992 (1,759)
2,011 1,239
(650) (371)
(565,257) (59,620)
17,195 18,915
43,966 (14,573)
(10,898) —
121,708 (14,245)
563,437 488,797



31 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds
from disposals of property, plant and equipment and

intangible assets comprise:

31 G REREBRME (&

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

R el

(&)

(b) ReHBEERERN LEWME -
BB R EELNREREERNFTSHK

RORE

2020
HK$"000
TET

Net book amount disposed B EREFE
Gain on disposal (note 6) =S (A aE6)
Proceeds from disposal HES B

(c) Net assets reconciliation

This section sets out an analysis of net asset and the
movements in net asset for each of the periods presented.

(c) EEFEHK
RENTH I &
2020

HK$'000
FTERT

Cash and cash equivalents

Borrowings — repayable within

one year

Borrowings — repayable after one year

Lease liabilities

RekBEEEY
EE—ER—FREE

FNa

EE—RER—FREER
HERE

Bl

920,446

(223,800)
(58,435)
(98,630)

Net assets

BEFE

539,581

Cash and cash equivalents

Gross debt — fixed interest rates
Gross debt — variable interest rates

(note 26)

RehkBeEEY

BEF—EEN =

BEB—FBH=
(K1iE26)

920,446
(98,630)

(282,235)

Net assets

BEFE

539,581

2019
HK$'000
TAT

7,057
1,483

8,540

2 HREEFERE
EREESH N -

2019
HK$'000
TAT

582,878
(166,049)

(75,911)
(151,226)

189,692

582,878
(151,226)

(241,960)

189,692

RIEE (2) ERAF —T-TFFH
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31 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 31 R ERERMET @@
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(c) Net assets reconciliation (Continued) (c) EEFEHR®E)
Other assets Liabilities from
financing activities
HitEE RERMEEHNEE
Borrowings Borrowings
Cash and cash due within due after
Net assets equivalents Leases 1 year 1 year Total
ReR MER MEE
BERE REZEN HE HEMEE HEMnEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT THEL TAT TAT
As at 1 January 2019 R2019E181A 753,811 (212,147) (107,218) (235,014) 199,432
Cash flows RenE (167,884) 60,966 (55,450) 159,103 (3,265)
Acquisition — leases NE—THE — (45) — — (45)
Foreign exchange INEFIE
adjustments (3,049) = (3,381) = (6,430)
As at 31 December 2019  R2019512A31H 582,878 (151,226) (166,049) (75,911) 189,692
As at 1 January 2020 R20205181H 582,878 (151,226) (166,049) (75,911) 189,692
Cash flows Beng 332,177 47,269 (47,320) 17,476 349,602
Rent concessions (note 6) T4 ZH (#1:6) — 5,327 = = 5,327
Foreign exchange ONE R
adjustments (10,431) (5,040)
As at 31 December 2020 A2020512A31H 920,446 (98,630) (223,800) (58,435) 539,581
32 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 32 ZAREE
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no significant MR2020%F12 8318 » AEBEWET ([ E
contingent liabilities (31 December 2019: nil). AR EE(2019F 128318 : &) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

33 COMMITMENTS
(a) Capital commitments

The Group had the following capital commitments:

SRR ()

BEmE L&A
— ERTREREE

Acquisitions of plant and equipment:
— Contracted but not provided for

33 AiE
(a) BAENRE
REBEATEARAN
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx TAET
52,312

(b) Operating lease commitments

The Group leases premises under non-cancellable operating
lease agreements. The Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases as follows:

(b) EEHERRE

AEEREBETAHEECEHE H=
HEYE - AEER A HELE
HERET R RKERERA

Not later than one year —FR
— to related companies — TR A A
— to third parties — FE=H

EWEEUNR :
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F#ET
314
314

RIEE (2) ERAF —T-TFFH
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BT ERR T ()

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS MM BELIRS

(a) Names and relationship (a) BFEREIR
AT 2R RER AL RREZE2020
F1I2AMBLEEEHASEAR S
AR A SERER

The following companies and individuals were related
parties of the Group that had transactions or balances with
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020:

Relationship with the Group
HEAEEZBE

Name of the related party
BELER

An entity controlled by Ultimate Shareholders
RERREHNER

TK Technology Holdings Ltd.
RIRREEARAA

TK Technology (Shenzhen) Ltd.
ROIRE ORI BER AR

An entity controlled by Ultimate Shareholders
RERREHNER

(b) Transactions with related parties during the year

(b) FRHEEEL 2R 5

Other than the related party transactions disclosed in note
36, the following transactions with related parties were

BRH 6T B HIBE T X BN -
AEERFREBETETARS

200

undertaken by the Group during the year. NS
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Addition of right-of-use assets REFREEE m 45
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBEBEMNEMX 7,455
Repayment of lease liabilities (i) BEHEAREN) 52,668
Operating lease expenses paid BEEEHERS 171
Rent concessions e ER —

(i)  The amounts mainly represented rental expenses for land and
buildings for factory and office purposes paid to TK Technology
Holdings Ltd. and TK Technology (Shenzhen) Ltd, and capitalised
as right-of-use assets. All rental expenses were determined with

reference to independent property valuation.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Outstanding balances arising from lease

The following balances are outstanding at the end of the
reporting period in relation to transactions with related
parties:

A5 ERAR T ()

34 BEARZ (@)

2020

HK$'000
TET

Maximum

balance

outstanding

during
the year
RERERS
REREH
Other receivables H U R IR
— Rental deposits paid to —EfffgEkeT

TK Technology (Shenzhen) B TRHECEI)
Ltd. BRAA

Amount due from a related company, TK Technology (Shenzhen)
Limited, as at 31 December 2020 (HK$10,898,000) represented
two months rental deposits of Shenzhen Tangjia Plants and
TK Technology Park buildings located at Shenzhen paid to
TK Technology (Shenzhen) Limited as lessor pursuant to
the continuing connected transactions lease framework
agreement between members of the Company and its
subsidiaries as lessee and TK Technology (Shenzhen)
Limited as lessor announced on 28 December 2018. Two
months rental deposits paid to TK Technology (Shenzhen)
Limited is consistent with the terms of the rental contracts
signed, and the rental contracts are on normal commercial
terms and prevailing market practice comparable with
rental contracts signed with other third parties.

10,898

HK$'000

(c) HEEENREBERER

REHAR BHEESTRXSHHRN
BESRIOT

d:
ﬁ‘ﬁ
Ris

K&

2019
HK$'000
THT
Maximum
balance
outstanding

HK$'000

TR TETT

during

10,898 — —

7 20204% 12 A 31 B E U BB A
AIEIRBRORY) AR A A HKIE
(10,898,000 7T ) FER BEA R Al &
HB AR (EAEMBA)EBRITIR
BRORYDBRAB (EREEA)R
2018F 12 A28 A N HMIFEMIER
S5 HAEERE R ZE LR EINERY
BERBELRRINBETIERETFTR
RIRERCRYDBR AR (ERHME
AN IHHMEARESRS - MET
BECRIDBRARZAHMEA
HEREFEMITUNEES LIF
F BREAOTIR—MEEKK
RIRITMIBEHITY - HEHMSE
=HEURMEESNTELE -

RISE (BR) BRAR —Z_ZFFRH
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B H5 iR I L (48)
34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d) Key management personnel compensation

The compensations paid or payable to key management
personnel for employee services are shown below:

34 BEARZ (&)

(d)

TEEEASHM

MIEERIE A RN EBERA
B2 HM#IIMT

Wages, salaries and bonuses TE - #He kit
Share award scheme A& 17 B2 @ =t &

Pension costs — defined contribution R{RE A A—ERE 2k

plans =t &l

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT TAT
33,504

375

241

34,120

(e) Indemnity

Each of Ultimate Shareholders jointly and severally has
undertaken to indemnify and keep each of the Group's
companies fully indemnified against all claims and losses
suffered or incurred by any company of the Group as a
result of or in connection with, amongst others, the use of
the land and buildings owned by certain related companies
by any company of the Group as tenants, as these related
companies have not obtained the approval from the
relevant authorities in relation to the lease arrangements of
such land and buildings.
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(e)

wE

BREBRRE R R @ 5 2G5t E
HF R (HEFEE) REEEAQAF
(EREE)ERETRABARES
2 RkBFHMSAKEEFQE
SXKELNAARERBRAAX
SEEXERAREBERS LE
Fem@EE  RESZSHE AR
TRESAEBARBENLZS L0 RIE
FEHEEZEZHE
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BR5 R M ()

35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT B EXANFNEEEBRRREEED

OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December

MW12H318
2020 2019
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
k23 FExT FHET
Assets BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R BRARZRE 224,305 222,294
Deferred income tax assets BEIEFTISTHEE 42 —
Total non-current assets IERBEELRSE 224,347 222,294
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG 342,322 355,397
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESEFEEY 211 211
Total current assets MB) BB 342,533 355,608
Total assets BEE 566,880 577,902
Equity and liabilities EzkEE
Equity attributable to owners RATERA
of the company LR
Share capital A& A 83,326 83,326
Share premium & i@ (E 425,815 425,815
Shares held for employee share iR BT El
scheme BB ZKRH (10,416) (5,517)
Other reserves E b (a) 3,250 1,239
Retained earnings RE & F (a) 64,748 72,903
Total equity ESEs 566,723 577,766
Liabilities aE
Current liabilities REBERE
Other payables H iR I8 157 136
Total liabilities BERE 157 136
Total equity and liabilities ERRAEEHASE 566,880 577,902

RIEE (2) ERAF —T-TFFH
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B 75 ik M et (48)

35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 3B AN EEEBRRRBRESZE @
OF THE COMPANY (cContinued)
(a) Reserve movement of the Company (a) XA BEIGEEEZS
Retained Other
earnings reserves
HRERF Hinf#E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAT
At 1 January 2019 M2019%F1 818 116,895 —
Profit for the year F A& 114,327 =
Employee share schemes BB R M T2
— Value of employee services — EERBEEB — 1,239
Dividends [ieSN (158,319) —
At 31 December 2019 M2019%12831H 72,903 1,239
At 1 January 2020 720201 418
Profit for the year F A&
Employee share schemes B B in&TEl
— Value of employee services — BERBEEB =
Dividends [ieSN (91,658)
At 31 December 2020 720205F12H831H
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BR5 R M ()

36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 36 EETA R ER
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EBERESTTHRAEME
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive ZSEBEENRZSTHRAERNEINET
is set out below: U
For the year ended 31 December 2020: B ZE2020F128318 LFE :
Employer's
contribution
Discretionary  to retirement
Name Fees Salary bonus benefit scheme Total
EEHRAER
#E Be e BERA R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn Tan
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Li Pui Leung EMRKE
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael (i) PEATE
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu FRBEA
Mr. Cheung Fong Wa FHERE
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
Directors
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy FETHT
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong BEREE

Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung 23 &+

2,110 6,611 (AL 72 (RS

(i) Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael is also the chief executive officer. () BDEAEENRSERNTE -

RIEE (2) ERAF —T-TFFH 205
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B %5 R B e (A8

36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019:

36

EEFENRER @)

(a) EERBESITRAEME (@)

BZE2019F12A31HLFE :

Employer's
contribution to
Discretionary retirement
Name Fees Salary bonus  benefit scheme Total
EERAER
% e e HiBTea HEESN @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL T THL THr T
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Li Pui Leung FHRAE — 2,999 3,288 18 6,305
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael (il SEME4() — 2,605 2,855 18 5,478
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu TRBLE = 1,911 1,612 18 3,541
Mr. Cheung Fong Wa REERE - 2,078 1,752 18 3,848
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
Directors
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy ELTELT 291 - — - 291
Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung (ii) BB & A 281 — — — 281
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong WA 291 — — — 291
Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung fiii) 225 % +i) 10 — — — 10
873 9,593 9,507 72 20,045

(i) Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael is also the chief executive officer.

(i)  Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung was resigned on 20 December 2019.

(iii)  Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung was appointed on 20 December
2019.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(b) There was no directors’ retirement benefits, directors’

(c)

termination benefits, consideration provided to third
parties for making available directors’ services and no
loans, quasi-loans or other dealings entered into by
the Group in favour of any directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such directors
during the year (2019: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Saved for contracts amongst Group companies and as
disclosed in note 34, there was no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group's
business to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

B R R B e (48D

36 EEEFANRES @

(b) &R BERREHEEFTREMAE

(c)

THEHRIMNESRAGF - £5
RIERBBARRE  TEHALS
BRI VUARNES EFHIIEH
ZENEEERBASEANER
EERKEMRF(2019F : ££) o

EENRG  ZHISHNNER

RS

BREEARREEG A RME34EK
BE  MERIFAEMEFR -
AR BT LA EARNEEER
B BARRESREFHERERN
MEAEEAEGZNEARS K
HEKEH -
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FIVEYEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EFUBERE

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31ALEE
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FHAT FHET FHET FHTT THER
Revenue WA 1,626,611 1,860,900 2,298,609 2,310,842 m
Net profit for the Year ZN/NGIE 2PN
attributable to the owners FRLF
of the Company 205,698 301,833 350,185 301,803 209,687
As at 31 December
M12A831AH
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FET TAET
Total assets BEE 1,402,093 1,638,607 2,163,489 2,324,543 2,572,311
Total liabilities wmaf 717,083 727,089 1,088,031 1,133,078 | (i ihirkis
Total equity s 685,010 911,518 1,075,458 1,191,465 m
Notes: izt -
1. The consolidated results of the Group for each of the year ended 31 December 1. AEEEZF2019F K2020% 12731 H IFFE&FaY

2019 and 2020 and the consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31
December 2019 and 2020 are set out on pages 111 to 113 of this annual report.

2. The consolidated results of the Group for each of the year ended 31 December 2.
2016, 2017 and 2018 and the consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group as
at 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018 are set out in the 2016, 2017 and 2018

annual report of the Group.

3. The above summary was prepared as if the current structure of the Group had 3.

been in existence throughout these financial years.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020

BHFREEURAEFmR2019F X 202012531 H A
EHEERBEHRAFHREIIIEZ113E °
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K2018F12A31 HA A HEER B EEHRAEE
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